
      
 

                 CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
                                                                                       Tuesday – March 25, 2025 – 6:00 PM  
                             

 
    Shawn O’Neill,     

Mayor 
soneill@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Brian Watson, 
Council Position No.1 
bwatson@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Ivan Wiediger, 
Council Position No.2 
iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Don Webster, 
Council Position No.3 
dwebster@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Heather Stewart, 
Council Position No.4 
hstewart@cityofnapavine.com 
 

Duane Crouse, 
Council Position No.5  
dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com 
 
 
Staff Members 
Rachelle Denham, 
City Clerk 
 

Michelle Whitten, 
City Treasurer 
 

Bryan Morris, 
PW Director 
Community Development 
 

John Brockmueller, 
Chief of Police 
 

Allen Unzelman 
Honorable Judge-Municipal Court 
 

Jim Buzzard, 
Legal Counsel 
 
 

City of Napavine 
407 Birch Ave SW 
P O Box 810 
Napavine, WA  98565 
360-262-3547 
 
City Website 
www.cityofnapavine.com 
 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II.   INVOCATION 
III.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
IV.   ROLL CALL 
V.   APPROVAL OF AGENDA – AS PRESENTED 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – March 11, 2025 

1) Regular Council Meeting  
 

VII. PRESENTATION: Chehalis River Basin Flood Authority 
 

VIII. STAFF & COUNCIL REPORT   

IX. CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Vouchers – M. Whitten 
2) AM 25-04 Liquor License Renew: Super Mini Mart – R. Denham 
3) Resolution 25-03-160 Continuing Support for Basin-Wide Solution 

to Flooding – R. Denham 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

                                       
XI. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSE OF MEETING 

 
Council Meeting is held in person and via Teleconference.  

         Teleconference Information 

         Dial-in number (US): (720) 740-9753 

             Access code: 8460198 

         To join the online meeting: https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8 

mailto:soneill@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:bwatson@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dwebster@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:hstewart@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com
http://www.cityofnapavine.com/
https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8


 

NAPAVINE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
March 11, 2025, 6:00 P.M. 

Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 
 

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Shawn O’Neill called the regular city council meeting to order at 6:00 pm.   

INVOCATION:  
The invocation was led by Bryan Morris. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
Mayor Shawn O’Neill led the flag salute.          

ROLL CALL:   

Council members present: Shawn O’Neill Mayor, Brian Watson Councilor #1, Ivan Wiediger Councilor #2, Heather 
Stewart Councilor #4, and Duane Crouse, Mayor Pro Tem. 

City staff members present: City Clerk - Rachelle Denham, Treasurer – Michelle Whitten, Chief of Police – John 
Brockmueller, CD/PW Director - Bryan Morris, and Legal Counsel- Jim Buzzard. 

MOVED: Heather Stewart Motion: Excuse Counselor Don Webster.  
 SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried: 4 aye and 0 nay.                                        

 

CONSENT/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approval of Agenda- As Presented.  
 SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried: 4 aye and 0 nay.                                        

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  

MOVED: Brian Watson Motion: Approval of the regular council 
meeting minutes for February 25, 2025. SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried: 4 aye and 0 nay.                                        

STAFF & COUNCIL REPORTS:  

 
John Brockmueller – Chief of Police 

• Greetings to the council, stats in writing and operations are normal. 
 
Rachelle Denham – City Clerk 

• The report is in writing. 
 
Bryan Morris - PW/CD Director   

• The report is in writing.  
 

 



2 
 

Brian Watson – Councilor 1 
• Congrats to the Napavine girls’ high school basketball team for placing 3rd during the State Championship 

games. The boys should be proud as well for making it to the playoff games.  
 
Planning Commission – Deborah Graham 

• There will be a Public Hearing on March 17 at 6pm for Walsh Holdings LLC for the 12,500 sq ft metal 
building.  

 
Sandra White - LCFD 5  

• The report is In writing. Topics include Building Construction, Fire Department practice, Continued Fire Chief 
search, Staffing for Fire Fighter/Emergency Medical Tech, and Equipment.  
 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS:  The recording link can be accessed for entire citizen comments. 
This is a brief summary and not verbatim. 

• NONE        
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
VOUCHERS- M. WHITTEN  

 

 
 

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Pay the bills.  Approval of the 
Vouchers dated March 2025 First Council 
Meeting. 

SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion.  
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried; 4 aye and 0 nay. 

 
 
 
AGREEMENT: MOTT MACDONALD LLC (HYDROGEOLOGIST)– B. MORRIS 
                                                                                      

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approve Agreement between Mott 
MacDonald LLC and the city.  SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion.  
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried; 4 aye 0 nay. 

 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
AGREEMENT: DRAFT RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL LCFD5 – B. MORRIS 
                                                                                                                                                                  

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Accept the draft for LCFD5 Right of 
First Refusal.  SECONDED: Heather Stewart 

Discussion: Counselor Stewart commented that it seems like a really good idea for the city. 
Director Morris provided clarifying information regarding the two parcels.  

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried; 4 aye 0 nay. 
   
 
 
RESOLUTION 25-03-158 SURPLUS MASTER METERS – B. MORRIS 
                                                                                      

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approve Resolution 25-03-158 to 
surplus master meters.  SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried; 4 aye 0 nay. 

 
 
 
AGREEMENT: 2025 NAPAVINE YOUTH BASEBALL – R. DENHAM 
                                                                                 

MOVED: Brian Watson Motion: Approve 2025 Napavine Youth 
Baseball Agreement.  SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried; 4 aye 0 nay. 

 
 
 
AM25-03: POLICE DEPT PROVIDE SECURITY FOR WATER/SEWER SYSTEM – M. WHITTEN 
                                                                                      

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approve AM 25-03.  SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 
Discussion: Counselor Stewart asked the following questions. Who has been doing security 

and who is responsible for it? Treasurer Whitten responded that the city is trying to be 
proactive vs. reactive should an issue arise. Counselor Stewart stated, why should we 
employ the police dept to do this service? Director Morris provided additional 
information along with Mayor O’Neill and the Chief. Counselor Mayor Pro Tem and the 
Chief stated the funds will come from water/sewer to general fund.  

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried; 4 aye 0 nay. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Meeting Adjourned at 6:25 p.m. 
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: To Adjourn – Close of Meeting 
 SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion.  
 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 4-0 Motion Carried; 4 aye and 0 nay. 

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online from 
freeconferencecall.com or at the link https://fccdl.in/qG1daf0MQI . 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk                                 Shawn O’Neill, Mayor     Councilor 

https://fccdl.in/qG1daf0MQI


Date

Transient Vendor

3/17/2025

Home Depot Credit Services

2/20/2025

Amerisafe Fire/Safety Service

3/6/2025

AV Capture All Inc

3/18/2025

Biometrics4ALL, Inc

3/1/2025

Capital Business Machines

3/10/2025

3/10/2025

3/14/2025

3/14/2025

Cities Insurance Assoc

3/6/2025

CT Publishing LLC dba The Chronicle

3/1/2025

Day Wireless Systems

3/6/2025INV865103 $134.89 SMD certification and notary

Reference Number: 39640 $134.89

Reference Number: 39639 $28.62

289267 $28.62 Pass Thru Walsh PH 

INV-01693 $250.00 Claim C3098 2/13/25

Reference Number: 39638 $250.00

INV257436 $85.51 2025 03/01-03/13 Copier City Hall

INV257437 $35.28 2025 PD/Court 50% 3/1-3/31

INV255825 $232.07 2025 02/01-02/28 Copier City Hall

INV255826 $105.29 2025 PD/Court 50% 2/1-2/28

Reference Number: 39637 $458.15

Reference Number: 39636 $852.41

MNAPAL0003 $852.41 LiveScan 5/1/25-4/30/26

3088 $1,618.50 Apr1 2025-Mar 31, 2026

Reference Number: 39635 $1,618.50

Reference Number: 39634 $90.37

74596 $90.37 Annual Fire Extinguisher Inspection

523654 $64.90 cub engine Maint kit

Reference Number: 39633 $64.90

Reference Number: 39632 $86.54

4740-0051-12008 $86.54 12-volt battery (used wrong card)

               Voucher Report  March 25, 2025

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 1



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Jackson Civil Engineering LLC

3/18/2025

3/20/2025

3/20/2025

3/20/2025

3/20/2025

Joseph O. Enbody

2/28/2025

Judicial Conference Registrar c/o AOC Financial Services

3/19/2025

LCSO-Corrections Bureau

3/19/2025

LECO Supply, Inc

3/12/2025

Les Schwab

3/19/2025

Lewis County Auditor

3/19/2025

Lewis County PUD

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025104755006*2025 Mar $56.67 1/15-2/13 Linhart Ave Lights

104755004*2025 Mar $63.41 1/15-2/13 Washington & 2nd ST SE Light

104755005*2025 Mar $50.25 1/15-2/13 Ball Park Lights/ 207 W Washington ST

104755002*2025 Mar $32.36 1/15-2/13 E Park St 

104755003*2025 Mar $31.67 1/15-2/13 305 2nd AVE NE "Triangle"

Reference Number: 39648 $5,603.36

Reference Number: 39647 $38.00

25-2015-c1 $38.00 Record Liens Water Release

Invoice - 3/19/2025 1:44:27 PM $163.36 Cam Chain/tightener

Reference Number: 39646 $163.36

Reference Number: 39645 $620.96

230519 $620.96 Chlorine 2 chlorine drums

2025*02 Medical prisoner $7.36 2025*02 prisoner

Reference Number: 39644 $7.36

Reference Number: 39643 $200.00

2025 DMCMA Spring Conf $200.00 Dewitt Spring Conf 2025

291972 $3,000.00 2025*Jan 10 units

Reference Number: 39642 $3,000.00

0016-39-01 $660.00 Pre App Hamilton Corner Short Plat Pass Thru

0016-39-02 $825.00 Pre App meeting 8th Ave Dev Pass Thru

0016-30-13 $536.25 Discussed projects

0016-35-13 $6,682.50 Comp plan update

Reference Number: 39641 $14,966.25

0016-29-06 $6,262.50 Pass Through Tiger Meadows

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 2



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/28/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/28/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/28/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/28/2025

2/28/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

2/24/2025

Lewis County Sheriffs Office

3/19/20252025*Feb Evindence $1,127.67 2025- 02 Evidence Handling

Reference Number: 39649 $1,127.67

128578004*2025 Mar $43.98 1/15-2/13 518 7th AVE NW Security Lighting 

128578005*2025 Mar $50.94 1/15-2/13 555 2nd Ave NE Park Building 

128578002*2025 Mar $32.58 1/26-2/22 173 Hamilton RD Lighting 

128578003*2025 Mar $36.57 1/15-2/13 307 Sommerville RD Light 

128323001*2025 Mar $47.41 1/09-2/20 207 W Washington Ave Amphitheater

128578001*2025 Mar $40.63 1/26-2/22 Rush RD Lights

124227002*2025 Mar $577.55 1/26-2/22 1206 Rush RD - Well #6/Treatment Plant

124227003*2025 Mar $511.69 1/15-2/13 City Hall - 407 Birch Ave SW 

115588001*2025 Mar $55.12 1/15-2/13 Rathburn ST 

115588002*2025 Mar $44.98 1/15-2/13 4th & Stella ST *250 W ST Lights*

104755025*2025 Mar $226.85 1/15-2/13 207 W Washington Ave - Pump

104755026*2025 Mar $38.85 1/26-2/22 611 Koontz RD 

104755023*2025 Mar $37.48 1/15-2/13 Rowell ST E Pump

104755024*2025 Mar $487.53 1/15-2/13 Front ST E Pump - Well #2

104755021*2025 Mar $253.10 1/15-2/13 E Jefferson ST Pump

104755022*2025 Mar $267.50 1/15-2/13 1168 Rush RD Pump

104755019*2025 Mar $72.92 1/15-2/13 Chieri CT Sewer Pump

104755020*2025 Mar $1,022.13 1/15-2/13 Birch - Well #5/Birch Ave SW Pump

104755017*2025 Mar $107.14 1/15-2/13 3rd Ave NW/Pump Station

104755018*2025 Mar $926.14 1/24-2/24 Various Street Lights 

104755015*2025 Mar $47.39 1/15-2/13 Camden Way ST Light 

104755016*2025 Mar $42.90 1/15-2/13 Parkside Loop ST Light 

104755012*2025 Mar $49.24 1/15-2/13 Birch Ave SW Traffic Signal 

104755014*2025 Mar $33.45 1/15-2/13 Washington ST Lighting 

104755010*2025 Mar $30.95 1/26-2/22 191 Hamilton RD 

104755011*2025 Mar $38.71 1/15-2/13 Stadium Way Lights 

104755008*2025 Mar $88.72 1/15-2/13 113 2ND Ave SE 

104755009*2025 Mar $116.29 1/15-2/13 207 Wash ST Park Concessions

104755007*2025 Mar $40.26 1/15-2/13 2nd Ave NE Restroom

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 3



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Lewis County Treasurer

3/19/2025

Minuteman Press

3/14/2025

Napavine ASB

3/20/2025

Pointe Pest Control

3/17/2025

Rock Products Direct, Inc.

2/10/2025

Sarah Berry c/o Duane Elwood

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

3/19/2025

State Treasurer's Office

3/19/2025

Stop Stick, LTD

3/5/20250037347_In $576.19 9' stop stick kit

Reference Number: 39657 $576.19

Reference Number: 39656 $2,337.88

2025*02 State Remit $2,337.88 2025*02 State Remit

2025*Mar LEOFF1 Medical $230.00 2025*Mar LEOFF1 Medical

2025*3/6 Dermatology $10.00 2025*3/6 Dermatology

2025*Feb LEOFF1 Medical $230.00 2025*Feb LEOFF1 Medical

2025*2/18 Prescription $50.70 2025*2/18 Prescription

2025*2/7 Prescription $18.60 2025*2/7 Prescription

2025*2/14 Dermatology $56.06 2025*2/14 Dermatology

2025*2/17 Prescription $92.73 2025*2/17 Prescription

2025*1/22 Prescription $22.45 2025*1/22 Prescription

2025*1/27 Miracle Ear $395.00 2025*1/27 Miracle Ear

Reference Number: 39655 $1,105.54

Reference Number: 39654 $157.78

17457 $157.78 11.27 tons sand

3059816 $269.75 Pest Control Qrtly 2025 2nd qtr

Reference Number: 39653 $269.75

Reference Number: 39652 $200.00

2024-2025 Napavine Yearbook $200.00 2024-2025 Napavine Yearbook

1582/1557 $201.29 checkstamp/warrant quash/business cards

Reference Number: 39651 $201.29

Reference Number: 39650 $60.87

2025*02 Crime Victims $60.87 2025 - 02  Court Remittance

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 4



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Toledotel

3/1/2025

Transient Vendor

3/17/2025

US Bank Corp Payment Syst

2/7/2025

2/20/2025

2/28/2025

2/27/2025

2/6/2025

2/26/2025

2/6/2025

2/20/2025

2/26/2025

2/19/2025

3/2/2025

2/11/2025

2/25/2025

2/19/2025

2/15/2025

2/21/2025

3/5/2025

2/20/2025

2/24/2025

2/26/2025

2/19/2025

2/27/2025

US Bank NA CincinnatiReference Number: 39661 $40.00

INV294689318 Zoom $17.03 Zoom Subscription Period Feb 27 - Mar 26

840-59800250-2-3531245-1 USPS $73.00 Postage Stamps - PW/CD

93869 Staples $27.04 16GB Attach 4 USB

840-59800250-2-3527187-1 USPS $219.00 Postage Stamps x 3

840-59800250-2-3529342-1 USPS $49.80 Certified Mail - postage

840-59800250-1-4024651-2 USPS $6.62 Certified Mail - postage

840-59800250-1-4034995-2 USPS $9.96 Postage 

27028 Chehalis Steel Company $225.65 Chehalis Steel 

77575162 Free Conference Call $3.25 File Storage 2/15/25-3/14/25

1868 WPTA Member $50.00 WPTA Membership Dues - M.Whitten

240362950567 Adobe $258.83 Adobe

113-9519524-6110638 Amazon $64.72 Xprite COB BED Amber Rooftop Strobe Bracon Lights/Magnetic Base 

14490 NLEFIA $600.00 Police Training - Logan

113-4694691-4236250 Amazon $40.31 office supplies 

113-5728261-3614620 Amazon $43.11 LawnRazor Mower Blade Set 

113-0779803-0007417 Amazon $172.64 Lawn Mower Tires 

113-2081281-0091415 Amazon $64.72 Emergency Hazard Warning LED Mini Strobe Light Bar/Roof Top

03227612 Harbor Freight $37.86 1 Ton Hand Winch

0680211-IN Sirchie $49.89 Integrity Evidence Bags 9x12

016068 Soft Touch $12.45 car wash 

016341 Soft Touch $16.60 car wash

Reference Number: 39660 $2,059.08

015800 Soft Touch $16.60 car wash 

7753 $100.00 Eng App Fee - Scot Industries Pass Thru

Reference Number: 39659 $100.00

Reference Number: 39658 $350.62

10076793 $350.62 2025*02 VOIP

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 5



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

3/19/2025

Utilities Underground Location Center

2/28/2025

Watersurplus / Surplus Management, Inc

2/27/2025

Invoice Cloud Inc

2/28/2025

Dept of Licensing Firearms Desk

3/4/2025

3/4/2025

Dept of Licensing Firearms Desk

3/5/2025

3/5/2025

Dept of Licensing Firearms Desk

3/13/2025

Centurylink

2/21/2025

US Cellular

3/2/2025

DE Lage Landen Financial Services

3/8/2025

Dept of Retirement SystemsReference Number: EFT*20250319 $8,050.46

589584068 $464.00 2025 - 3/1-3/30 Sharp MX307105 PD CITY HALL

Reference Number: EFT*20250318 $464.00

Reference Number: EFT*20250317 $56.13

0714466025 $56.13 Mayor Cell phone 23/2-4/1

2025-Mar Well telemetry $56.37 2025-  March Well Telemetry 206T21  Feb 21-Mar 20

Reference Number: EFt*20250316 $56.37

Reference Number: EFt*20250315 $18.00

NV0000131 Croft $18.00 NV0000131 Croft

NV0000130 Salvner $18.00 NV0000130 Salvner 

Reference Number: EFT*20250314 $36.00

NV0000129 Salvner $18.00 NV0000129 Salvner

NV0000128 Gilliam $18.00 NV0000128 Gilliam 

Reference Number: EFT*20250313 $36.00

NV0000127 Gilliam $18.00 NV0000127 Gilliam

3636-2025_2 $160.25 2025*Feb Online Access

Reference Number: EFT*20250312 $160.25

Reference Number: 39663 $6,434.88

INV0008942 $6,434.88 Well #6 Water Treatment Plant carbon/gravel

5020196 $4.05 3 locates 2025 Feb

Reference Number: 39662 $4.05

2025*02 US Bank fees $40.00 2025 - 02  Bond Fee

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 6



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025Taxable Retirement  - 15533 $167.91

Taxable Retirement  - 15531 $236.67

Taxable Retirement  - 15532 $304.73

Taxable Retirement  - 15529 $192.91

Taxable Retirement  - 15530 $207.47

Taxable Retirement  - 15527 $75.28

Taxable Retirement  - 15528 $200.66

Taxable Retirement  - 15525 $193.03

Taxable Retirement  - 15526 $270.28

Taxable Retirement  - 15523 $274.36

Taxable Retirement  - 15524 $240.76

Taxable Retirement  - 15521 $322.68

Taxable Retirement  - 15522 $274.36

Taxable Retirement  - 15519 $196.41

Taxable Retirement  - 15520 $409.42

Emp Rtmt - 15533 $240.51

Taxable Retirement  - 15518 $274.36

Emp Rtmt - 15531 $339.00

Emp Rtmt - 15532 $436.49

Emp Rtmt - 15529 $276.33

Emp Rtmt - 15530 $297.18

Emp Rtmt - 15527 $107.83

Emp Rtmt - 15528 $287.42

Emp Rtmt - 15525 $276.50

Emp Rtmt - 15526 $351.75

Emp Rtmt - 15523 $171.12

Emp Rtmt - 15524 $344.86

Emp Rtmt - 15521 $201.25

Emp Rtmt - 15522 $171.12

Emp Rtmt - 15519 $281.34

Emp Rtmt - 15520 $255.35

Emp Rtmt - 15518 $171.12

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 7



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Dept of Treasury Internal Revenue Service

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025Medicare - 15524 (2) $54.89

Medicare - 15523 (2) $47.09

Medicare - 15524 $54.89

Medicare - 15522 (2) $46.75

Medicare - 15523 $47.09

Medicare - 15521 (2) $55.69

Medicare - 15522 $46.75

Medicare - 15520 (2) $70.03

Medicare - 15521 $55.69

Medicare - 15519 (2) $44.78

Medicare - 15520 $70.03

Medicare - 15518 (2) $46.64

Medicare - 15519 $44.78

Federal Income Tax - 15533 $181.39

Medicare - 15518 $46.64

Federal Income Tax - 15531 $329.13

Federal Income Tax - 15532 $728.51

Federal Income Tax - 15529 $167.61

Federal Income Tax - 15530 $269.32

Federal Income Tax - 15527 $0.00

Federal Income Tax - 15528 $362.26

Federal Income Tax - 15525 $380.65

Federal Income Tax - 15526 $512.88

Federal Income Tax - 15523 $399.91

Federal Income Tax - 15524 $360.73

Federal Income Tax - 15521 $552.32

Federal Income Tax - 15522 $394.69

Federal Income Tax - 15519 $195.69

Federal Income Tax - 15520 $690.46

Reference Number: EFT*20250320 $7,504.13

Federal Income Tax - 15518 $415.04

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 8



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

Payroll Vendor

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025ACH Pay - 15529 $2,145.77

ACH Pay - 15527 $1,028.07

ACH Pay - 15528 $2,101.79

ACH Pay - 15525 $2,183.61

ACH Pay - 15526 $2,619.77

ACH Pay - 15523 $2,214.31

ACH Pay - 15524 $2,292.53

ACH Pay - 15521 $2,684.70

ACH Pay - 15522 $2,200.05

ACH Pay - 15519 $2,152.28

ACH Pay - 15520 $3,257.82

Reference Number: March 1-15, 2025 $37,415.10

ACH Pay - 15518 $2,262.56

Medicare - 15533 (2) $38.28

Medicare - 15532 (2) $69.47

Medicare - 15533 $38.28

Medicare - 15531 (2) $53.96

Medicare - 15532 $69.47

Medicare - 15530 (2) $47.30

Medicare - 15531 $53.96

Medicare - 15529 (2) $43.98

Medicare - 15530 $47.30

Medicare - 15528 (2) $45.75

Medicare - 15529 $43.98

Medicare - 15527 (2) $17.16

Medicare - 15528 $45.75

Medicare - 15526 (2) $55.99

Medicare - 15527 $17.16

Medicare - 15525 (2) $44.01

Medicare - 15526 $55.99

Medicare - 15525 $44.01

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 9



Date

                           March 2025 2nd Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

3/17/2025

TOTAL

The following voucher/warrants/electronic payments are approved for payment:

Accounts Payable 32 100 43,209.27     39632-39663

Electronic Payments 7 9 826.75           EFT*20250312-18

Payroll Vendors

Electronic Payroll 2 2 15,554.59     EFT*20250319-20

ACH Direct Deposit 16 16 37,415.10     Payroll 3/1-3/15, 2025

Total Vouchers 57 127 97,005.71     

Voided Check 39570 ($50.00) 96,955.71     

WE, THE FOLLOWING SIGNEES, APPROVE THE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT:

MAYOR: __________________________________________________________

TREASURER: _________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #1: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #2: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #3: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #4: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #5: ___________________________________________________

Police Department - John Brockmueller_____________________________

Public Works/Community Development - Bryan Morris ________________

Court- Lacie Dewitt _______________________________________________

City Clerk - Rachelle Denham:_____________________________________

DATED THIS     DAY OF             ,2025

$97,005.71

ACH Pay - 15533 $1,926.08

ACH Pay - 15531 $2,906.80

ACH Pay - 15532 $3,200.50

ACH Pay - 15530 $2,238.46

March 25, 2025 2nd Council March  City of Napavine - Voucher Report 10



 

City of Napavine  
Action Memorandum No. 25-04: Notice of Renewal Liquor License   

 
Originator: Rachelle Denham, City Clerk    

Agenda Date: March 25, 2025 

Route to: Department Head Signature Date 
X No Objections Chief of Police   
X No Objections City Clerk   

 

Review by Mayor Shawn O’Neill: ___________________________________________________________________________, 

Attachment(s): Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board Liquor License Renewal Application 
list.  

1) Super Mini Mart #369952, 112 2nd St NE, expires June 30, 2025. 

Fiscal Impact:  yes    no  

Summary statement: The City received a letter from the Washington State Liquor and Cannabis 
Board a list of liquor license renewal applications in City of Napavine Jurisdiction.  

Pursuant to RCW 66.24.010(8) allows the city to object to license renewal request.  

To object to the liquor license renewal: fax or mail a letter to the Washington State Liquor and 
Cannabis board (WA-LCB) Licensing Division  

Objection letter must be received by the Boards Licensing Division at least 30 days prior to the 
license expiration date. If you need additional time, you must request that in writing.   

Staff Recommendation:  

• Approve Liquor License renewal for Super Mini Mart.  

 

Approved  Denied  
Date Action Taken  
Attest:  

 



CO91080-2 WASHINGTON  STATE LIQUOR  AND  CANNABIS  BOARD DATE:  03/06/2025

l

LICENSED  ESTABLISHMENTS  IN
(BY  ZIP  CODE)  FOR

INCORPORATED  AREAS  CITY  OF  NAPAVINE
EXPIRATION  DATE  OF  20250630

LICENSEE BUSINESS  NAME AND ADDRESS

LICENSE
NUMBER PRIVILEGES

THREE  JI  K LLC SUPER MINI  MART
112  2ND AVE NE
NAPAVINE WA 98565  0000

369952 GROCERY STORE - BEER/WINE



Washington  State
Liquor  and  Cannabis  Board
Pa Box  43098, Olympia  WA 98504-3098,  (360)  664-1600

MAYOR  OF  NAPAVINE
CITY  HALL
NAPAVINE,  WA  98565



Washington  State
Liq  uo  r  and  C anna  bis  Bo  ard

Pa Box 43098 www.li'q'.woaxygmopv"a WFAaX9#85oz+(3-s6o0g)s7,53(326071)0664-1600

March  06  2025

Dear  Local  Authority:

RE:  Liquor  License  Renewal  Applications  in  Your  Jurisdiction  - Your  Objection  Opportunity

Enclosed  please  find  a list  of  liquor-licensed  premises  in  your  jurisdiction  whose
This  is  your  opportunity  to  object  to  these  license  renewal  requests  as  authorized

* ) Obiection  to  License  Renewal

liquor  1icenses  will  expire  in  about  90  days.
by  RCW 66.24.010  (8).

To  object  to  a liquor  license  renewal:
Division.  This  letter  must  :

fax  or  mail  a letter  to  the  Washington  State  Liquor  and  Cannabis  Board  (WS-LCB)  Licensing

o Deta  il  the  reason  ( s ) for  your  objection,  inc1u  ding
based.  You  may  include  attachments  and  supporting
based.

a  st  at  ement  of  a11  the  facts  upon  wh  ich  your  obj  ection  or  obj  ections  are
documents  which  contain  or  confirm  the  facts  upon  which  your  objections  are

o Please  note  that  whether  a hearing  will  be  granted  or  not  is  within  the  Board's  discretion  per  RCW 66.24.010  (8)  (d).

Your  letter  or fax  of  objection  must  be  received  by  the  Board's  Licensing  Division  at  least  30  days  prior  to  the  license
expiration  date.  If  you  need  additional  time  you  must  request  that  in  writinq.  Please  be  aware,  however,  that  it  is  within
the  Board's  discretion  to  grant  or  deny  any  requests  for  extension  of  time  to  submit  objections.  Your  request  for  extension
will  be  granted  or  denied  in  writing.  If  objections  are  not  timely  received,  they  will  not  be  considered  as  part  of  the
renewal  process.

A copy  of  your  objection  and  any  attachments  and  supporting  materials  will  be  made  available  to  the  licensee,  therefore,  it  is  the
Local  Authority's  responsibility  to  redact  any  confidential  or  non-disclosable  information  (see  RCW 42.56)  prior  to  submission  to
the  WSLCB.

2 ) St  atus  of  License  Wh ile  Obi  ection  Pending

During  the  time  an  objection  to  a renewal  is  pending,
1  ic  e n s e s a r  e r  e g u la  r  ly  i  s s u e d t  o t  h e li  c e n s e e u n t  il  a

the  permanent  liquor  license  is  placed  on  hold.
final  decision  is  made  by  the  Board.

However,  temporary

3)  Procedure  Following  Licensing  Division  Receipt  of Obiection

After  we  receive  your  objection,  our  licensing  staff  will  prepare  a report  for  review  by the  Licensing  Director.  The  report
will  include  your  letter  of  objection,  as well  as  any  attachments  and  supporting  documents  you  send.  The  Licensing  Director
will  then  decide  to  renew  the  liquor  license,  or  to  proceed  with  non-renewal.

4)  Procedure  if  Board  Does  Not  Renew  License

If  the  Board  decides  not  to  renew  a license,  we  will  notify  the  licensee  in  writing,  stating  the  reason  for  this  decision.  The
licensee  also  has  the  right  to  request  a  hearing  to  contest  non-renewal  of  their  liquor  license.  RCW 68.24.010  (8)  (d).  If  the
licensee  makes  a timely  request  for  a hearing,  we  will  notify  you.

The  Board's  Licensing  Division  will  be  required  to  present  evidence  at  the  hearing  before  an  administrative  law  judge  to
support  the  non-renewal  recommendation.  You  may  present  evidence  in  support  of  your  objection  or  objections.  The  administrative
law  judge  will  consider  all  of  the  evidence  and  issue  an  initial  order  for  the  Board's  review.  The  Board  members  have  final
authority  to  renew  the  liquor  license  and  will  enter  a final  order  announcing  their  decision.



s)  Procedure  if  Board  Renews License  Over Your  Obiection

It'  the  Board  decides  to  renew  the  license  over  your  objection,  you  will  be  notified  in  writing.  At  that  time,  you  may  be

given  an  opportunity  to  request  a  hearing.  An  opportunity  for  a hearing  is  offered  at  the  Board's  discretion.  If  a  hearing
is  held,  you  will  be  responsible  for  presenting  evidence  before  an  Administrative  Law  Judge  in  support  of  your  objection  to
xicense  renewal.  The  Board's  Licensing  Division  will  present  evidence  in  support  of  license  renewal.  The  Licensee  may

alSO  participate  and present  evidence  if  the  licensee  desires.  The  administrative  laW  judge  Will  consider  all  Of the  evidencei
and  issue  an  initial  order  for  the  Board's  review.  The  Board  members  have  final  authority  to  renew  the  liquor  license  and
will  enter  a  final  order  announcing  their  decision.

For  questions  about  this  process,  contact  the  WSLCB  Licensing  Division  at  (360)  664-1600  or  email  us  at  localauthority@sp.lcb.wa.gov.

Sincerely,

Rebecca  Smi-th

R eb  ec  ca  S mith  Di  rect  or

Licensing  and  Regu  lation  Division

LIQ  864  07/10



Resolution No. 25-03-160 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NAPAVINE 
CONTINUING ITS SUPPORT FOR A BASIN-WIDE SOLUTION 

TO FLOODING AND AQUATIC SPECIES RESTORATION. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Napavine (“Napavine”) is one local government represented on the Chehalis River 
Basin Flood Authority (“Flood Authority”), along with Hoquiam, Aberdeen, Cosmopolis, Montesano, Oakville, 
Grays Harbor County, Bucoda, Thurston County, Centralia, Chehalis, Pe Ell and Lewis County, and is regularly and 
negatively impacted by Chehalis River Basin flooding, the largest source of which originates from the mainstem 
Chehalis River above Pe Ell. 

 
WHEREAS, the Flood Authority continues to foresee a future through the Chehalis Basin process where 

our families and communities are protected from the worst of the periodic catastrophic floods that hit our Basin 
and where aggressive habitat restoration projects have turned a declining fishery into a vibrant fishery. 

 
WHEREAS, forecasts call for larger and more frequent catastrophic flooding due to climate change and 

demanding we continue pursuing strategies that will allow our communities to adapt and thrive in the face of 
more flooding. 

 
WHEREAS, the Chehalis Basin strategy includes the Aberdeen-Hoquiam North Shore and West Segment 

of the North Shore levee, continued development of local flood and fish projects, a basin-wide aquatic species 
restoration plan, and a proposed flow through dam for flood control that will retain 62,000 acre-feet of flood 
water during catastrophic storms that will lower peak flood levels from Pe Ell to Cosmopolis. 

 
WHEREAS, on April 21, 2020, through the State Environmental Policy Act process, the Flood Authority 

stated its support for the Chehalis River Basin Flood Control Zone District’s proposed Chehalis River Basin Flood 
Damage Reduction Project with the view that the institutional governance capacity existed in the Basin to identify 
and implement sufficient “technically feasible and economically practicable” mitigation as required (see “Final 
CRBFA Letter re DEIS 4-21-2020” in the Chehalis River Basin Flood Authority’s Local Resolutions Library below). 

 
WHEREAS, on November 13, 2020, through the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process, the 

Flood Authority again stated its support for the Chehalis River Basin Flood Control Zone District’s proposed 
Chehalis River Basin Flood Damage Reduction Project with the view that the District’s project, if considered at a 
Basin-wide scale along with other local flood damage reduction and habitat restoration measures, would 
substantially benefit aquatic species and people, property and livelihoods (see “CRBFA Letter Re NEPA DEIS 11-
13-2020” in the Chehalis River Basin Flood Authority’s Local Resolutions Library below). 

 
WHEREAS, in the NEPA Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) process the US Army Corps of 

Engineers reviewed 61 different alternatives for reducing catastrophic flood damage and found that only those 
alternatives that included a proposed water retention facility met the objective of flood damage reduction to a 
level sufficient to proceed to full DEIS-level analysis, a view consistently held by the Flood Authority as part of its 
long-standing support for balanced, Basin-wide solutions to address flooding and aquatic species restoration in 
the Basin. 

 
WHEREAS, the WA State Department of Ecology’s Draft Environmental Impact Statement, as well the US 

Army Corps of Engineers’ Draft Environmental Impact Statement, show the District’s proposed Chehalis River 
Basin Flood Damage Reduction Project delivering significant reductions in catastrophic levels of flooding for Basin 
communities and providing substantial reductions in impact and flood inundation for thousands of structures, 
including homes, schools, churches, small businesses, state highways and I-5, provided adverse impacts, however 
negligible, are acceptably mitigated. 



 
WHEREAS, the Chehalis River Basin Flood Control Zone District, supported by state funding through the 

Office of Chehalis Basin, is not pursuing a traditional fish and sediment blocking dam but is instead advancing an 
innovative, state-of-the-art design that will operate as a dam only briefly during catastrophic flood periods and at 
all other times allow fish and sediment to pass unaided through the facility. 

 
WHEREAS, in advancing the design of the proposed flow through dam for flood control the Flood Control 

Zone District has engaged top level engineering and aquatic species enhancement expertise to address 
environmental concerns and produced solid answers as to how to avoid, minimize, and mitigate impacts. 

 
WHEREAS, the Chehalis River Basin Flood Authority, Office of Chehalis Basin, Chehalis Basin Board, 

Chehalis Basin Flood Control Zone District, and Chehalis Basin Strategy together provide a well-structured 
governance and funding framework that has delivered much positive “flood” and “fish” benefit to the Basin since 
the catastrophic floods of 2007 and 2009. 

 
WHEREAS, these are challenging times with financial resources and capacities stretched thin as a result of 

the global pandemic. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Napavine City Council continues to express its support for 
the proposed flow through dam for flood control and the hope it offers families and communities across the Basin 
for reducing the peaks of future catastrophic flooding. 

 
This resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
PASSED THIS        DAY OF        March, 2025 by the City Council of the City of Napavine and signed in 

authentication thereof this        day of March, 2025. 
 

CITY OF NAPAVINE: 
 
 
       
Shawn O'Neill, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      _ 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
City Attorney, James M.B. Buzzard WBA #33555  



Rachelle  Denham

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:

Attachments:

Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>

Friday, March 14, 2025 7:56 AM

Ryan Barrett

Rieva Lester; Emily Fitzgerald;  Eric Schwartz; Lindsey Pollock;  Sean Swope; Scott

Brummer;  Robert  Snaza; Winlock  City Clerk; cityclerk@vaderwa.org;

rachel.beaver@toledowa.us;  Rachelle Denham; Kristan McConnell;  Cassie Frazier; Ward,

LuAnn

Re: ? - Investigation  Quote  darification

FINAL Packet-March  12 2025 Commission  Meeting.pdf

CAUTION:  External  Email

Good  morning,

Please  consider  this  message  and  its attached  agenda  packet  as public  comment  for  each  entity  to

record  at its  next  public  meeting.

After  tack  of  meaningful  response  to these  issues  from  Lewis  County  since  they  were  first  raised  in

February  I feel  compelled  to repeat  yesterdays  inquiry  a Little  louder:

In addition  to his  resignation  at  the  CJTC  announced  between  the  four  and  six  minute  mark  of  the  CJTC

meeting  3/12  prefacing  their  brief  discussion  of  the  public  comments  to  them  contained  in this  thread  as

weLL as their  agenda  packet,  has  Mr Snaza  or  does  Mr  Snaza  intend  to announce  his  local  resignation

effective  June  1 st  as well?

He  can  stand  back  and  stand  by  for  the  nazi  affiliate  he hired  all  he wants  - once  he's  no longer  a law

enforcement  official.

Thanks  for  addressing,

Kyle  WheeLer

District  3

On Thu, Mar 13, 2025, 8:58 AM KyLe WheeLer <kyle88wheeler(a)8mail.com>  wrote:
Good  morning

In addition  to his  resignation  at the  CJTC  announced  between  the  four  and  six  minute  mark  or the  CJTC

meeting  yesterday  prefacing  their  brief  discussion  of  the  public  comments  to  them  contained  in this

thread,  has  Mr Snaza  or does  Mr  Snaza  intend  to  announce  his  local  resignation  effective  June  1 st as

well?

He  can  stand  back  and  stand  by  for  the  nazi  affiliate  he hired  all  he wants  - once  he's  no Longer  a law

enforcement  official.

This  is public  comment  for  BOCC.

1



Kyle  WheeLer

District  3 Tribute

On  Tue,  Mar  11,  2025,  9:02  AM KyLe Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler(a)gmaiL.com>  wrote:

Hi again,

One  more  note  for  both  locally  and  up  north.

There  is an active  issue  with  the  CJTC  regarding  the  broken  windows  across  the  street  from  the  county

courthouse  which  Mr.  Swope  inserted  himself  to  view  the  courthouse  tapes  that  Lewis  County

destroyed  before  Law enforcement  could  view  them.

Part  of  my  concern  after  those  events  was  a radio  segment  that  had  aired  the  day  prior  and  featured  Mr.

Bo Rupert  - a person  who  had  threatened  me  previously,  had  tried  to  SWAT  me,  and  who  LCSO  Rubin

has  a complaint  for  not  contacting  me  about  the  situation  and  Lyingin  his  report  about  that.

But - I Sent 8 COp7  0f  the radiO  segment  wherein  Mr Rupert mentions  "doing  something  about  me" tO
LCSO  and  ChehaLis  PD shortly  after  the  incident.  KELA  promptly  deleted  it from  their  onLine  archives

and  there  is nowhere  I am  able  to  find  it any  more  - either  onLine  orin  any  of  the  officiaL  reporting

surrounding  thatincident.

Failing  to  include  this  information  in any  report  Or lOOkingintO  it at  all  iS a grOSS miscarriage  Of jUStiCe,

especiaLly  considering  LCPAO  zealous  investigation  and  buiLding  of  other  cases  affer.

Please  ensure  the  attached  recording  originally  sent  to  Law  enforcement  in 2023  is in fact

attached  to  any  of  the  official  Law  enforcement  records  of  the  incidents  which  occurred  shortly

after  this  radio  segment  back  then.

Thanks,

KyLe Wheeler

CJTC  2024-0012841

CJTC  2024-0012848

Have  also  spoken  with  Swainson  by  phone  about  some  of  these  issues  in November  2023  though  I

don't  know  how  much  I was  heard  at  the  time.

On  Mon,  Mar  10,  2025  at  8:09  AM  KyLe WheeLer  <kyle88wheeLer(a)gmail.com>  wrote:

Thank  you  Ryan.

I obviousLy  have  justified  concerns  with  this  not  being  taken  seriously  Locally,  similar  to  the  concern  of

LeWiS  COunty'S  apathy  tOWard  the  K9 fund  donations  COtleCted  While  advertising  disgraced  former

officer  Humphrey's  business.

Not  to  mention  Commissioner  Swopes  continued  insertion  and  meddLingin  the  tapes  and  records

throughout  some  of  these  concerns.

2



Myinitial  comment  and  record  request  sent  this  morning  should  still  be addressed  and  I wiLL continue

to follow  up LocaLLy.

Thanks,

Kyle

On Mon,  Mar  10,  2025,  7:59  AM Ryan  Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett(a)Lewiscountywa.gov>  wrote:

Good  morning  Mr. WheeLer,

I do not  have any  further  comment  to provide.

Ryan  Barrett

Lewis  County  Manager

351 NW  North  Street

ChehaLis,  WA 98532

Ph: 360-7  40-2697

ryan.barrett(a)lewiscountywa.gov

From: Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@)zmail.com>
Sent: Monday,  March  10, 2025 7:35 AM

To: Rieva Lester  <Rieva.Lester@lewiscountywa.gov>;  Lauren  Caputo  Allen <Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov>

Cc: Ryan Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett@lewiscountywa.zov>;  Emily Fitzgerald  <emily@chronline.com>;  Eric Schwartz

<eschwartz@chronline.com>;  Lindsey  Pollock  <Lindsey.Pollock@Iewiscountywa.zov>;  Sean Swope

<Sean.Swope@Iewiscountywa.Bov>;  Scott  Brummer  <Scott.Brummer@Iewiscountywa.gov>

Subject:  Re: > - Investigation  Quote  clarification

Monday  Salutations,

FoLLowing  up  again  after  a lack  of  response  From  Ryan,  the  county  manager,  about  whether  there  is

further  comment  on this  issue  yet,  from  the  county,  when  I inquired  Last  week.  I understand  the

answer  is Likely  still  "no  comment"  but  it's  discourteous,  particularly  as the  county  manager,  to

leave  an inquiry  Like that  hanging  even  if you  don't  have  much  more  of an answer  yet.

3



Through  conversations  elsewhere,  the  CJTC  got  back  to me  with  all  of  their  emaiLs  between  anyone  at

a (a)Lewiscountywa.gov  account  and  them  related  to  these  concerns.  According  to  the  records  I was

provided  it Looks  Like Ms.  Willey  was  the  onlyperson  with  a (a)Lewiscountywa.gov  emaiL  to receive  a

copy  of  her  statement  of  charges  in Late november,  yet  somehow  Mr. Swope  was  discussing  it in

public  meetings  December  2nd  - Less than  a week  Later  - and  then  more  broadly  the  next  month.

If other  (ailewiscouuntywa.gov  addresses  were  included  in blind  copy  of  this  SOC  notice  from  the

CJTC,  they  were  not  provided  to me  in my  request.

As a public  records  request  for  lewis  county,  please  provide  any  and  all  correspondence  to include

emaiLs,  texts,  calL  Logs, carrier  pigeons  or  notes  passed  in the  halLway  for  any  and  all

communications  between  Erin  Willey  and  Commissioner  Swope  and/or  Robert  Snaza  from

November  26th  2024  at 11 :55:44  AM to February  6th  at 9 am  when  the  "newspaper"  posted  about  this

issue.  PLease  check  personal  devices  which  are  occasionally  used  to  conduct  county  or public

business  for  all  individuaLs  Listed  in this  request.

As this  relates  to pending  matters  (plural)  before  the  CJTC  and  potentiaLlyinappropriate  actions

taken  by elected  and  appointed  officials  not  shutting  the  fuck  up and  respecting  the  process  as I have

personally  tried  to  for  years  now,  please  also  consider  expediting  this  request  at  your  PRO's

discretion.

Rieva  - please  consider  this  my  pissed  off  comment  of  the  week.

Lauren  - just  keeping  Burien  apprised  on the  local  side  of  this.

Thanks,

KyLe, "tried  as request  to respect  the  process  until  Snaza  broke  the  contract",  WheeLer

On Mon,  Mar  3, 2025  at 8:17  AM Kyle  WheeLer  <kyLe88wheeLer(a)gmail.comb  wrote:

Good  Monday  Ryan,

Does  Lewis  county  have  further  comment  on these  public  comments  or clarification  of  where  the

lines  were  for  the  county  side  of  these  concerns  yet?

4



Awaiting  an  offiicat  entity  response  to  the  concerns  still.

Thanks,

Kyle  WheeLer

On  Fri,  Feb  21,  2025,  8:42  AM  Rieva  Lester  <Rieva.Lester(a)Lewiscountywa.gov>  wrote:

Hi KyLe -

This  confirms  receipt.  I wiLl  include  your  comments  in the  packet  for  next  week's  Business  Meeting.

Thanks,

Rieva  Lester,  CMC

Clerk  of  the  Board

Lewis  County  Board  of  County  Commissioners

351 N.W.  North  St.

Chehalis,  WA  98532

360-740-1419  I Rieva.Lester(5)lewiscountywa.gov

From: Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>
Sent:  Friday,  February  21, 2025  7:40  AM

To: Ryan Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett(a)Iewiscountywa.zov>;  Lauren Caputo Allen <Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.zov>;  Monica

Alexander  <monica.alexander@cjtc.wa.zov>;  AllVoices@cjtc.wa.@ov

Cc: Emily Fitzgerald <emily@chronline.com>;  Eric Schwartz  <eschwartz@chronline.com>;  Lindsey Pollock

<Lindsey.Pollock@Iewiscountywa.@ov>;  Sean Swope <Sean.Swope@Iewiscountywa.gov>;  Scott Brummer

<Scott.Brummer@Iewiscountywa.zov>;  Rieva Lester <Rieva.Lester@Iewiscountywa.zov>;  Robert Snaza

<Robert.Snaza@Iewiscountywa.zov>

Subject:  Re:  k  - Investigation  Quote  clarification

5



Hi again,

I realized  this  morningl  have  referenced  it but  never  actually  provided  your  bylaws  on this  record.

The  specific  area  of bylaw  violation  being  reference  is attached  and  the  full  bylaws  are  available

onLine  for  review  here.

Again,  if Mr.  Snaza  is unwilling  to address  his  constituent  concerns  locally,  please  make  sure  this

issue  is addressed  by the  commission  at  the  March  1 2th  meeting.

This  can  also  be considered  my  Local  public  comment  for  2/25/25.

Thanks  all,

KyLe WheeLer

Washington  State  Constituent

Public  representation  in person,  in the  media,  and  online

>  Commission  members  shall  not  speak  on behalf  of  tlie  Commission  in public  spaces

unless  authorized  to  do  so by the  Chair  or  Executive  Director.

y  Media  requests  for  comments  on behalf  of  the  Commission  (as opposed  to on behalf  of

an individual  Commission  members)  sliould  be immediately  forwarded  to  tl'ie  Chair  and

Executive  Director.

y  If expressing  opinions  about  the  Commission  in public  spaces  (including  online),

Commission  members  should  as a courlesy  to  the  exttnt  possible  comn'iunicate  first

with  the  Chair  and  Executiw  Director,  so tt'iey  have  notice  of  any  potential  media  or

public  inquiry  or response  about  the  matter.

y  As individuals,  Commission  members  will  use discretion  to  avoid  the  appearance  of

speaking  for  the  Con'imission,  unless  specifically  authorized  to  do so, by clearly

establishing  that  any  comn'ients,  postings,  or  other  related  communications  were  made

in their  personal  capacity.

;  As individuals,  Commission  members  shall  represent  the  Commission  in a professional

manner,  bott'i  externally  to  the  public  and  internally  with  other  Commission  inembers,

the  Execcitive  Director,  and  Commission  staff.

r  Commission  members  are  required  to  timely  communicate  to  the  Chair(s)  and  Executive

Director  any  material  event  related  to  their  qualifications  for  service  on  the  Commission.

>  Commission  members  shall  not  address  individual  certfication  matters  pending  before

On Wed,  Feb  19,  2025  at  2:39  PM KyLe WheeLer  <kyte88wheeler(Ei)gmail.com>  wrote:

Mrs.  Alexander,

6



If Mr  Snazaaa  is unwiLLing  to answer  Locally  and  directly  to  his constituents  as to  whose  hat  he

thought  he was  wearing  when  making  these  public  statements  on a matter  not  cLosed  at the  time

he made  comment,  I would  Like that  question  specificalLy  addressed  by the  CJTC  in its next

meeting  as part  of  the  broader  concern  of  this  commissioner  repeatedly  vioLating  CJTC  bylaws.

On  Wed,  Feb  19,  2025,  2:23  PM Kyle  WheeLer  <kyle88wheeler(a)gmaiL.com>  wrote:

Thanks  Ryan,  I'll  keep  checking  back.

Mr.  Snazaaai Still  aWaitin@  reply  from  '}Ou aS tO WhOSe  hat  70U thought  your  Were  Wearing-  the

county,  CJTC  or both  - with  these  statements.

On  Wed,  Feb 19,  2025,  2:19  PM Ryan  Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett(a)lewiscountywa.gov>  wrote:

Good  afternoon,  Kyle,

I do not  have  further  comment.

Thank  you,

Ryan Barrett

Lewis  County  Manager

351 NW  North  Street

Chehalis,  WA 98532

Ph:360-7  40-2697

ryan.barrett@lewiscountywa.gov

From:  Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>
Sent:  Tuesday,  February  18, 2025 8:00 AM

7



To: Ryan Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett@Iewiscountywa.gov>

Cc: Emily  Fitzgerald  <emily@chronline.com>;  Eric Schwartz  <eschwartz@chronline.com>;  Lindsey  Pollock

<Lindsey.Pollock@lewiscountywa.zov>;  Sean Swope  <Sean.Swope@Iewiscountywa.@ov>;  Scott  Brummer

<Scott.Brummer@Iewiscountywa.@ov>;  Rieva Lester  <Rieva.Lester@lewiscountywa.gov>;  Robert  Snaza

<Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.@ov>

Subject:  Re: > - Investigation  Quote  clarification

Hi Ryan,

Do  you  have  further  comment  on  this  matter  yet?  Beyond  Mr.  Swope  repeatedly  abusing  his

public  position  for  personal  vendettas  against  me  specifica((y,  Mr. Snaza  has  also  yet  to  clarify

for  anyone  whether  the  statements  he made  in the  "newspaper"  were  done  in his  official

capacity  as a CJTC  commissioner,  his  official  capacity  as lewis  county  sheriff,  or  both.  Mr.

Snaza  - please  clarify  for  the  public  which  agency's  authority  you  were  speaking  under  in

these  previous  comments.

Dr. Commissioner  - I may  aLso note  that  if you  gave  abso(uteLy  any  testimony  or otherwise

participated  in your  husbands  complaint  with  the  CJTC  in any  way,  which  persons  are

attempting  to  weaponize  against  you  now,  then  you  may  have  protections  under  the  sheriff

department's  anit-retaliation  and  whistLeblower  policy  which  is attached,  and/or  the  washington

state  Law(s)  which  that  policy  references.  You  may  note  the  anti-retaliation  policy  Language

specifically  refers  to  any  member  (an empLoyee  or administrator  of  LCSO)  taking  action  against

any  person  (a member  of  the  public  at Large)....  Do not  assume  because  you  are not  a member  of

LCSO  directly  that  this  policy  does  not  still  protect  you,  and  your  husband,  for  speaking  out  on

concerns  of locaL  government  wrongdoing.  This  policy  is written  to protect  any  person  who

comes  forward  as your  husband  braveLy  did.  I'm not  a lawyer  obviously  but  you  may  wish  to

retain  private  Legal  guidance  here  as your  employer  seems  more  interested  in covering  up  these

toxic  work  environment  issues  you're  toLerating  with  a level  of  grace  people,  respectfully,  don't

deserve  anymore  since  these  repeated  issue  keep  being  swept  under  the  rug.

Thanks  for  any  further  updates  Lewis  County  can  provide  on these  matters  at this  time.

Kyle  Wheeler

On  Thu,  Feb 13,  2025  at 9:23  AM Ryan  Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett(a)lewiscountywa.gov>  wrote:

I acknowLedge  your  concerns  regarding  Commissioner  Swope;  however,  I will  not  provide  further

comment  related  to the  matter  at this  time.

8



Thank  you,

Ryan Barrett

Lewis  County  Manager

351 NW  North  Street

Chehalis.  WA  98532

Pt1: 360-7  40-2697

ryan.barrett(a)lewiscountywa.gov

From:  Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@zmail.com>
Sent:  Thursday,  February  13, 2025 8:16 AM

To: Ryan Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett@Iewiscountywa.zov>

Cc: Emily Fitzgerald  <emily@chronline.com>;  Eric Schwartz  <eschwartz@chronline.com>;  Lindsey  Pollock

<Lindsey.Pollock@lewiscountywa.gov>;  Sean Swope  <Sean.Swope@lewiscountywa.gov>;  Scott  Brummer

<Scott.Brummer@Iewiscountywa.gov>;  Rieva Lester  <Rieva.Lester@Iewiscountywa.gov>;  Robert  Snaza

<Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.zov>

Subject:  Re: > - Investigation  Quote  clarification

Thankyou.

I'm of  the  opinion  Rieva  is the  most  competent  person  on all  of Lewis  county's  payroll  and  wiLl

totally  record.  No  worries  there.

I was  actually  more  seeking  a PIO statement  from  you,  as the  county  manager  who  manages

these  things,  about  the  county's  intent  to  address  the  appearance(s)  of impropriety  with  its

commissioner  here.

On Thu,  Feb  13,  2025,  8:12  AM Ryan  Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett(a)Lewiscountywa.gov>  wrote:

Good  morning  KyLer WheeLer.  I am in receipt  of your  emaiL  and will  forward  it along  to ensure  it is

included  in written  public  comment  for  the  Feb 1 8'h meeting.

9



Ryan  Barrett

Lewis  County  Manager

351 NW  North  Street

Chehalis.  WA  98532

Ph: 360-7  40-2697

ryan.barrett(aiLewiscountywa.gov

From:  Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@zmail.com>
Sent: Thursday,  February  13, 2025 8:06 AM

Cc: Emily Fitzgerald  <emily@chronline.com>;  Eric Schwartz  <eschwartz@chronline.com>;  Lindsey Pollock

<Lindsey.Pollock@Iewiscountywa.zov>;  Sean Swope  <Sean.Swope@Iewiscountywa.@ov>;  Scott  Brummer

<Scott.Brummer@Iewiscountywa.gov>;  Rieva Lester  <Rieva.Lester@Iewiscountywa.Bov>;  Robert  Snaza

<Robert.Snaza@Iewiscountywa.zov>;  Ryan Barrett  <Ryan.Barrett@Iewiscountywa.@ov>

Subject:  Re: ,> - Investigation  Quote  clarification

Apologies,  this  draft  shouLd  have  been  attached  to  the  previous  reply  for  reference.  Please

include.

Thanks.

On Thu, Feb 13, 2025 at 7:23 AM KyLe WheeLer  <ky(e88wheeler(%maiL.com>  wrote:

Hi again

This  response  and  the  preceding  thread  in its  entirety  can  be considered  pub(ic  comment  for

February  1 8th  2025.

It is disappointing  to  see  county  management  cannot  simply  acknowledge  a concern  in a

timely  manner.  I do have  other  options  to  draw  attention  to  this  concern  if Lewis  County  does

not  wish  to address  it directly.

10



Whenever  any  legal  voter  of  the  state  or  of  any  political  subdivision  thereof,  eitherindividually

Or On behalf  Of an organization,  desires  tO demand  the  recall  and  discharge  Of any  elective

pubLic  officer  of  the  state  or  of  such  politicaL  subdivision,  as the  case  may  be,  under  the

provisions  of sections  33 and  34 of  ArticLe  1 of  the  Constitution,  the  voter  shall  prepare  a

typewritten  charge,  reciting  that  such  officer,  naming  him  or  her  and  giving  the  title  of  the

office,  has  committed  an act  or acts  of  malfeasance,  or  an act  or  acts  of  misfeasance  while  in

office,  or has  violated  the  oath  of  office,  or has  been  guilty  of  any  two  or more  of  the  acts

specified  in the  Constitution  aS  grounds  far  recall.  The  charge  Shall  State  the  aCt Or  aCtS

complained  ofin  concise  language,  give  a detaiLed  description  incLuding  the  approximate

date,  Location,  and  nature  of  each  act  complained  of,  be signed  by  the  person  or persons

making  the  charge,  give  their  respective  post  office  addresses,  and  be verified  under  oath  that

the  person  or persons  believe  the  charge  or charges  to be true  and  have  knowledge  of  the

alleged  facts  upon  which  the  stated  grounds  for  recall  are based.

If Lewis  County  would  Like to  address  its  commissioner  using  public  resources  for  personal

vendettas  and  Little  more  quietly  before  reaching  that  point,  pleaee  Let me  know.

Thanks  for  listening,

KyLe Wheeler

District  3 tribute

On Wed, Feb 12, 2025, 8:45 AM Kyle WheeLer <kyLe88wheeler(a)8mail.com>  wrote:

My  conversations  with  other  agencies  have  moved  eLsewhere  regarding  their  roles  and

expectations  with  their  commissionerin  this  incident.

From  the  county  side  though,  Mr.  Barrett,  p(ease  promptly  acknowlegde  the  ethics  concern

or  your  commissioner  cintained  in this  thread  and  the  potential  abuse  of  public  resources  to

target  a complainam,  of  which  Mr.  Swope  is named  in at least  one  of  those  compLaims

regarding  his  invoLvment  in viewing  courthouse  records  prior  to their  destruction  or

collection  by legitimate  law  enforcement.

How  does  Lewis  Countyintend  to  address  the  litany  of  appearances  oTimpropriety  here  and

your  commissioner  using  public  resources  to attempt  to look  into  cases  in which  he is

technically  involved?

11



Thansk  for  acknowLedging.

On Mon,  Feb 10,  2025,  12:02  PM KyLe WheeLer  <kyLe88wheeLer(a)gmail.com>  wrote:

Hi again,

Brief  follow  up  - in the  attached  report  from  CJTC  today  regarding  public  records  requests

they  have  received  the  last  jew  months,  it appears  Mr. Swope  is using  county  resources,

incLuding  his  county  email  address,  to  submit  records  requests  against  citizens  he wishes

to  target  for  speaking  up.

Can  lewis  county  commissioner  swope  refrain  from  using  public  resources  for  his

personal  vendettas  and  perhaps  do  these  requests  on  his  own  time  with  his  own

email?

Also  - I don't  see  any  requests  in here  about  the  pol(ock  case  prior  to Mr  Swope  reading  it on

the  record  which  begs  the  question  - who  told  him?  CJTC  Commissioner  Snaza,  did  you

discuss  the  PoLLock  comp(aint  with  Mr.  Swope  prior  to January  7th  when  he read  it on  the

record?  The  only  request  about  Ms.  WiLLeyin  the  last  few  months  I see  in this  report  were

submitted  by Ms.  Fitzgerald,  ironically  using  the  original  complaint  number  and  not

pollocks,  after  M r. Swope  read  the  poLlock  complaint  onto  the  record  prior  to its

determinationbut.....buthow,exactly,  didMr.Swopeknowthatinformationifitwasnot

obtained  through  official  channels?

Thanks,

KyLe WheeLer

On Mon,  Feb  10,  2025  at 6:47  AM KyLe WheeLer  <kyle88wheeter(a)gmaiL.com>  wrote:

Good  monday  to you  all,

I feel  compelled  to summarize  some  things  in public  comment  and  be abundantly  clear

on some  recent  concerns  in hopes  we  can  promptly  address  the  potential  violation(s)  by

WSCJTC  Commissioner  Snaza  quicker  than  the  two  and  a half  years  it will  have  taken

12



by the  end  to resolve  the  complaint  which  Messrs.  Snaza  & Swope  are  bleating  so sadly

over  and targeting  the  wrong  complainant  about  in their  outburst.

The  chronicle  reporting  from  last  week  referenced  at the  beginning  of  this  thread

specifically  mentioned:

"Snaza  said  Jan.  24 that  he  believed  Scott  Pollock's  complaint  against  Willey  is

Ilgoing  nowhere"  because"it's  not  a valid  complaint."

The  CJTC  notified  the  Lewis  County  Sheriff's  Office  on Jan.  29 that  it  had  finished

reviewing  Scott  Pollock's  complaint  and  determined  that  the  alleged  conduct

does  not  invoke  the  CJTC's  jurisdiction.

This  specific  quote  and  the  date  media  appears  to have  interviewed  Snaza  compared  to

the  date  Lewis  County  Sheriff's  Office  appears  to have  received  a determination  notice

may  show  a violation  of  WSCJTC  Chapter  7 Policy  03 as it was  recited  to me  by

Communications  Manager  Quinlan  last  week.  This  media  reporting  appears  to show

WSCJTC  Commissioner  Snaza  choosing  to "discuss  with  others  certification  matters

under  review,  investigation,  or  consideration  for  agency  action  by  a hearings  panel"

prior  to the  WSCJTC's  notification  of  the  Pollock  complaint  determination  sent  to LCSK

as well  as Mr. Snaza's"opine  publicly  about  certification  matters."  when  discussing  the

2022  complaint  of Erin  Willey  which  is still  under  review  by a hearings  panel.

That  complaint  had nothing  to do with  Mr. Pollock,  respectfully,  and neither  he nor  his

wife  deserve  to be targeted  in this  manner  over  it - nor  does  any  other  complainant

brave  enough  to attempt  to come  to the  WSCJTC  about  anything  they  find  concerning

enough  to take  the  risk  of  coming  to WSCJTC  about.

Snaza  also  blurred  the  lines  of  his multiple  hats  both  locally  and  at WSCJTC  during  his

public  opinions  on the  2022  Willey  matter  still  before  a hearings  panel,  such  as the

printed  statements  'Tve  been  on those  boards.  That  is a long  process,  and  to get  a

hearing  takes  several  months.  We're  not  there  yet,"  as well  as "And  iflever  thought  that

a deputy  was  going  to be decertified  for  some  reason,  / would  have  terminated  them

myself  before  we ever  get  to that,  andldon't  believe  that  is the case  with  Deputy

Willey."  and  also  "rm going  to support  her  the  whole  way  through.".  Mr. Snaza  must

know  his local  agency  has  not  yet  received  a determination  notice  from  WSCJTC

regarding  C22-131.  But  then  also,  his being  a WSCJTC  commissioner  he must  also

know,  affer  last  years  specific  coaching,  to be very  clear  of  what  hat  he is wearing  and

is not  wearing  when  making  such  statements  publicly.

These  quotes  appear  to be policy  violations  by WSCJTC  Commissioner  Snaza  and  they

deserve  a swift  and  formal  censure  from  WSCJTC  at this  point.  I have  been  trying  hard

to bite  my  tongue  as was  requested  of  me some  time  ago  by WSCJTC  and  I have  tried

to honor  that  solely  out  of  personal  respect  for  the  specific  person  who  asked  and

despite all the r3  different  and  events, and buried  concerns,
myself  and  my  community  have  had  to bite  tongues  about  since  2022.  But  it's really

gross  to go through  all that  and see  this  commissioner  pull this  crap  on a complainant,

the  wrong  one  even,  after  all this.

13



This  man  will  stop  treating  people  in my  community  like  this  if I have  to move  the  entire

earth  to stop  it.

Last  week  I also  requested  Lewis  County  investigate  their  local  whistleblower  and/or

complaint  retaliation  policies  as they  may  app!y  to the  perceived  targeting  of  Mr.

Pollock's  wife  in her  workplace  with  Mr. Snaza  that  may  be happening  here,  but  since

Mr. Snaza  is also  a WSCJTC  commissioner,  I would  also  request  the  WSCJTC  formally

investigate  these  apparent  attempts  by its commissioner  to retaliate  or  publicly

disparage  a complainant,  going  so far  as discussing  that  complainants  case  with  local

media  prior  to a WSCJTC  determination  having  been  transmitted.  Additionally,  please

investigate  or address  the  concern  of  WSCJTC  Commissioner  Snaza  giving  public

opinion  to local  media  on the  2022  matter  still  pending  before  a hearings  panel.

Communications  Manaqer  Quinlan:  Seperate  from  all that,  can  you  please  clarify

something  for  me briefly  please?  I'll try  to give  you  the  footnotes.  It was  my

understanding  that  Ms. Willey's  final  hearing  in July  is the  last  chance  to argue  that  she

should  still remain  a certified  officer  despite  having  filmed  a gang  initiation  ritual  during  a

mutually  abusive  relationship  with  an extremist,  selling  merchandise  to aid in the  growth

of  that  budding  organization,  and lied to her  employer  about  the  circumstances  of  that

for  a year,  but  if she  is able  to sells  all that  to the  hearings  panel  and  remain  a certified

officer  affer  all this  it was  my  understanding  WSCJTC  may  then  reconsider  reopening

subsequent  concerns  that  were  filed  against  this  person  affer  the  original  2022

complaint  and  that  these  subsequent  complaint(s)  may  have  been  preemptively  closed

already  based  upon  WSCJTC's  presumption  that  Ms. Willey's  likelihood  of  remaining

certified  after  this  hearing  are  so astronomically  low  that  any  further  investigation(s)  of

any  other  complaint(s)  seemed  wasteful  of  this  agency's  valued  time  and resources.

Please  advise  if I have  somehow  been  misinformed  or misunderstood  the  functions  that

were  explained  to me.

Brief  lewis  county  specific  note  for  my  own  sense  of peace  someday  - i just  need  to

mention  this  journalist  has  had  clear  and specific  knowledge  of  the  original  complaint

that  resulted  in Willey's  decertification  proceedings  from  the  day  that  complaint  was

submitted  and  the  prosecutor's  reply  to a question  on the  metrics  shortly  affer,  yet  this

journalist  chose  to ignore  the  original  concern  for  years  now  only  to publish  these  half

truths  and pathetic  political  attacks  toward  the  Pollocks  for  daring  speak  out  on one  of

many  experiences  in Lewis  County's  disgustingly  long  list of  diabolical  experiences

under  the  Snaza  administration,  including  Mr. Snaza's  lasting  legacy  of  enablement  of

other  unworthy  administrators  locally.  I just  needed  to say  for  the  record  it makes  me

incredibly  sad  to see  how  far  this  journalist  has  fallen  in all this.

Lastly,  and  this  is just  a suggestion  at this  fork  in the road,  but  perhaps  a swiff

resignation  from  Mr. Snaza,  from  this  commission  and/or  profession,  may  be the  easiest

route  for  all of us to save  the  same  valuable  time  and resources  briefly  mentioned

above.  Until  that  day  comes  though,  please  address  the  question  to Quin!an  regarding

the  way  yall  are  handling  these  subsequent  complaints,  and please  provide  me  with

regular  updates  on how  WSCJTC  intends  to address  these  policy  violation  concerns

surrounding  its commissioner  and  the  perceptions  of his retaliation  towards  a

complainant  here.

I'll be sure  to follow  up regularly  if I don't  hear  back  in a reasonable  time.  Thanks  for

listening,

14



Kyle  WheeLer

On Fri, Feb  7, 2025  at 8:20  AM KyLe Wheeter  <kyLe88wheeler(a)gmaiL.com>  wrote:

Tabitha,

You  have  an outstanding  request  for  a GovQA  report  of  the  verbiage  and  date  of  all

records  requests  you  have  received  recently.  I am  hoping  you  can  expedite  that  before  the

weekend  so I can  confirm  Lewis  county  commissioner  Sean  swope  went  through  proper

channels  to obtain  the  information  about  Mr.  Pollock's  case  which  he brought  up at  the

beginning  of  this  year  without  reaLizing  Mr. PoLLock  concerns  were  the...  third  (?) in Line

with  concerns.

HopefuLly  one  of  those  being  (re)investigated  by  someone  besides  Garcia  at  this  point

given  the  Honcoop  disaster.

But  if there  is no documentation  of persons  obtaining  that  information  through  proper

channels  for  mr  swope  to have  brought  up in the  manner  he did,  the  policy  and  bylaw

violation  concern  expressed  here  will  also  include  a concern  that  the  cjct's  commissioner

may  be divulginginformation  through  improper  channels.

Basically,  if you  can  expedite  that  report  request  it will  show  if or  how  Mr Swope  obtained

the  information  he attempted  tO weaponize  against  hiS seatmate  here.

Thanks.

KyLe Wheeler

Complainant  1

On Thu,  Feb  6, 2025,  5:32  PM Kyle  Wheeler  <kyLe88wheeler(a)gmail.com>  wrote:

Thanks  David.

15



I may  also  refer  you  to  the  CJTC  bylaw  violation  in June  2024  where  commissioner  snaza

was  speaking  out  of  place  at community  events  and  implying  CJTC  backing  of  his

statements  as happened  again  here.  It's  my  understanding  snaza  was  given  legal

coaching  about  these  concerns  previously.

The  commission  meeting  where  this  issue  was  discussed  previously  was  June  1 2th

2024.

Beyond  checking  with  mr  snaza  directly,  please  also  consider  this  a formal  complaint  to

the  cjtc  to  formally  address  the  perception  of  repeated  violations  of  your  bylaws,  after

coaching  on  the  subject,  by  this  commissioner.

Have  a great  vacation!

On  Thu,  Feb  6, 2025,  5:22  PM QuinLan,  David  (CJTC)  <david.quinLan(Ei)cjtc.wa.gov>  wrote:

Hi KyLe, it is good  to meet  you  virtually.

I'm  getting  up to speed  on this,  so I appreciate  your  patience.

Regarding  your  first  question,  WSCJTC  cannot  speak  to  the  capacityin  which

Commissioner  Snaza  made  his  statement.  You  will  need  to reach  out  to  him  directly  for

clarification.

As  jor  your  second  question,  WSCJTC  Chapter  7 Policy  03 on conflicts  ofinterest

provides  Commissioners  must  not  make  inquiries  about  or otherwise  discuss  with

Commission  staff  or  discuss  with  others  certification  matters  under  review,

investigation,  or consideration  for  agency  action  by a hearings  panel,  nor  opine  publicly

about  certification  matters.

Our  Certification  Bureau,  however,  often  contacts  Police  Chiefs  and  Sheriffs,  in their

capacity  as the  heads  of  their  agencies,  regarding  the  status  of  certification  cases

pending  against  their  officers  or deputies.

16



I hope  this  helps!  I'm  on my  way  out  of  town  until  next  week,  but  please  feel  free  to

reach  out  to me  directly  for  any  future  media  or public  records  inquiries.

Let  me  know  if you  need  any  further  clarification.

Best,

-David

David  Quinlan

Communications  Manager

Washington  State  Criminal  Justice  Training  Commission

Z
DireCt:  (206)  835-7358

Cell:  (206)  206-887-2259

david.quinlan(a)cltc.wa.gov

www.cjtc.wa.zov

From:  Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday,  February  6, 2025 4:32 PM

To: Caputo  Alien,  Lauren  (aTC)  <Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov>

Cc: Quinlan,  David (CJTC) <david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.zov>

Subject:  Re: > - Investigation  Quote  clarification

l'

I
,l

!
External  Email

17



Appreciate  you  enormously  and  sorry  if I make  you  want  to  drink  sometimes.

Hi David!  I am  also  available  to  chat  at  503-801-5226  about  this  when  you  have  better

answers  if that  is easier.

On  Thu,  Feb  6, 2025  at  4:27  PM  Caputo  Alien,  Lauren  (CJTC)

<Lauren.ALLen(a)cjtc.wa.gov>  wrote:

Kyle,

To answer  your  question  about  CJTC  having  a new  PIO,  I want  to  introduce  you  to  David

Quinlan,  our  agency  Communications  Manager.  I also  passed  along  the  rest  of  your  emaiL  for

David  to  get  back  to  you  when  he has  an answer.

Thankyou,

Lauren  Allen

Community  Liaison  Manager  l Certification
ujaSh:ngtOn  Stare  Critfflnal  lLIStiCe  rrJin:rig  (OITlnTlSSIOn

Phone:  206 551-5490

Email:  lauren.allen@)cjtc.wa.Hov

From: Kyle Wheeler  <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>
Sent:  Thursday,  February  6, 2025 2:58  PM

To: Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC) <Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov>;  Rob Snaza

<robert.snaza@lewiscountywa.zov>;  AllVoices  (CJTC) <cjtcallvoices@cjtc.wa.Hov>;  Emily Fitzgerald

<emily@chronline.com>;  Lindsey Pollock <lindsey.pollock@lewiscountywa.gov>

Subject:  > - Investigation  Quote  clarification

External  EmaiL

18



Commissioner  snaza  is quoted  in this  article  as saying  he has been  "workingwith  the

cjtc"  regardingthewilleydecertification.

PLeaee  clarify  for  the  public  promptly  whether  this  was  a quote  gjven  in his capacity  as

sheriff,  imnhis  capacity  as cjtc  commissioner,  or both.

Please  also  clarify  if Mr. Sanza  has  violated  conflict  ofinterest  protocol  by being

invoLving  himselfin  the  cjtc  investigation(s)  of a employee  within  his agency.

I do not  know  if the  CJTC has  a new  PIO yet,  but  if so please  Let me know.

C22-131  as wetL as pending  snaza  concern.

Thanks.

https://www.chronLine.com/stories/lewis-county-sheriff-alleges-retaliation-by-

commissioner-who-claims-recent-promotion-amounts-to,374988

t=xternat

ig



    NOTICE:  This meeting will be recorded. 

 Welcome Chair Sapp 

 Roll Call Stephanie Huffman 

 Chair’s Report
• Public Comment

Chair Sapp 

 Director’s Report

• Use of Force Presentation

• Certification Report

Executive Director Alexander 
CDT Program Manager 
Peterson 

Assistant Director Bliss 

 New Business
• December 2024 Meeting Minutes

• Conflict of Interest Policy

Chair Sapp 

Assistant Director 
Bliss/Kayla Wold 

• WAC 139-03-030 Extension Requests
 Washington State Patrol

 Colfax Police Department

Captain Robert Sharpe 

Chief Michael Melcher 

• Variance Request

• C-ME Advanced Medicolegal Forensic
Investigation Training Attendance Policy

Certification Operations 
Division Manager Jenkins-
Weaver 

Jennifer Pendray 

 Adjourn Chair Sapp 

Washington State 

Criminal Justice Training Commission 
Location:  WSCJTC Commission Room, Burien WA and Zoom 

Commission Chair:  
Chief Penelope Sapp, Kitsap County Jail 
Phone: 360/337-4514 
Email: 
penelope.sapp@commissioner.cjtc.wa.gov 

Commission Vice Chair:  
Tim Reynon, Tribal Representative,  
Puyallup Tribe 
Phone: 253/ 363-6129 
Email:  
tim.reynon@commissioner.cjtc.wa.gov 

Executive Director:  
Monica Alexander, WSCJTC 
Phone: 206/835-7372 
Email: monica.alexander@cjtc.wa.gov 

Executive Assistant:  
Stephanie Huffman, WSCJTC 
Phone: 206/835-7372 
Email: stephanie.huffman@cjtc.wa.gov 

March 12, 2025 – 10:00 a.m. 



From: Kyle Wheeler
To: Rieva Lester; Lindsey Pollock; Scott Brummer; Sean Swope
Cc: AllVoices (CJTC); Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC); Eric Schwartz; Emily Fitzgerald
Subject: Re: Complaint - Rob Snaza
Date: Saturday, January 25, 2025 7:48:54 AM

External Email

Salutations, 

Since Lewis County Commissioner Sean Swope felt it appropriate to discuss pending CJTC
issues he has little knowledge of the scope of recently in Lewis County's public meetings  -
please make sure this thread in its entirety is recorded as public comment for next meeting at
each of your commissions. 

It's my understanding through public discourse that CJTC Commissioner Snaza sold his house
within weeks of this complaint being filed and public speculation is he intends to leave the
state this year. To be clear, I don't believe the complaint and house sale are directly related
though he may have seen the writing on the walls already, but if Mr. Snaza is already prepared
and packed anyways, can he just surrender his certification and resign now and save us all the
time of another dragged out case like Erin Willey whom CJTC Commissioner Snaza hired
roughly 7 months after he began publicly supporting these extremist and their rallies
mentioned in his complaint?

Thanks for listening, 

Kyle Wheeler 
Washington Constituent

On Wed, Oct 23, 2024 at 12:52 PM Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com> wrote:
I would like to file a complaint against Lewis County Sheriff and CJTC Commissioner
Robert Snaza. 

In this video from 2020 during some of the anti government protests at Spiffy's restaurant
organized by Patriot Prayer and attended by Washington 3%, Lewis County Sheriff and
CJTC Commissioner Rob Snaza is quoted at the one minute mark as saying "I support
Spiffy's. And I know we have laws out there, we have all these things going on, but at the
same time, what is right and what is wrong? We need to stand up for our constitutional
rights." Emphasis added by me. The news segment ends with Joey Gibson of Patriot Prayer
in front of Lewis County Courthouse being specifically cited as the "restaurant rally
organizer". I don't know if this moniker was referring to the courthouse rally at the end of
december 2020, the restaurant rallys for the month prior to that culmination, or both. But
they were rally(s) which Mr. Snaza expressed support for which were organized by known
extremist group(s). You may also find other videos of the spiffy's protests in the month
leading up to the courthouse rally but I would highlight this one here where a local journalist
was chased out by a man acting in an aggressive manner and claiming to have "the cops on

mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com
mailto:Rieva.Lester@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:lindsey.pollock@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:scott.brummer@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:sean.swope@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:cjtcallvoices@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:eschwartz@chronline.com
mailto:emily@chronline.com
mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fm.kimatv.com%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fprotesters-rally-for-eatery-not-adhering-to-covid-19-restriction&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338012089%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ey7j9EC%2FSYVW4cAC6Zpud0e%2BiELjpAWRKwSWf92kMVs%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fwatch%2F%3Fv%3D684993712207337&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338034069%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gaQRK715lSjh8sZhDNZ%2BrPCRVKvrBncT0nLLRwJys%2BY%3D&reserved=0


you" to the person he was intimidating.  

Locally, the chronicle newspaper appears to have removed most of their photos from
reporting about those protests, though it looks like their sister paper the reflector did not
remove all them so photos specifically showing persons wearing 3%er clothing (the gray
sweaters and the mand in camo pants and brown cap) and other insignia in attendance can be
seen here in addition to Patriot Prayer's documented organizing of some of the events. I do
also have a photo of another person being chased away that day with guns actually being
drawn on them by some of the same individuals who chased this photojournalist  - that
photo is attached to this complaint. 

During the same month of protests at Spiffy's restaurant leading up to the courthouse protest
"an organization" which to my knowledge was never publicly identified as anything but "an
organization" created a fake letter using Snaza's name and the Washington State Sheriff's
Association letterhead in an attempt to intimidate business owners into allowing people to
break a law that organization, and allegedly separately from them, Mr. Snaza disagreed with.
Mr. Snaza promptly disavowed the public use of his name for this letter but affiliating
enough with "an organization" they would assume such support in crafting such a letter is
also concerning especially when no one ever really ever answered exactly *what*
organization they were referencing during all that. Some reporting on that can be seen
here though most Seattle news outlets ran some version of coverage if an investigator were
to google "snaza fake letter" for additional perspectives. The following summer the county's
own logo was similarly appropriated for a similar agenda here (the photo of Svenson
saluting over it on stage still haunts me) and I had a clash with the prosecutor about that
which finally ended here - this is only mentioned for context of a local pattern and because it
will likely come up anyways so I'm happy to discuss that aspect and why I took it as far as I
did  - which was that I didn't like actual nazis appropriating my governments image and
when Swope shat in the metaphorical temple, I simply returned the gesture. 

I have two concerns under RCW 43.101.105 that I would like this complaint to please
address: 

43.101.105 (i) Has affiliation with one or more extremist organizations  - Does
Snaza publicly expressing support for the rally(s) organized by Patriot Prayer
and attended by 3% meet the requirement of affiliation with these extremist
organizations? How does the allegedly fake letter penned under Snaza's name
by another,  never named, organization around this same time factor into that
consideration? 

43.101.105 (j)(iv) Engaged in any conduct or pattern of conduct that: Fails to
meet the ethical and professional standards required of a peace officer or
corrections officer; disrupts, diminishes, or otherwise jeopardizes public trust or
confidence in the law enforcement profession and correctional system; or
demonstrates an inability or unwillingness to uphold the officer's sworn oath to
enforce the Constitution and laws of the United States and the state of
Washington. - Does Snaza's previous statements and actions surrounding these
concern, particularly his refusal to enforce the law and refusal to provide L&I
assistance to enforce the law, meet the requirements of demonstrating an
'unwillingness to uphold the sworn oath to enforce the Constitution and laws of

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.thereflector.com%2Fstories%2Fspiffys-restaurant-becomes-lightning-rod-for-protest-of-states-covid-19-restrictions%2C266441&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338048738%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4oW7Iy3iBMf3HEoKpGdsrpMtvaTg4UxROy%2FLtqtOcY0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DtXmNFiOtCvM&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338061129%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qCBG7QHyA0x6ZyHGmAMmpZpBm%2FWlrKnkdrt3%2B%2Fvh1JE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Fresistance-to-covid-mandates-mounts-in-lewis-county%2C271018%23google_vignette&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338073152%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GjBHCS1R9BraZYRZNxL8laASsCZ4HtPm%2FvsTtm88OMM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Fclash-over-lewis-countys-logo-comes-to-an-end%2C295243&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338085518%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=59xMtubXz18sFZVSaJDA2gfLT70aZVPFF6sH%2FR%2F6cvQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.adl.org%2Fresources%2Fbackgrounder%2Fthree-percenters&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338097881%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VoE4KS1J7QV9PPRs%2BS9mo1z9qLGp55xPkK%2FYQtvqvhY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fextremismterms.adl.org%2Fglossary%2Fpatriot-prayer&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C2d5309bdfffa41ee6ffc08dd3d57c2b6%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638734169338109971%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=2NqjqZLtUFMfVyYij1Qa7Jtly1Ys%2FqWEkU2UvjCmRP4%3D&reserved=0


the United States and the state of Washington'? Specifically making public
statements such as "I know we have laws.... BUT.....". Do such statements
disregarding the law on a personal whim not demonstrate an unwillingness to
enforce laws which Lewis County Sheriff and CJTC Commissioner Snaza
disagrees with or personally interprets as unconstitutional? There are laws I
disagree with or could interpret as wrong BUT I am still obliged to follow them
along with everyone else. 

I don't care about anonymity and I am available for further questions should an
investigator have them.

Thanks, 

Kyle Wheeler



From: Kyle Wheeler
To: Quinlan, David (CJTC); Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC); Alexander, Monica (CJTC); AllVoices (CJTC);

robert.snaza@commissioner.cjtc.wa.gov
Cc: Emily Fitzgerald; Eric Schwartz; Lindsey Pollock; Sean Swope; Scott Brummer; Rieva Lester; Rob Snaza; Ryan

Barrett
Subject: Re:  - Investigation Quote clarification
Date: Monday, February 10, 2025 6:49:01 AM
Attachments: Meyer Reply 12.27.22 -Certification complaint of Erin Willey.pdf

Meyer Reply 2.26.24.pdf

External Email

Good monday to you all,    

I feel compelled to summarize some things in public comment and be abundantly
clear on some recent concerns in hopes we can promptly address the potential
violation(s) by WSCJTC Commissioner Snaza quicker than the two and a half years
it will have taken by the end to resolve the complaint which Messrs. Snaza & Swope
are bleating so sadly over and targeting the wrong complainant about in their
outburst. 

The chronicle reporting from last week referenced at the beginning of this thread
specifically mentioned:
-
"Snaza said Jan. 24 that he believed Scott Pollock’s complaint against Willey is
“going nowhere” because “it’s not a valid complaint.”

The CJTC notified the Lewis County Sheriff’s Office on Jan. 29 that it had
finished reviewing Scott Pollock’s complaint and determined that the alleged
conduct does not invoke the CJTC’s jurisdiction.
-
This specific quote and the date media appears to have interviewed Snaza compared
to the date Lewis County Sheriff's Office appears to have received a determination
notice may show a violation of WSCJTC Chapter 7 Policy 03 as it was recited to me
by Communications Manager Quinlan last week. This media reporting appears to
show WSCJTC Commissioner Snaza choosing to "discuss with others certification
matters under review, investigation, or consideration for agency action by a hearings
panel" prior to the WSCJTC's notification of the Pollock complaint determination sent
to LCSK as well as Mr. Snaza's "opine publicly about certification matters.” when
discussing the 2022 complaint of Erin Willey which is still under review by a hearings
panel. 

That complaint had nothing to do with Mr. Pollock, respectfully, and neither he nor his
wife deserve to be targeted in this manner over it - nor does any other complainant
brave enough to attempt to come to the WSCJTC about anything they find concerning
enough to take the risk of coming to WSCJTC about. 

mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com
mailto:david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:monica.alexander@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:cjtcallvoices@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:robert.snaza@commissioner.cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:emily@chronline.com
mailto:eschwartz@chronline.com
mailto:lindsey.pollock@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:sean.swope@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:scott.brummer@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:Rieva.Lester@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:robert.snaza@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:Ryan.Barrett@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:Ryan.Barrett@lewiscountywa.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Flewis-county-sheriff-alleges-retaliation-by-commissioner-who-claims-recent-promotion-amounts-to%2C374988&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409597687%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=duzhfYxHKt0BixFgAbH9zi9VECGvs8lXD75kADS1Fb8%3D&reserved=0



Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>


Certification complaint of Erin Willey
Jonathan Meyer <Jonathan.Meyer@lewiscountywa.gov> Tue, Dec 27, 2022 at 8:52 AM
To: Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>, Robert Snaza <Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.gov>, Emily Fitzgerald
<emily@chronline.com>, Amber Smith <amber.smith@lewiscountywa.gov>


Hiring dates are something the Sheriff’s Office would have, not the Prosecutor’s Office.


 


Jonathan L. Meyer


Lewis County Prosecutor


345 W. Main, Fl. 2


Chehalis, WA 98532


(360) 740-2638 (Desk)


 


    


 


This email and any attachments may be confidential and/or protected by legal privilege.  If so, and you are not the
intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of this email or any attachment is
prohibited. 


 


If you have received this email in error, please notify us immediately by returning it to the sender and deleting this copy
from your system.  Thank you for your cooperation.


 


 


From: Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 27, 2022 08:51
To: Robert Snaza <Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.gov>; Jonathan Meyer <Jonathan.Meyer@lewiscountywa.
gov>; Emily Fitzgerald <emily@chronline.com>; Amber Smith <amber.smith@lewiscountywa.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Certification complaint of Erin Willey







 


Following up here to pull in Rob and Jon for a brief question. 


 


Can the county confirm whether Deputy Willey was hired after the passing of SB5051 and despite her known affiliation
with an extremist group? Mr. Meyer's letter references another letter issued in 2019 for the City of Napavine, both letters
clearly discussing a known affiliation and potential for bias. I'm not seeking any other information beyond a hire date -
something you are allowed to disclose. 


 


Did Lewis County hire this deputy despite knowing her background was in contradiction with SB5051? Or was she already
on board when the bill passed? Just trying to figure out the chicken and the egg. 


 


Thanks, 


 


Kyle


 


 


---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Dec 22, 2022, 7:59 AM
Subject: Certification complaint of Erin Willey
To: <certificationcomplaints@cjtc.wa.gov>
Cc: Amber Smith <amber.smith@lewiscountywa.gov>, Emily Fitzgerald <emily@chronline.com>


 


Attached brady letter details Erin's employment shifts from Clark County Sheriff's Office to Napavine Police Department to
Lewis County Sheriff's Office despite known affiliation with extremist groups. 


SB 5051 states the commission may deny, suspend, or revoke certification or require remedial training of an applicant or
officer if the applicant or officer has affiliation with one or more extremist organizations.


 


Please consider revocation of her certification so she is unable to continue cophopping to different agencies despite
known affiliation with a insurrectionist extremist group. 


 


Thank you.


External Email - Remember to think before you click!


This message may contain links with malware, viruses, etc. Please ensure the message is legitimate before
opening it.








Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>


Weekend vandalism connection
Jonathan Meyer <Jonathan.Meyer@lewiscountywa.gov> Mon, Feb 26, 2024 at 7:59 AM
To: Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>, Randy Kaut <rkaut@ci.chehalis.wa.us>, Robert Snaza
<Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.gov>


Sorry to hear your property was vandalized. It is definitely troubling. We will, of course, review any
referral we receive on either matter.


 


Jonathan L. Meyer


Lewis County Prosecutor


345 W. Main, Fl. 2


Chehalis, WA 98532


(360) 740-2638 (Desk)


    


        


 


This email and any attachments may be confidential and/or protected by legal privilege.  If so, and
you are not the intended recipient, be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of this
email or any attachment is prohibited. 


 


If you have received this email in error, please notify us immediately by returning it to the sender
and deleting this copy from your system.  Thank you for your cooperation.


 


 


 


From: Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, February 26, 2024 07:56
To: Randy Kaut <rkaut@ci.chehalis.wa.us>; Robert Snaza <Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.gov>; Jonathan Meyer
<Jonathan.Meyer@lewiscountywa.gov>
Subject: Weekend vandalism connection


 


Good morning,



https://www.google.com/maps/search/345+W.+Main,+Fl.+2+%0D%0A+Chehalis,+WA+98532?entry=gmail&source=g

https://www.google.com/maps/search/345+W.+Main,+Fl.+2+%0D%0A+Chehalis,+WA+98532?entry=gmail&source=g

mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com

mailto:rkaut@ci.chehalis.wa.us

mailto:Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.gov

mailto:Robert.Snaza@lewiscountywa.gov

mailto:Jonathan.Meyer@lewiscountywa.gov

mailto:Jonathan.Meyer@lewiscountywa.gov





 


I understand the friendship fence was vandalized again Saturday night but someone followed them and they were caught
in Centralia. 


 


 


Just wanted to make sure everyone is aware my memorial birdhouses for my dead friend on my property by the freeway
were also destroyed overnight on Saturday. The posts are standing, but the birdhouses, which contained her memorial
messaging, were smashed. The houses themselves have a estimated value of $25 and there were eleven of them in the
trans flag colors with the letters K-A-L-I W-A-S H-E-R-E spelled out on the bottom of them. 


 


I know it is hard without a nexus connecting the incidents, but this is the third I can recall in the past year that multiple
locations were vandalized in a single night like this and I hope someone is working to connect those dots. I might mention
most of them started right after disgraced former Chief Morningstar was removed for my complaint against his failed
background and extremist affiliations. 


 


I don't need a report from LCSO. Frankly, with the misreporting of incidents over the last few years, especially the
msireports surrounding the death threats from my neighbor last year, I don't have a lot of confidence in LCSO specifically
at the moment. I've received more care from vigilantes and grandmothers the last few years, which is fine, but two of you
here deserve to know why I have very valid reasons for the broken trust. 


 


I did want to send this information along so there is a record in case this all leads back to Bo Rupert or Roger Morningstar.
The Vance family did not have or give me an incident number for the fence issue, but given the jurisdiction cross over etc,
just wanted this on record to all. 


 


Thanks 


 


Kyle 


 


External Email - Remember to think before you click!


This message may contain links with malware, viruses, etc. Please ensure the message is legitimate before
opening it.







Snaza also blurred the lines of his multiple hats both locally and at WSCJTC during
his public opinions on the 2022 Willey matter still before a hearings panel, such as the
printed statements “I’ve been on those boards. That is a long process, and to get a
hearing takes several months. We’re not there yet,” as well as "And if I ever thought
that a deputy was going to be decertified for some reason, I would have terminated
them myself before we ever get to that, and I don’t believe that is the case with
Deputy Willey." and also "I’m going to support her the whole way through.". Mr. Snaza
must know his local agency has not yet received a determination notice from
WSCJTC regarding C22-131. But then also, his being a WSCJTC commissioner he
must also know, after last years specific coaching, to be very clear of what hat he is
wearing and is not wearing when making such statements publicly. 

These quotes appear to be policy violations by WSCJTC Commissioner Snaza and
they deserve a swift and formal censure from WSCJTC at this point. I have been
trying hard to bite my tongue as was requested of me some time ago by WSCJTC
and I have tried to honor that solely out of personal respect for the specific person
who asked and despite all the many different repeated and targeted events, and
buried concerns, myself and my community have had to bite tongues about since
2022. But it's really gross to go through all that and see this commissioner pull this
crap on a complainant, the wrong one even, after all this. 

This man will stop treating people in my community like this if I have to move the
entire earth to stop it. 

Last week I also requested Lewis County investigate their local whistleblower and/or
complaint retaliation policies as they may apply to the perceived targeting of Mr.
Pollock's wife in her workplace with Mr. Snaza that may be happening here, but since
Mr. Snaza is also a WSCJTC commissioner, I would also request the
WSCJTC formally investigate these apparent attempts by its commissioner to
retaliate or publicly disparage a complainant, going so far as discussing that
complainants case with local media prior to a WSCJTC determination having been
transmitted. Additionally, please investigate or address the concern of WSCJTC
Commissioner Snaza giving public opinion to local media on the 2022 matter still
pending before a hearings panel. 

Communications Manager Quinlan: Seperate from all that, can you please clarify
something for me briefly please? I'll try to give you the footnotes.  It was my
understanding that Ms. Willey's final hearing in July is the last chance to argue that
she should still remain a certified officer despite having filmed a gang initiation ritual
during a mutually abusive relationship with an extremist, selling merchandise to aid in
the growth of that budding organization, and lied to her employer about the
circumstances of that for a year, but if she is able to sells all that to the hearings panel
and remain a certified officer after all this it was my understanding WSCJTC may then
reconsider reopening subsequent  concerns that were filed against this person after
the original 2022 complaint and that these subsequent complaint(s) may have been
preemptively closed already based upon WSCJTC's presumption that Ms. Willey's
likelihood of remaining certified after this hearing are so astronomically low that any

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Flocal-officials-respond-to-neo-nazi-fight-clubs-presence-at-lewis-county-pride%2C320897&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409619986%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VJcWx7POY6zy9%2BBBF%2Fx4uzw3iftEJfmGA5XPUIivEZc%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Fin-focus-volunteers-make-repairs-after-vandalism-in-morton%2C321501&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409633040%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5SicqHkJoml0UETPiFZi5P5qy1mm1FLSmTpyzWoxKLk%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Ffour-lewis-county-lgbtqplus-advocate-sites-vandalized-in-one-night%2C321415&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409645468%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ja%2F7IUm%2FDslTPG%2BAbq6h%2BwoRyVrpSCcWSeJiswCqeGw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Fjudge-delivers-maximum-sentence-to-three-men-convicted-for-defacing-the-friendship-fence-in%2C363017&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409657707%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pBegxYTa3154uvUelT%2BUTT2rNlUn%2F24L4AvW%2FgBCmI8%3D&reserved=0


further investigation(s) of any other complaint(s) seemed wasteful of this agency's
valued time and resources. Please advise if I have somehow been misinformed or
misunderstood the functions that were explained to me. 

Brief lewis county specific note for my own sense of peace someday - i just need to
mention this journalist has had clear and specific knowledge of the original complaint
that resulted in Willey's decertification proceedings from the day that complaint was
submitted and the prosecutor's reply to a question on the metrics shortly after, yet this
journalist chose to ignore the original concern for years now only to publish these half
truths and pathetic political attacks toward the Pollocks for daring speak out on one of
many experiences in Lewis County's disgustingly long list of diabolical experiences
under the Snaza administration, including Mr. Snaza's lasting legacy of enablement of
other unworthy administrators locally. I just needed to say for the record it makes me
incredibly sad to see how far this journalist has fallen in all this. 

Lastly, and this is just a suggestion at this fork in the road, but perhaps a swift
resignation from Mr. Snaza, from this commission and/or profession, may be the
easiest route for all of us to save the same valuable time and resources briefly
mentioned above. Until that day comes though, please address the question to
Quinlan regarding the way yall are handling these subsequent complaints, and please
provide me with regular updates on how WSCJTC intends to address these policy
violation concerns surrounding its commissioner and the perceptions of his retaliation
towards a complainant here. 

I'll be sure to follow up regularly if I don't hear back in a reasonable time. Thanks for
listening, 

Kyle Wheeler

On Fri, Feb 7, 2025 at 8:20 AM Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com> wrote:
Tabitha,

You have an outstanding request for a GovQA report of the verbiage and date of all records
requests you have received recently. I am hoping you can expedite that before the weekend
so I can confirm Lewis county commissioner Sean swope went through proper channels to
obtain the information about Mr. Pollock's case which he brought up at the beginning of this
year without realizing Mr. Pollock concerns were the... third (?) in line with concerns. 

Hopefully one of those being (re)investigated by someone besides Garcia at this point given
the Honcoop disaster. 

But if there is no documentation of persons obtaining that information through proper
channels for mr swope to have brought up in the manner he did, the policy and bylaw
violation concern expressed here will also include a concern that the cjct's commissioner
may be divulging information through improper channels. 

Basically, if you can expedite that report request it will show if or how Mr Swope obtained
the information he attempted to weaponize against his seatmate here. 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fchronline.com%2Fstories%2Fpotential-contract-between-pe-ell-morton-would-see-east-lewis-county-city-provide-police-to-west%2C297160&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409669945%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aJNqYU8kkhJVCclddmpbxG58DKy1QZhqxK%2Bx9KRJXP4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Fsexual-harassment-lies-and-misused-funds-claims-against-former-morton-police-chief-detailed-in%2C323105&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409682096%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=j0laffoF8dxxqmjCrlXOqE5HOM%2F92151TQFWoRGvWb0%3D&reserved=0
mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com


Thanks. 
Kyle Wheeler
Complainant 1

On Thu, Feb 6, 2025, 5:32 PM Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com> wrote:
Thanks David. 

I may also refer you to the CJTC bylaw violation in June 2024 where commissioner snaza
was speaking out of place at community events and implying CJTC backing of his
statements as happened again here. It's my understanding snaza was given legal coaching
about these concerns previously. 

The commission meeting where this issue was discussed previously was June 12th 2024. 

Beyond checking with mr snaza directly, please also consider this a formal complaint to
the cjtc to formally address the perception of repeated violations of your bylaws, after
coaching on the subject, by this commissioner. 

Have a great vacation! 

On Thu, Feb 6, 2025, 5:22 PM Quinlan, David (CJTC) <david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.gov>
wrote:

Hi Kyle, it is good to meet you virtually.

 

I’m getting up to speed on this, so I appreciate your patience.

 

Regarding your first question, WSCJTC cannot speak to the capacity in which
Commissioner Snaza made his statement. You will need to reach out to him directly for
clarification.

 

As for your second question, WSCJTC Chapter 7 Policy 03 on conflicts of interest
provides Commissioners must not make inquiries about or otherwise discuss with
Commission staff or discuss with others certification matters under review,
investigation, or consideration for agency action by a hearings panel, nor opine publicly
about certification matters.”

 

Our Certification Bureau, however, often contacts Police Chiefs and Sheriffs, in their
capacity as the heads of their agencies, regarding the status of certification cases
pending against their officers or deputies.

 

mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com
mailto:david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.gov


I hope this helps! I’m on my way out of town until next week, but please feel free to
reach out to me directly for any future media or public records inquiries.

 

Let me know if you need any further clarification.

 

Best,

 

-David

 

David Quinlan

Communications Manager

Washington State Criminal Justice Training Commission

Direct: (206) 835-7358

Cell: (206) 206-887-2259

david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.gov

www.cjtc.wa.gov

 

From: Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2025 4:32 PM
To: Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC) <Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov>
Cc: Quinlan, David (CJTC) <david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.gov>
Subject: Re:  - Investigation Quote clarification

 

External Email

Appreciate you enormously and sorry if I make you want to drink sometimes. 

mailto:david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cjtc.wa.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409694282%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AVBKQFTghycLY%2BHRB1NpLCx5bErcEPX9gflH5cFEr10%3D&reserved=0
mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com
mailto:Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:david.quinlan@cjtc.wa.gov


Hi David! I am also available to chat at 503-801-5226 about this when you have better
answers if that is easier. 

 

On Thu, Feb 6, 2025 at 4:27 PM Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC)
<Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov> wrote:

Kyle,

 

To answer your question about CJTC having a new PIO, I want to introduce you to David
Quinlan, our agency Communications Manager. I also passed along the rest of your email
for David to get back to you when he has an answer.

 

Thank you,

 

Lauren Allen
Community Liaison Manager | Certification
Washington State Criminal Justice Training Commission
Phone: 206 551-5490
Email: lauren.allen@cjtc.wa.gov

 

 

 

 

From: Kyle Wheeler <kyle88wheeler@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2025 2:58 PM
To: Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC) <Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov>; Rob Snaza
<robert.snaza@lewiscountywa.gov>; AllVoices (CJTC) <cjtcallvoices@cjtc.wa.gov>; Emily
Fitzgerald <emily@chronline.com>; Lindsey Pollock <lindsey.pollock@lewiscountywa.gov>
Subject:  - Investigation Quote clarification

 

External Email

mailto:Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:lauren.allen@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:kyle88wheeler@gmail.com
mailto:Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:robert.snaza@lewiscountywa.gov
mailto:cjtcallvoices@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:emily@chronline.com
mailto:lindsey.pollock@lewiscountywa.gov


Commissioner snaza is quoted in this article as saying he has been "working with the
cjtc"  regarding the willey decertification. 

Pleaee clarify for the public promptly whether this was a quote gjven in his capacity
as sheriff, imnhis capacity as cjtc commissioner, or both. 

Please also clarify if Mr. Sanza has violated conflict of interest protocol by being
involving himself in the cjtc investigation(s) of a employee within his agency. 

I do not know if the CJTC has a new PIO yet, but if so please let me know. 

C22-131 as well as pending snaza concern. 

Thanks. 

https://www.chronline.com/stories/lewis-county-sheriff-alleges-retaliation-by-
commissioner-who-claims-recent-promotion-amounts-to,374988

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Flewis-county-sheriff-alleges-retaliation-by-commissioner-who-claims-recent-promotion-amounts-to%2C374988&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409707870%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NSs3FzWLM6dJF53JYWrXG4V5TW2BnxFUYQ58RzJMpFM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.chronline.com%2Fstories%2Flewis-county-sheriff-alleges-retaliation-by-commissioner-who-claims-recent-promotion-amounts-to%2C374988&data=05%7C02%7Cmonica.alexander%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C52e86711e49d451bd0dd08dd49e1f189%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638747957409707870%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NSs3FzWLM6dJF53JYWrXG4V5TW2BnxFUYQ58RzJMpFM%3D&reserved=0


From: Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC)
To: Huffman, Stephanie (CJTC)
Subject: FW: [Records Center] County Public Records Request :: C002938-122324
Date: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 8:17:18 AM

 
From: Mitch Patton <nwtsrinc@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 10, 2025 9:10 PM
To: Caputo Allen, Lauren (CJTC) <Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov>; police.misconduct@nwjustice.org;
Pham, Michelle (CJTC) <michelle.pham@cjtc.wa.gov>; Zable, Derek (CJTC)
<derek.zable@cjtc.wa.gov>
Subject: Fwd: [Records Center] County Public Records Request :: C002938-122324

 

External Email

To CJTC,

Please accept this as part of my public comments for your next meeting. I will try to call in to
further address this issue along with other concerns I have observed regarding CJTC’s
enforcement process.

1. It seems that CJTC takes the word of non-commissioned employees at SCSO over
members of the public who have filed complaints. Why is this happening?

2. Why has CJTC not taken action against Ryan Taylor, who was fired from the Clark
County Sheriff’s Office for multiple violations? Based on recent HB/SB legislation,
CJTC has the authority to review past violations that would have led to desertification
today and at the time Ryan Taylor was placed on the Brady list , yet it appears Taylor’s
case has been overlooked or ignored.

3. In one of my complaints, I stated that Ryan Taylor claimed he called Tracy Wyckoff
immediately after harassing my wife and me in North Bonneville. However, according
to SCSO records, there is no record of this call ever being made. How can this be?
and undersheriff Tracy Wycoff even said he called him and still no call logs were
found. 

Adding to this concern, Tracy Wyckoff wrote to Prosecutor Adam Kick,
attempting to press charges against my wife and me for allegedly filing a
false police report.
If Taylor and Wyckoff lied in their reports and then attempted to file charges
against us based on false statements, why is CJTC not taking action against
Taylor for filing a false police report? he stated he called undersheriff
wycoff  

4. I understand that Wyckoff is not under CJTC’s authority, but this raises another

mailto:Lauren.Allen@cjtc.wa.gov
mailto:stephanie.huffman@cjtc.wa.gov


major issue. If someone works in law enforcement and carries out daily tasks as an
officer, they should be subject to the same oversight and accountability as
commissioned law enforcement officers. CJTC needs to push for changes in this
area.

5. Another serious concern I have is the transportation of deceased bodies by SCSO.
Over the last two years, it appears that SCSO has started moving bodies in the back
of a pickup truck, which is something I have never seen done before in this
county—except in rare cases where a body was in a remote area that a funeral home
vehicle could not access. In those cases, SCSO would only transport the body to a
location where the funeral home could take over.

However, it now seems that Deputy Ryan Taylor is transporting bodies all the
way to the funeral home or morgue himself. It is unclear why this change has
occurred or whether this is standard procedure.

One specific case that raises concerns involved two individuals who were lost and
later found deceased. One body was recovered on the first day, and the second the
next day. However, the paperwork is unclear on whether the first body was
possibly held overnight by SCSO. This situation needs further review to clarify
what happened.

I request that CJTC investigate this issue to determine if these actions align with
proper law enforcement and medical examiner protocols. and do fact
checking not just take the word of prosecutor Adam KIck or SCSO but look at
the call logs and written reports along with checking with the funeral
homes being used by SCSO and see if they feel anything has changed in
the last two years on how SCSO is dealing with dead bodies.

It also seems that the same deputy, Ryan Taylor, is handling these transports more
often than not. In previous years, a funeral home was responsible for transporting
deceased individuals. However, today in Skamania County, Ryan Taylor is doing it in
a pickup truck.

I would like clarification on whether this practice is appropriate, if it aligns with
proper procedures and legal standards, and why SCSO has moved away from
using a funeral home for these transports.

6. There are a few critical changes I believe need to be made to CJTC’s complaint
intake and handling process to ensure transparency and accountability.

1. Follow-Up System for Complaints – It seems that some complaints are being
lost or misplaced. A simple fix would be to implement a formal follow-up



system that confirms receipt of a complaint and ensures that CJTC fully
understands the issue. Complainants should receive acknowledgment that their
complaint has been received and does not require further clarification before
an official 30-day review period begins.

2. Clarification & Assistance for Complainants – It appears that CJTC only
reviews complaints exactly as written, but many members of the public may
not know how to phrase their concerns in a way that CJTC can act on.
There should be more effort made to assist complainants in clarifying their
concerns so that CJTC can fully understand and investigate the issue.

3. Balancing Public Input vs. Law Enforcement Statements – As a victim of
misconduct involving a Brady cop multiple times over the last four years, I
have personally seen how often CJTC closes complaints prematurely. It
seems that CJTC relies more on the word of law enforcement while
dismissing complaints from the public as "unfounded" without thorough
investigation. CJTC needs to ensure that complaints are not dismissed
without fully reviewing all available evidence rather than simply taking law
enforcement’s word as the truth.

In short, CJTC has failed in its duty to properly follow up on complaints.

Recently, in one of my PRRs to CJTC, I discovered a name that was supposed to
be confidential—but it was instead listed in a police report as an
officer's name. It was my name listed as an officer  . This raises serious concerns
about how CJTC handles sensitive information and the safety of those filing
complaints.

If names are being accidentally included in PRRs, it jeopardizes the safety of
individuals who come forward. A simple solution would be to automatically
redact every name of complainants to prevent this issue and hold CJTC
accountable for releasing confidential information.

These concerns must be addressed to restore public trust.

7. One last thing for now:

I truly believe CJTC should establish a rule or law stating that any officer
placed on a Brady list should no longer be allowed to drive unmarked patrol
cars or access law enforcement databases. 

Ryan Taylor used a law enforcement database for non-law enforcement
reasons—specifically to stalk his wife and her new boyfriend. That alone
should have led to his decertification when it happened, yet it was overlooked.



However, with the new HB or SB laws passed in recent years, CJTC now has
the authority to go back and decertify officers for past misconduct. So why
has CJTC still not taken action against Taylor? Dirty cops will never change
just like a pedifile they are sick for ever.  

I appreciate your time in reviewing these concerns and look forward to your response.I also
wonder if the one year statute SCSO is stating is truly legal or not. This is the first time I've
seen that in a PRR. 

 
 
---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Skamania County Public Records <skamaniacountywa@govqa.f taylus>d 
Date: Fri, Mar 7, 2025 at 8:29 PM
Subject: [Records Center] County Public Records Request :: C002938-122324
To: nwtsrinc@gmail.com <nwtsrinc@gmail.com>
 

Attachments:
Doc__2.pdf
Doc__4.pdf
SCSO-Citizen-Complaint-Log__2023_.pdf

--- Please respond above this line ---

 
RE: PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST of December 23, 2024, Reference #C002938-122324
 
Dear Mr. Patton:

On December 23, 2024, I received your public records request as follows: "all documents related to
the complaint Mitch Patton filed against Ryan Taylor on the day you two were walking your dogs
in North Bonneville. Unfortunately, I am unsure of the exact date or time of the incident, but I
am requesting all related records, including how the complaint was handled and ultimately
closed. Please provide these documents as a PDF file, as your online portal does not work with

mailto:skamaniacountywa@govqa.us
mailto:nwtsrinc@gmail.com
mailto:nwtsrinc@gmail.com
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu8387778.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fls%2Fclick%3Fupn%3Du001.VEsWrlMiJDg0mXafq1mEXXKNHMGZjOd7qdQtHPrqDUSnThnOAjge8ztdyL9xIcfHcJ-2FbxPyhrYsO296qCMQ4ksY08pZ37e5d69R9Ale4lASWv-2BNMTJZABTFjwkIdnZh6hraCFH-2FXjJauSjwz7Mws1-2FiEPkLRE8Eh2QTC4t8kSbIPatrw7n2IBIoqRXUBnLMyQ3XZAETFhleOEfH-2BuBrwWGb-2BLGR3dFOw9anbFq1dG3c-3DF5Tg_l6U2aO3CligDpjWppK48-2Fg130GpeIxVoAr267H9rr4fX1wr-2Fg2UdxDC78jJJydqIpZ-2Fq2iY6-2FB6cyZ-2F1EC9BMMFPP0j-2BtYdHR8SppekjacnsRnayOgeDFCwapfmVLbQPifEVHkrBt0G-2F3crtqDgBTX-2BXeoHYo9JQn-2F-2FWoHCTnroo4lejqDkGsaL5s8rVtHrqFSMiUT-2FYeTXrGbgxOcdbOkRs-2BlVNUH2U064Qqx1Xby4wE6SukeWylg4MeIZ6de2vinWUikhPx0ZJB16a7XfYi7SHfkXlrbuvDXsOGISqkmpurrYsY4bF-2B6ycx9EbHW0MqbGCrtyyUpG4Skis8a-2F67JAeew-2F7kjHt2tGU-2B3AurAc-3D&data=05%7C02%7Cstephanie.huffman%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C90c4b14b3af649449d3708dd60afce16%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638773030379707646%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6edk4EEWhiwY1aYTDRbwsqWa2k54TRnkjiwx8xcfOZA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu8387778.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fls%2Fclick%3Fupn%3Du001.VEsWrlMiJDg0mXafq1mEXXKNHMGZjOd7qdQtHPrqDUSnThnOAjge8ztdyL9xIcfHcJ-2FbxPyhrYsO296qCMQ4ksY08pZ37e5d69R9Ale4lASWv-2BNMTJZABTFjwkIdnZh6hraCFH-2FXjJauSjwz7Mws1-2FiEPkLRE8Eh2QTC4t8kSbLo-2BKK7RdAwUifvwXb6PehI5LFnaS2aA8QzVggSBUIMnHPR6UeH1gDFA4iTiFH2a1c-3DQVjV_l6U2aO3CligDpjWppK48-2Fg130GpeIxVoAr267H9rr4fX1wr-2Fg2UdxDC78jJJydqIpZ-2Fq2iY6-2FB6cyZ-2F1EC9BMMFPP0j-2BtYdHR8SppekjacnsRnayOgeDFCwapfmVLbQPifEVHkrBt0G-2F3crtqDgBTX-2BXeoHYo9JQn-2F-2FWoHCTnroo4lejqDkGsaL5s8rVtHrqFSMiUT-2FYeTXrGbgxOcdbOkRs-2BlVNUH2U064Qqx1Xby4O7l3RPMcYq9Kaau-2Bll0u4xYfgZLIpdrsoKzNtxRvs6-2B-2FI7F-2FQ1-2BE2lO89wB-2FoDItM4Y05cZkY4UP-2FQ3yTUSXLp8t5izykO-2FOR9-2FvdDQ91CiyauOdkL2og7gjjGnwJBx8-3D&data=05%7C02%7Cstephanie.huffman%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C90c4b14b3af649449d3708dd60afce16%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638773030379739275%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=k%2BBZd3tnYHoEfHjss0S%2FuEpKS46SOzMLVavEShy4X8U%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu8387778.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fls%2Fclick%3Fupn%3Du001.VEsWrlMiJDg0mXafq1mEXXKNHMGZjOd7qdQtHPrqDUSnThnOAjge8ztdyL9xIcfHcJ-2FbxPyhrYsO296qCMQ4ksY08pZ37e5d69R9Ale4lASWv-2BNMTJZABTFjwkIdnZh6U8bjOmvEmoUIpUu4ORP-2FqLwMlkN0BEti-2BzCOAX444LKD-2Fmaeqi6NsxJzOcdVsk-2BpxK75iy95N18bT6-2FkgOwSsWdzqrltKGFaTzGDTcv3-2Bio-3DMUob_l6U2aO3CligDpjWppK48-2Fg130GpeIxVoAr267H9rr4fX1wr-2Fg2UdxDC78jJJydqIpZ-2Fq2iY6-2FB6cyZ-2F1EC9BMMFPP0j-2BtYdHR8SppekjacnsRnayOgeDFCwapfmVLbQPifEVHkrBt0G-2F3crtqDgBTX-2BXeoHYo9JQn-2F-2FWoHCTnroo4lejqDkGsaL5s8rVtHrqFSMiUT-2FYeTXrGbgxOcdbOkRs-2BlVNUH2U064Qqx1Xby5nZ9MIUM8weItHE3D-2BxLf-2F-2FldW0vBZW4kWgRaDgx3HKQVA9j2rFIuwM-2FH6HJ0YEARUFCIuKa733FK3WqAJlXcO07xHWfBGnxWs-2F9MVem-2B-2F5xJaaJExHqxz7s-2FF9cVTkQI-3D&data=05%7C02%7Cstephanie.huffman%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C90c4b14b3af649449d3708dd60afce16%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638773030379759314%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=X%2F1UhkyCcM4Am2ijPzEev7GOQck9MydrpXAJw%2FPAkX4%3D&reserved=0


my computer due to poor internet connectivity at home. If clarification is needed, I encourage
you to contact me by phone to avoid delays with emails for clarification."
 
After reviewing our files, we have located records that are responsive to your request. Please log in to
the Skamania County Public Records Center at the following link to retrieve the records responsive to
your request:
 
County Public Records Request - C002938-122324
 
Please note that the records responsive to your request are also attached to this message as PDF files, as
requested.
SkamaniaCounty has searched for, attempted to identify, locate, and provide anynon-exempt public
records that may be responsive to this request. Since this completely fulfills your request, we are now
closing this public records request. The one (1) yearstatute of limitations to seek judicial review under
the Public RecordsAct (Chapter 42.56 RCW) begins now because Skamania County does notintend to
further address this request.
Please note that if you do not review and download your records within thirty (30) days, they may be
removed from the system, in which case you will have to start the public records process all over again
to receive your requested records. 

Thank you for your patience in awaiting this information. Please feel free to contact me if you have any
further questions or concerns by replying to this email or at my phone number below.

Sincerely,

Joseph Anderson
Deputy Public Records Officer
Office of the Skamania County Prosecuting Attorney
240 NW Vancouver Avenue | PO Box 790
Stevenson, WA 98648
509-427-3791
 

To monitor the progress or update this request please log into the Public Records
Center

 
--
MItch Patton 360-903-9040

"Never give up, for that is just the place and time that the
tide will turn."

- Harriet Beecher Stowe, from "Oldtown Folks"

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu8387778.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fls%2Fclick%3Fupn%3Du001.VEsWrlMiJDg0mXafq1mEXXKNHMGZjOd7qdQtHPrqDUSnThnOAjge8ztdyL9xIcfHm0-2FsSLjA-2Fm4Bd57C6RDeVv2RzDoB-2FOTb3w-2BaAmPNSmeduiepmRCZfcsvjHqvcjoST4Ao_l6U2aO3CligDpjWppK48-2Fg130GpeIxVoAr267H9rr4fX1wr-2Fg2UdxDC78jJJydqIpZ-2Fq2iY6-2FB6cyZ-2F1EC9BMMFPP0j-2BtYdHR8SppekjacnsRnayOgeDFCwapfmVLbQPifEVHkrBt0G-2F3crtqDgBTX-2BXeoHYo9JQn-2F-2FWoHCTnroo4lejqDkGsaL5s8rVtHrqFSMiUT-2FYeTXrGbgxOcdbOkRs-2BlVNUH2U064Qqx1Xby4-2FQgFQWhszI8NpVr-2BebzesLd1A6eeLo31e7le2DF62AlZZEDZVnAwnWs3-2B2HA637JntxM-2FihryVlZofGz-2BCTDRvfi2O2P3ItfL5kDSD1mY6cpQzJxOAnSlSLL9PLBrcB4-3D&data=05%7C02%7Cstephanie.huffman%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C90c4b14b3af649449d3708dd60afce16%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638773030379775847%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Wmwfywk7ng8PcevC9aTy0lszgINwgxiNoBZVzlBq%2BpE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu8387778.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fls%2Fclick%3Fupn%3Du001.VEsWrlMiJDg0mXafq1mEXXKNHMGZjOd7qdQtHPrqDUSnThnOAjge8ztdyL9xIcfHm0-2FsSLjA-2Fm4Bd57C6RDeVv2RzDoB-2FOTb3w-2BaAmPNSmeduiepmRCZfcsvjHqvcjoSs7A1_l6U2aO3CligDpjWppK48-2Fg130GpeIxVoAr267H9rr4fX1wr-2Fg2UdxDC78jJJydqIpZ-2Fq2iY6-2FB6cyZ-2F1EC9BMMFPP0j-2BtYdHR8SppekjacnsRnayOgeDFCwapfmVLbQPifEVHkrBt0G-2F3crtqDgBTX-2BXeoHYo9JQn-2F-2FWoHCTnroo4lejqDkGsaL5s8rVtHrqFSMiUT-2FYeTXrGbgxOcdbOkRs-2BlVNUH2U064Qqx1Xby6SyHKRyecO-2BvdthRM-2BOC-2BKiZd8r3JeXZrtr-2BCQh8b1gA6Zu0KBlZX5rhhhnhntZc06qbUeG570ZpD4cUVK8DBO7XYy1TP-2FflVTsC-2FvdlhZ5BFWp-2FFhfrJtN1Cdlf71Rxs-3D&data=05%7C02%7Cstephanie.huffman%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C90c4b14b3af649449d3708dd60afce16%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638773030379792484%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IYpDnWXxO6Ay6et%2BBNMotQb7Cfw5EFou4MrJYkT%2FMA0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fu8387778.ct.sendgrid.net%2Fls%2Fclick%3Fupn%3Du001.VEsWrlMiJDg0mXafq1mEXXKNHMGZjOd7qdQtHPrqDUSnThnOAjge8ztdyL9xIcfHm0-2FsSLjA-2Fm4Bd57C6RDeVv2RzDoB-2FOTb3w-2BaAmPNSmeduiepmRCZfcsvjHqvcjoSs7A1_l6U2aO3CligDpjWppK48-2Fg130GpeIxVoAr267H9rr4fX1wr-2Fg2UdxDC78jJJydqIpZ-2Fq2iY6-2FB6cyZ-2F1EC9BMMFPP0j-2BtYdHR8SppekjacnsRnayOgeDFCwapfmVLbQPifEVHkrBt0G-2F3crtqDgBTX-2BXeoHYo9JQn-2F-2FWoHCTnroo4lejqDkGsaL5s8rVtHrqFSMiUT-2FYeTXrGbgxOcdbOkRs-2BlVNUH2U064Qqx1Xby6SyHKRyecO-2BvdthRM-2BOC-2BKiZd8r3JeXZrtr-2BCQh8b1gA6Zu0KBlZX5rhhhnhntZc06qbUeG570ZpD4cUVK8DBO7XYy1TP-2FflVTsC-2FvdlhZ5BFWp-2FFhfrJtN1Cdlf71Rxs-3D&data=05%7C02%7Cstephanie.huffman%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C90c4b14b3af649449d3708dd60afce16%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638773030379792484%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IYpDnWXxO6Ay6et%2BBNMotQb7Cfw5EFou4MrJYkT%2FMA0%3D&reserved=0


INTEROFFICE COMMUNICATION 
 

 

TO: WSCJTC Commissioners 

FROM: Kimberly Bliss, Assistant Director/Certification 

SUBJECT: Quarterly Certification Report 

DATE: February 25, 2025 

Hearing Summaries 

Attached is the final 2024 Certification Action Summaries report, which includes summaries on all 
cases resulting in certification discipline.  These reports are also posted to the Certification 
Hearings page on the WSCJTC website. 

Disciplinary Case Outcomes 

Attached, please find the usual “Disciplinary Outcomes” chart which shows all cases that have 
resolved with some sort of disciplinary action, whether they were charged or not, since the last 
Commission meeting.   

There were 11 cases with disciplinary action between November 21, 2024, and February 24, 2025.  
Here are the case outcomes by type: 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Revoked by Surrender

Revoked by Default

Revoked by Hearing Panel

Certification Probation

11/21/24 - 2/24/25 
Disciplinary Outcomes

 WASHINGTON STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 



WSCJTC Commissioners 
February 27, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 

 

For these 11 cases resulting in disciplinary action, the case origins were as follows: 

 

Hearing Status 

There are 19 cases in the hearing process as of February 25, 2025, as follows:    

Status # 

Statement of Charges Ready for Service 7 

Waiting for Hearing Request or Default 0 

Cases Set for Status Conference 2 

Hearings Scheduled 10 

 
Hearings are currently scheduled through the end of September 2025. 

Data 

Attached are two data reports: 1) 2024 year-end data; and 2) the typical three-month data tracking 
(November 2024 – January 2025).  We have again included the glossary behind the data charts. 

Backlog/Investigation Review Changes 

Case filings continue to outstrip the ability to investigate and close cases, growing the backlog:  

2024 Certification Cases (through year end) 

Opened Closed Difference 

982 584 398 

    

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Division Initiated

Complaint

Agency - Notice of Separation

Agency - Misconduct Notice

Case Origin



WSCJTC Commissioners 
February 27, 2025 
Page 3 
 
 

 

Certification will continue to seek funding for additional FTEs to expand capacity in intake review 
and investigations.  But adding investigators will not fully resolve the backlog.  Two years of data 
reveals that Certification can expect around 900 new cases a year.  This volume was never 
anticipated when the original standard operating procedures for investigations and chain of 
command review were first established.  

Accordingly, Certification is adopting new standard operating procedures for case review, as 
follows: 

TYPE OF 
CLOSURE 

FORMER PROCEDURE REVISED PROCEDURE 

Admin Closure • Case Review Manager and 
Investigations Division Manager 
agree on closure (two levels of 
review) 

• Complainant can appeal to Assistant 
Director 

• Case Review Manager, 
Chief Investigator and 
Investigations Division 
Manager agree on closure 
(three levels of review) 

• No additional appeal 
procedure 

Investigation NOT 
Resulting in a 
Statement of 
Charges (“Decline”) 

• Investigator, Chief Investigator, 
Investigations Division Manager 
and Assistant Director all review 
and sign Investigation Report (IR) 

• Appeal to Executive Director or 
designee 

• Investigator, Chief 
Investigator, 
Investigations Division 
Manager all review and 
sign IR 

• Appeal to Assistant 
Director 

Investigation 
Resulting in a 
Statement of 
Charges (SOC) 

• Investigator, Chief Investigator, 
Investigations Division Manager 
and Assistant Director all review 
and sign Investigation Report 

• Assistant Director makes initial 
charging recommendation  

• Case file is forwarded to Attorney 
General’s office for review and 
drafting of SOC 

• Assistant Director makes final 
charging decisions and signs SOC 

     

• No change 

 

 

 

 

 



WSCJTC Commissioners 
February 27, 2025 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Administrative Closures 

Last meeting, Commissioner Thomas expressed a desire to better understand the intake review / 
administrative closure process.  Attached is the Certification Bureau’s Administrative Closure 
policy. 

The Certification Bureau process for reviewing cases for referral to investigation or administrative 
closure has changed significantly over the past two years.  Originally, Certification staff (including 
Operations staff) would review files and draft a very short memo recommending closure or 
investigation, which were reviewed and approved by the Division Manager (who oversaw both 
investigations and operations).   

In the past year and half, Certification has taken significant steps to formalize and improve the 
administrative closure criteria and process, including: 

• Drafting a formal policy guiding Administrative Closure of cases, first adopted in October 
2023, and revised in July 2024. 

• Creation of correspondence sent to all complainants whose cases are administratively 
closed, which specifies the reason for the administrative closure consistent with the written 
policy and provides the Community Liaison Manager’s contact information for follow-up 
questions.  

• Moving all intake reviews to the Investigations Division to ensure that experienced and 
trained investigations staff are reviewing the evidence and making recommendations on 
administrative closure or moving to an investigator.   

• The creation of a new position in the Investigations Division—Case Intake Review 
Manager—which focuses exclusively on intake reviews and the improvement of the 
administrative closure process.  This position was filled in July 2024. 

• The formal creation of two Certification divisions – Investigations and Operations – with 
separate Division Managers to allow the Investigations Division Manager to focus 
exclusively on casework, including a deeper review of administrative closures.  (Prior to 
this, the Investigations Division Manager oversaw numerous time-consuming operations 
tasks, including contracts, budget, personnel, etc.) 

With the hiring of the Case Intake Review Manager, and the onboarding of our case management 
system, Kaseware, the intake review process has expanded, including the written documentation of 
staff review and analysis leading to an administrative closure.  For each case administratively 
closed, the Case Intake Review Manager drafts a comprehensive Intake Review Summary (IRS), 
which includes: 

• Review and identification of all allegations in the complaint  
• For known and anonymous complainants who wish to talk with Certification, a discussion 

with the complainant to identify all allegations and evidence.  Written notes regarding the 
discussion are included in the IRS.  (In many cases, these discussions are also very helpful 



WSCJTC Commissioners 
February 27, 2025 
Page 5 
 
 

 

in educating complainants about state law governing policing services and the scope of 
WSCJTC’s jurisdiction.) 

• Review of all relevant documents and video, listing what documents were reviewed in the 
summary  

• Review and analysis of any underlying agency, third-party or criminal investigation 
• Review of the officer’s prior IA history to determine whether there is any concerning 

pattern or practice 
• Review of any agency discipline or training imposed on the officer 
• On a case-by-case basis, discussion with the officer or agency regarding the allegations or 

underlying incident, with relevant notes recorded in the IRS. 
• Analysis of the case in the context of the revocation statute and an explanation of the basis 

for administrative closure 

 

KAB:kb 
Attachments (6) 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2024  
Certification 
Actions 
 
 
Washington State Criminal Justice Training Commission 
Certification Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
    

 

 

Certification 



2024 Certification Action Summaries  1 
 

About the Report  
 
This report shows all actions taken against officers’ certifications from January to August 2024. 
The summaries are ordered by the effective date of the final order of the hearing panel. For 
purposes of this table, all certified peace officers are referred to as "officer" regardless of their 
rank at their respective agencies at the time of the incidents. 
 
For officers who surrendered their certification prior to a Statement of Charges being issued, an 
section for allegations is shown in place of charges. 
 
For officers whose conduct predated SB 5051, and for whom charges were issued under the 
prior version of RCW 43.101.010, the charges are identified by type of disqualifying misconduct. 
For charges issued under the current version of 43.101.105, the specific statutory provisions 
charged are provided. 
 
 
Definitions 
 
Revoked: The officer’s certification was revoked by the decision of the hearing panel.  
 
Revoked - Default: The officer failed to request a hearing within the 60-day period required by 
RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2), or the officer otherwise waived their right to a 
hearing. 
 
Revoked - Summary Judgment:  The officer's certification was revoked after the assigned 
Administrative Law Judge determined that there were no disputed material facts for a hearing 
panel to determine, and that revocation was required by law under RCW 43.101.105(2). 
 
Surrendered Certification: The officer voluntarily surrendered their certification.  
 
Settled:  Charges against the officer were resolved pursuant to a settlement agreement and 
final order and the officer is still fulfilling the terms of the settlement.  Settlements generally 
involve a period of probation and retraining. 
 
Dismissed: The hearing panel has dismissed the charges against the officer.  



2024 Certification Action Summaries  2 
 

 
  

4

25

1

37

4

0
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

N
um

be
r o

f O
ffi

ce
r C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

Ac
tio

ns

Certification Action Outcomes

2024 Certification Actions

Revoked
Revoked - Default
Revoked - Summary Judgment
Surrendered
Settled
Dismissed



2024 Certification Action Summaries  3 
 

2024 Certification Actions & Outcomes 
 
Phipps, Michael 
Case #: 22-036 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Pierce County Sheriff’s 

Department 
Effective Date: 12/10/2024 

Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(a)(i)(A) - Convicted of a Felony Offense 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-036-Phipps 
Summary: 
The officer was convicted of Domestic Violence Malicious Mischief in the First Degree and 
Stalking, both felony offenses. The officer was terminated from his agency. 

 
 
Goss, Robert 
Case #: 20-795 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Tieton Police Department Effective Date: 12/3/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-795-Goss-Robert 
Summary: 
The officer made false or misleading statements to his chief regarding his actions in bringing 
his son and girlfriend to the Reserve Academy to participate in firearms training and 
emergency vehicle operations training without authorization. The officer also made false or 
misleading statements regarding his compliance with a direct order given by his chief 
regarding having his patrol vehicle at his girlfriend’s residence. The officer resigned in lieu of 
termination. 

 
 
Amichia, Niamkey 
Case #: 23-083 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Puyallup Police Department Effective Date: 11/26/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(c) - Falsified Information on Application 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-083-Amichia-Niamkey 
Summary: 
The officer was charged with Rape in the Third Degree by the Pierce County Prosecuting 
Attorney. The officer was also charged with Home Invasion, Sexual Assault in the 1st Degree, 
Kidnapping in the 1st Degree, Unlawful Restraint in the 1st Degree, and Impersonation of a 
Police Officer by the State of Connecticut in 2016. He was found to have knowingly falsified 
or omitted material information on his employment application and polygraph examination 
with Bellevue Police Department by not disclosing his prior crimes. The officer was 
additionally dishonest in his employment application and polygraph examination with Puyallup 
Police Department. Additionally, the officer pled guilty to a misdemeanor offense of 
patronizing a prostitute. He was terminated from employment. 

 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-036-Phipps
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-795-Goss-Robert
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-083-Amichia-Niamkey


2024 Certification Action Summaries  4 
 

Wier, Gerald 
Case #: 23-348 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Eastern Washington University 

Police Department 
Effective Date: 11/19/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(f) - Sexual Harassment 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-348-Wier-Gerald 
Summary: 
Two female cadets reported the officer had been sexually harassing them at work. The officer 
resigned during the internal investigation into the misconduct. The officer voluntarily 
surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
Morfoot, Michael 
Case #: 23-354 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Kent Police Department Effective Date: 11/19/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(ii) - Violation of Rights 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-354-Morfoot 
Summary: 
The officer told employees of an apartment building with repeated trespassing and break-in 
events that street justice is better than actual justice. The officer insinuated that the criminal 
justice system offers no justice at all. Taking the officer's lengthy disciplinary history into 
consideration, his agency terminated his employment. The officer voluntarily surrendered his 
certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
Herrmann, George 
Case #: 23-258 Certification Action: Settled - Probation 
Agency: Spokane County Detention 

Services 
Effective Date: 11/13/2024 

Charges: 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/23-258-Herrmann-George 
Summary: 
The officer struck an inmate in the head while transporting them in a wheelchair from one 
area of the jail to another. The officer was charged with Assault 4th Degree and received a 
stipulated order of continuance that provided the case will be dismissed after two years if he 
does not commit any further crimes. After being served with a Statement of Charges, the 
WSCJTC and the officer entered into a settlement agreement. Pursuant to that agreement, 
his certification is subject to probation for four years. As part of the probation, the officer may 
not receive a sustained finding of misconduct during the probationary period. If a judge finds 
that he failed to comply with the stipulated order of continuance for the assault case, 
WSCJTC in its discretion may enforce the Statement of Charges. The officer additionally 
agreed to complete various trainings. 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-348-Wier-Gerald
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-354-Morfoot
https://cjtc.box.com/v/23-258-Herrmann-George


2024 Certification Action Summaries  5 
 

Musser, Arthur 
Case #: 22-057 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Asotin County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 11/13/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(e) - Excessive Force 

43.101.105(3)(j)(iii) - Unsafe Practices Involving Firearms, Weapons, 
or Vehicles 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-057-Musser-Arthur 
Summary: 
The officer used a Taser multiple times on an a noncombative inmate. The officer resigned 
while under investigation. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer requested an 
adjudicative hearing. However, the officer and his attorney failed to appear for a pre-hearing 
conference, and his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Ojeda-Lopez, Rosa 
Case #: 23-184 Certification Action: Settled - Probation 
Agency: Seattle Police Department Effective Date: 11/6/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-184-Ojeda-Lopez 
Summary: 
While off duty at a celebration for a coworker, the officer became highly intoxicated and 
assaulted her domestic partner. The officer was terminated by her agency. She entered into a 
settlement agreement with the WSCJTC, and her peace officer certification is subject to 
probation for five years. As part of the probation, the officer may not receive a sustained 
finding of misconduct during the probationary period and may not be arrested for any crime 
involving alcohol, drugs, firearms, or domestic violence. The officer also must participate in 
therapy at least once a month, complete a Domestic Violence Impact Panel, annual drug and 
alcohol screening, and other remedial training. Lastly, the officer must refrain from use of 
alcohol, drugs, and non-prescription medication for the duration of the probationary period. 

 
 
Neely, Brian 
Case #: 22-022 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Asotin County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date:  
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements  

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-022-Neely 
Summary: 
A coworker and an inmate reported their belief that the officer was under the influence of 
alcohol while on duty. The officer was subjected to a breath test which confirmed he was 
intoxicated. The officer resigned during the internal investigation. After being informed by the 
WSCJTC that his certification was under review, the officer surrendered his certification. 

 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-057-Musser-Arthur
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-184-Ojeda-Lopez
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-022-Neely


2024 Certification Action Summaries  6 
 

Arand, Virginia 
Case #: 2024-0012785 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Clallam County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 11/5/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012785-Arand 
Summary: 
The officer was under investigation for allegations that she violated policy when she overrode 
the jail security door locks multiple times, creating a security issue. The officer resigned 
before discipline could be administered. After being informed by the WSCJTC that her 
certification was under review, the officer voluntarily surrendered her certification. 

 
 
Gallardo, Julio 
Case #: 23-254 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Bellingham Police Department Effective Date: 10/30/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(c) - Falsified Information on Application 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-254-Gallardo-Julio 
Summary: 
The officer attended the WSCJTC Basic Law Enforcement Academy (BLEA) from June 
through October of 2022. In 2023, the officer acknowledged in a pre-employment interview 
screening and polygraph examination with Bellingham Police Department that he engaged in 
sexual contact with females in exchange for money during his time at BLEA, as well as after 
graduating from BLEA, while he was a fully commissioned police officer. In addition, the 
officer failed to disclose the disqualifying conduct described above in an employment 
application to Bellingham Police Department.  

 
 
Olvera, Victor 
Case #: 23-079 Certification Action: Revoked 
Agency: Kitsap County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 10/29/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-079-Olvera-Victor 
Summary: 
The officer was arrested for domestic violence assault. In addition, the WSCJTC found the 
officer made false or misleading statements to officers within the Bremerton Police 
Department and interfered with the statement of a potential witness. The officer was 
terminated from his agency. The hearing panel did not find that the officer interfered with a 
witness statement but did find that the officer committed domestic violence and provided false 
and misleading statements to the investigating officers. The hearing panel revoked the 
officer’s certification.  

 
 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012785-Arand
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-254-Gallardo-Julio
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-079-Olvera-Victor


2024 Certification Action Summaries  7 
 

Mariani, Alessandro 
Case #: 2024-0012743 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Federal Way Police Department Effective Date: 10/23/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012743-Mariani 
Summary: 
The WSCJTC received a complaint alleging that the officer sexually assaulted his wife. The 
officer resigned in lieu of termination from his agency and surrendered his certification prior to 
the WSCJTC investigating the matter.   

 
 
Walwark, Daniel 
Case #: 22-026 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Thurston County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 10/22/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-026-Walwark-Daniel 
Summary: 
The officer was involved in an off-duty domestic violence incident which resulted in his arrest. 
In addition, the officer posted sexually explicit material online, including images of his naked 
body, which violated several agency policies. The officer was terminated from his agency.  

 
 
Hall, Leventine 
Case #: 21-015 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Sauk-Suiattle Police Department Effective Date: 10/17/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(a)(i)(A) - Convicted of a Felony Offense 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-015-Hall-Leventine 
Summary: 
The officer pleaded guilty to the crime of Harassment - Threats to Kill, a Class C felony. The 
charges stemmed from a drunken night at a sports bar where the officer retrieved his gun 
from his car and pointed the gun at someone he had met, threatening to shoot. The officer 
was terminated from his agency. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012743-Mariani
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-026-Walwark-Daniel
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-015-Hall-Leventine


2024 Certification Action Summaries  8 
 

Winegar, Tyler 
Case #: 23-407 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Clark County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 10/9/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct   

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-407-Winegar-Tyler 
Summary: 
The officer’s employer received a report that the officer was allegedly stealing drug evidence 
and using it. In an unrelated court declaration, the officer wrote that he brought suspected 
methamphetamine drug evidence to his residence and showed it to his partner, who then 
allegedly consumed the methamphetamine. The officer did not report this to anyone in his 
chain of command. During the internal investigation, the officer’s former partner denied using 
the methamphetamine. The officer resigned prior to a disciplinary hearing. After being 
interviewed for the WSCJTC certification investigation, the officer voluntarily surrendered his 
certification. 

 
 
Dixon, Thomas 
Case #: 2024-0012844 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: WA State Liquor and Cannabis 

Board 
Effective Date: 10/9/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(b) - Administrative Error 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012844-Dixon 
Summary: 
Pursuant to RCW 43.101.095, certain limited authority officers automatically received peace 
officer certification in July 2023. Depending on their prior training history, such officers, 
including the respondent, were required to engage in supplemental training. The officer chose 
not to complete the required training to retain their certification. 

 
 
Keller, J. Mark 
Case #: 2024-0012800 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: WA State Liquor and Cannabis 

Board 
Effective Date: 10/8/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(b) - Administrative Error 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012800-Keller 
Summary: 
Pursuant to RCW 43.101.095, certain limited authority officers automatically received peace 
officer certification in July 2023. Depending on their prior training history, such officers, 
including the respondent, were required to engage in supplemental training. The officer chose 
not to complete the required training to retain their certification. 

 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-407-Winegar-Tyler
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012844-Dixon
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012800-Keller


2024 Certification Action Summaries  9 
 

Burbridge, Nicole 
Case #: 21-040 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Spokane County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 10/8/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iii) - Unsafe Practices Involving Firearms, 
Weapons, or Vehicles 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-040-Burbridge-Nicole 
Summary: 
The officer failed her probationary period with her agency after several incidents that raised 
serious concerns about her fitness for duty. The officer’s agency also determined that she 
used police systems to inappropriately search sensitive law enforcement information, 
including information related to her boyfriend, who was a convicted felon. After completion of 
the WSCJTC certification investigation, the officer voluntarily surrendered her certification. 

 
 
Gonzalez, Fernando 
Case #: 24-419 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Grant County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 10/8/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(f) - Sexual Harassment 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-419-Gonzalez-Fernando 
Summary: 
The officer was terminated from his agency for having sexual contact with a female inmate 
after she was released. The officer was initially dishonest about his contact with the former 
inmate during an interview with a detective. Once the WSCJTC notified the officer that his 
certification was under review, he voluntarily surrendered his certification. 

 
 
Solberg, Joseph 
Case #: 2024-0012773 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Lewis County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 10/8/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012773-Solberg-Joseph 
Summary: 
In 2020, the officer resigned from the Lewis County Sheriff’s officer while under investigation 
for an inappropriate relationship with a witness and dishonesty. In 2024, WSCJTC received 
an anonymous complaint alleging that the officer raped a citizen in 2019. When the citizen 
reported the rape to the Lewis County in 2020, the agency referred the incident to Chehalis 
PD to investigate. The Lewis County Prosecutor's Office declined to charge on grounds that 
its attempts to contact the victim were unsuccessful. The officer surrendered his certification 
prior to a WSCJTC certification investigation. 

 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-040-Burbridge-Nicole
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-419-Gonzalez-Fernando
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012773-Solberg-Joseph


2024 Certification Action Summaries  10 
 

D’Angelo, Anthony 
Case #: 20-788 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Milton Police Department Effective Date: 10/8/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(c) - Falsified Information on Application 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(i) - Extremism 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-788-DAngelo-Anthony 
Summary: 
The officer resigned in lieu of termination after Milton PD received a report from the FBI 
alleging that he provided sensitive law enforcement information to individuals under criminal 
investigation while working for a prior agency. Additionally, Milton alleged that the officer did 
not disclose that he was under investigation for the same conduct when he applied for his 
lateral position with Milton. The officer surrendered his certification during the pendency of the 
WSCJTC investigation.   

 
 
Raysbrook, Mark 
Case #: 22-082 Certification Action: Revoked - Summary 

Judgment 
Agency: Snohomish County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date: 9/25/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-082-Raysbrook-Mark 
Summary: 
The officer was terminated by his agency for knowingly making a false police report and false 
statements to dispatch, his supervisor, and an internal affairs investigator regarding his 
collision in a department vehicle. The officer ultimately admitted his fault in the accident. The 
commission filed a motion for summary judgment on grounds that there were no disputed 
material facts for a hearing panel to determine, and that revocation was required by law under 
RCW 43.101.105(2). The Administrative Law Judge issued a recommended order granting 
the commission’s motion, and the Executive Director issued a final order revoking his 
certification.   

 
 
McCallister, Troy 
Case #: 2024-0012739 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: WA State Liquor and Cannabis 

Board 
Effective Date: 9/4/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(b) - Administrative Error 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012739-McCallister 
Summary: 
Pursuant to RCW 43.101.095, certain limited authority officers automatically received peace 
officer certification in July 2023. Depending on their prior training history, such officers, 
including the respondent, were required to engage in supplemental training. The officer chose 
not to complete the required training to retain their certification. 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-788-DAngelo-Anthony
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-082-Raysbrook-Mark
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012739-McCallister


2024 Certification Action Summaries  11 
 

Seltzer, Kraig 
Case #: 2024-0012740 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: WA State Liquor and Cannabis 

Board 
Effective Date: 9/4/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(b) - Administrative Error 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012740-Seltzer 
Summary: 
Pursuant to RCW 43.101.095, certain limited authority officers automatically received peace 
officer certification in July 2023. Depending on their prior training history, such officers, 
including the respondent, were required to engage in supplemental training. The officer chose 
not to complete the required training to retain their certification. 

 
 
Masias, Anthony 
Case #: 2024-0012753 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: WA State Liquor and Cannabis 

Board 
Effective Date: 9/4/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(b) - Administrative Error 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012753-Masias 
Summary: 
Pursuant to RCW 43.101.095, certain limited authority officers automatically received peace 
officer certification in July 2023. Depending on their prior training history, such officers, 
including the respondent, were required to engage in supplemental training. The officer chose 
not to complete the required training to retain their certification. 

 
 
Neumann, Jerry 
Case #: C22-009 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Palouse Police Department Effective Date: 8/27/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 
Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/C22-009-Neumann-Jerry 
Summary: 
The officer was terminated by his agency for submitting overtime claims for time he did not 
work, failing to complete incident reports, issuing concealed pistol licenses without conducting 
proper background checks, failing to follow policies regarding authorization of sick leave 
requests, and being untruthful to internal affairs investigators. The officer voluntarily 
surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012740-Seltzer
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012753-Masias
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcjtc.box.com%2Fv%2FC22-009-Neumann-Jerry&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C4d7fe9b3f8f148b8a56c08dcc77da4b0%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638604589647188230%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=u8ahGQuGMwu7NYkZtBz%2FMI6eUV461%2FZvVcJWcwZGlwk%3D&reserved=0


2024 Certification Action Summaries  12 
 

Corier, Jabe 
Case #: R22-128 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Walla Walla County Corrections Effective Date: 8/27/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(e) - Excessive Force 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/R22-128-Corier-Jabe  
Summary: 
The officer used unreasonable and excessive force against an inmate who was on suicide 
watch within his own cell. The officer further failed to document the use of force and refer the 
inmate to medical services for his injuries as required by agency policy. After receiving the 
Statement of Charges, the officer failed to request an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day 
period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, his 
certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Chastain, Matthew 
Case #: 2024-12708 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: South Correctional Entity 

(SCORE) 
Effective Date: 8/20/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(f) - Sexual Harassment 
RCW. 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/2024-0012708-Chastain-Matthew 
Summary: 
The WSCJTC received a Notice of Separation from the officer’s employer indicating the 
officer resigned during an active investigation. After the WSCJTC notified the officer that his 
certification was under review, he voluntarily surrendered his certification. 

 
 
Jones, Nina 
Case #: 20-820 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Seattle Police Department Effective Date: 7/31/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/20-820-Jones-Nina  
Summary: 
The officer was terminated after it was discovered that she provided false statements during 
an internal investigation regarding her personal use of police systems to obtain information 
about her former partner and legal proceedings regarding their minor child. Furthermore, the 
officer failed to disclose that her former partner had successfully obtained an anti-harassment 
order against her. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed to request an 
adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-
06-050(2). Consequently, her certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
 
 
 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcjtc.box.com%2Fv%2FR22-128-Corier-Jabe&data=05%7C02%7CLauren.Allen%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C4d7fe9b3f8f148b8a56c08dcc77da4b0%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638604589647173273%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TvcwWN2D10%2FVF1Ayh37E4yp7%2BmoxW2PQmV4KVCqVBhU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcjtc.box.com%2Fv%2F2024-0012708-Chastain-Matthew&data=05%7C02%7Callison.salvador%40cjtc.wa.gov%7Cd4177641ee714ab1e29d08dcc239abfb%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638598800150706367%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kX3dQ9s9%2FN%2BB6zigiMeWKFbzcnvQZFeSu%2BHKGW9K9u0%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcjtc.box.com%2Fv%2F20-820-Jones-Nina&data=05%7C02%7Callison.salvador%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C7ac0e379740244cef29208dcc066b300%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638596794519828311%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=LbJF%2B79TBPpPojcbJHiwST2Ud%2B%2BSzTSFw2857UaTOZA%3D&reserved=0


2024 Certification Action Summaries  13 
 

Wartts-Smiles, Dahmar 
Case #: 20-777 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: University of Washington  

Police Department 
Effective Date: 7/30/2024 

 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/20-777-Warrta-Smiles 
Summary: 
The officer resigned after it was revealed that he provided false or misleading statements 
regarding a domestic violence incident with his romantic partner in Nevada. The officer 
voluntarily surrendered his certification after a Statement of Charges was issued by the 
WSCJTC. 

 
 
Litovchenko, Mark 
Case #: 21-062 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Bellingham Police Department Effective Date: 7/30/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(g) - Use of Position for Personal Gain 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/21-062-Litovchenko-Mark 
Summary: 
The officer resigned in lieu of termination due to a city vaccine mandate. However, the officer 
also resigned while under investigation for the statements he made during a Whatcom County 
Sheriff’s Department interview. During his polygraph exam, the officer admitted to sleeping 
while on duty, being involved in a hit and run incident, and committing fraud at his off-duty 
employment. The officer voluntarily surrendered his certification before a Statement of 
Charges was issued. 

 
 

 

Lewis, Mark 
Case #: 23-021 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Washington State Patrol Effective Date: 7/15/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(h) - Discrimination 

RCW43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/23-021-Lewis-Mark 
Summary: 
The officer retired while under investigation for misconduct while serving as an instructor for 
the Washington State Patrol Driving Portion of the Basic Law Enforcement Academy.  The 
officer was charged with making statements that discriminated on the basis of sex, as well as 
making inappropriate physical contact with one or more female officers. After receiving a 
Statement of Charges, the officer requested an adjudicative hearing. Prior to the hearing, the 
officer voluntarily surrendered his certification. 

https://cjtc.box.com/v/20-777-Warrta-Smiles
https://cjtc.box.com/v/21-062-Litovchenko-Mark
https://cjtc.box.com/v/23-021-Lewis-Mark


2024 Certification Action Summaries  14 
 

Henderson, Kristopher 
Case #: 20-789 Certification Action: Revoked 
Agency: Spokane Police Department Effective Date: 7/13/2024 
Charges: Assault in 4th Degree - Domestic Violence 

False or Misleading Statements 
Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/20-789-Henderson-Kristofer 
Summary: 
Officers were taking an uncooperative suspect into custody. Once handcuffed and 
surrounded by officers, the suspect kicked his leg backwards, striking an officer. The subject 
officer responded by swiftly kicking the handcuffed suspect in the groin and stating, “there you 
go, motherfucker.” In his report of the incident, the officer provided materially inaccurate 
descriptions of the use of force. The officer was terminated for the use of force and making 
false and misleading statements in his report and the subsequent internal affairs 
investigation. The hearing panel found the officer used excessive and unreasonable force and 
knowingly filed a police report with false or misleading statements regarding his use of force. 

 
 
Conway, Bradley 
Case #: 21-026 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Seattle Police Department Effective Date: 7/10/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/21-026-Conway-Bradley 
Summary: 
The officer retired in lieu of termination after an internal investigation revealed that he had 
been illegally purchasing and using prescription painkillers. The officer was also found to 
have been dishonest in a previous internal affairs investigation regarding his use of 
intoxicants while on duty. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer requested an 
adjudicative hearing. However, both the officer and his attorney failed to appear at a pre-
hearing conference. The officer’s certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Browning-Wykes, Melissa 
Case #: 21-024 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Klickitat County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 7/9/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/21-024-Wykes-Melissa 
Summary: 
The officer resigned in lieu of termination after an internal investigation revealed she was 
untruthful when she told the Sherriff she contacted him for a time off request because her 
supervisor was busy. The officer voluntarily surrendered her certification before a Statement 
of Charges was issued. 

 
 
 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcjtc.box.com%2Fv%2F20-789-Henderson-Kristofer&data=05%7C02%7Callison.salvador%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C4a28e3461ceb48c6962b08dcb0026cfd%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638578771673536362%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yPXy4vGBbZ1%2BU6TFZhnl8CSfLIWJpAUAnxyqOWDRKeM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcjtc.box.com%2Fv%2F21-026-Conway-Bradley&data=05%7C02%7Callison.salvador%40cjtc.wa.gov%7C4a28e3461ceb48c6962b08dcb0026cfd%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638578771673545271%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AdYe%2BuhI5P3iDNUcQO8JerpYWKlyPGcCJu%2Boxw2qrJg%3D&reserved=0
https://cjtc.box.com/v/21-024-Wykes-Melissa


2024 Certification Action Summaries  15 
 

Martin, Marcus 
Case #: 20-821 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Seattle Police Department Effective Date: 7/3/2024 
Charges: Failure of Duty 

Official Misconduct 
False or Misleading Statements 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/20-821-Martin-Marcus  
Summary: 
While on duty, the officer committed a hit and run with his patrol vehicle. The owner 
witnessed the officer hit their car and subsequently reported the hit and run. The officer 
responded to the call regarding the hit and run, turned off his body-worn video, and attempted 
to dissuade the owner from making a police report. The officer was found to have made false 
or misleading statements about his involvement in the collision and was terminated. After 
receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed to request an adjudicative hearing within 
the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, 
his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Kisler, Brian 
Case #: 22-030 Certification Action: Surrendered  
Agency: Grant County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 7/2/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/22-030-Kisler-Brian 
Summary: 
The officer was terminated after an investigation into allegations of sexual molestation of a 
minor, during which the officer made false or misleading statements. The officer voluntarily 
surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
Holloway, Isaiah 
Case #: 2024-0012655 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Okanogan County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 7/2/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012655-Holloway-Isaiah  
Summary: 
It was alleged that the officer traded sex in exchange for not enforcing the law and/or 
providing confidential police information. The officer’s agency found that the officer violated 
agency policies that precluded close personal associations with a practicing criminal.  The 
officer voluntarily surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.box.com/v/20-821-Martin-Marcus
https://cjtc.box.com/v/22-030-Kisler-Brian
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012655-Holloway-Isaiah


2024 Certification Action Summaries  16 
 

Heath, Woody 
Case #: 22-172 Certification Action: Settled - Probation 
Agency: King County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 7/2/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iii) - Unsafe Practices Involving Firearms, 

Weapons, or Vehicles 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/R22-172-Heath-Woody 
Summary: 
The officer was arrested for DUI and Reckless Driving while off duty. The officer pled guilty to 
Negligent Driving in the 1st Degree and fully complied with the terms of his sentence. As a 
result of the incident, the officer was suspended for 120 hours without pay, transferred to a 
different division with increased supervision, and received a reduction in pay. After the 
WSCJTC issued a Statement Charges, the parties reached a settlement. The officer agreed 
to a probationary period of four years. During this period, any additional violations of RCW 
43.101.105 or any criminal charges will result in the automatic revocation of his certification.  
The officer also agreed to participate in therapy, refrain from the use of alcohol and drugs, 
provide WSCJTC with annual drug/alcohol assessments, complete various trainings, and 
speak to BLEA recruits about the importance of seeking mental health support. 

 
 
Sparza, Arturo 
Case #: 21-063 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: South Correctional Entity 

(SCORE) 
Effective Date: 6/12/2024 

Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-063-Sparaza-Arturo 
Summary: 
The officer sold his shift bid to another officer and was dishonest with a senior officer 
regarding his actions. The officer resigned while under investigation. After receiving the 
Statement of Charges, the officer failed to request an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day 
period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, his 
certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.box.com/v/R22-172-Heath-Woody
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-063-Sparaza-Arturo


2024 Certification Action Summaries  17 
 

Seiffert, Drew 
Case #: 23-340 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Spokane County Detention Effective Date: 6/3/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
Link: https://cjtc.box.com/v/23-340-Seiffert-Drew 
Summary: 
The officer was placed on administrative leave after an investigation revealed that he 
engaged in a consensual sexual relationship with a female inmate. The officer was eventually 
charged with four counts of Custodial Sexual Misconduct in the First Degree. After receiving 
the Statement of Charges, the officer requested an adjudicative hearing. However, the officer 
and his attorney failed to appear for a pre-hearing conference, and his certification was 
revoked by default. 

 
 
Ramos, Moses 
Case #: 23-594 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: King County Department of Adult 

Detention 
Effective Date: 5/23/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-594-Ramos-Moses 
Summary: 
The officer was terminated after an internal investigation revealed the officer was present 
when an inmate assaulted another inmate and actively ignored the altercation. The officer 
voluntarily surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
Hatchett, William 
Case #: 21-001 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Ferndale Police Department Effective Date: 5/1/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iii) - Unsafe Practices Involving Firearms, 

Weapons, or Vehicles 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-001-Hatchett-William 
Summary: 
While on duty, the officer responded to a personal emergency at his home in his patrol 
vehicle. While speeding at more than double the speed limit with his lights and siren turned 
on, the officer ran a red light and crashed into another vehicle. The other driver sustained 
serious injuries. As a result, the officer was criminally charged with Vehicular Assault and 
retired in lieu of termination. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed to 
request an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and 
WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 

https://cjtc.box.com/v/23-340-Seiffert-Drew
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-594-Ramos-Moses
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-001-Hatchett-William


2024 Certification Action Summaries  18 
 

Tisdale, Keith 
Case #: 20-824 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Seattle Police Department Effective Date: 4/29/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(h) - Discrimination 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-824-Tisdale-Keith 
Summary: 
The officer engaged in a public dispute with his spouse while intoxicated. When police were 
called to the scene, the officer fought with the responding officer. An internal investigation 
revealed that the officer used derogatory and unprofessional language against his coworkers 
and unhoused individuals while on duty. The officer was terminated from employment. After 
receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed to request an adjudicative hearing within 
the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, 
his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Brunner, Michael 
Case #: 20-799 Certification Action: Settled - Probation 
Agency: Spokane Police Department Effective Date: 4/19/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iii) - Unsafe Practices Involving Firearms, 

Weapons, or Vehicles 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-799-Brunner-Michael 
Summary: 
While on duty and without a legitimate law enforcement purpose, the officer was driving at 65-
mph in a 25-mph zone. The officer struck a civilian vehicle and seriously injured the 
occupants. The officer was suspended without pay for 30 days and ordered to participate in 
remedial training. He pleaded guilty to a misdemeanor and was sentenced to a year of 
probation. After receiving a Statement of Charges, the officer requested an adjudicative 
hearing. However, the parties reached a settlement agreement before the hearing. The officer 
agreed to a two-year probationary period during which further misconduct will result in 
automatic revocation. He will also receive remedial training and speak to Basic Law 
Enforcement Academy classes about the risks and consequences of reckless driving. 
Furthermore, the officer agreed to write a letter of apology to the occupants of the vehicle and 
attend a victim impact panel on reckless driving.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-824-Tisdale-Keith
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-799-Brunner-Michael


2024 Certification Action Summaries  19 
 

Malloy, Daniel 
Case #: 21-049 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: King County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 4/18/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-049-Malloy-Daniel 
Summary: 
While on duty, the officer made inappropriate sexual advances on a female civilian at her 
workplace. In addition, the officer worked as a pilot instructor while under the influence of 
intoxicants. The officer resigned in lieu of termination from his agency. After receiving the 
Statement of Charges, the officer failed request an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day 
period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, his 
certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Nieder, John 
Case #: C22-059 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Island County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 4/18/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(f) - Sexual Harassment 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/C22-059-Nieder-John 
Summary: 
The officer sexually harassed a fellow officer while working with the Island County Sheriff’s 
Office. Furthermore, the officer was arrested and charged with two felony counts of Rape in 
the Second Degree. The officer resigned in lieu of termination from the Island County Sheriff’s 
Office. After being served with the Statement of Charges, the officer failed request an 
adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-
06-050(2). Consequently, his certification was revoked by default.   

 
 
Riley, Joshua 
Case #: 23-518 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Kennewick Police Department Effective Date: 3/26/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(2)(a)(i)(B) - Convicted of a Gross Misdemeanor or 

Domestic Violence Offense 
RCW 43.101.105(2)(e) - Prohibited from Possessing Weapons 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-518-Riley-Joshua 
Summary: 
The officer was arrested for Domestic Violence assault after pointing a loaded gun at his 
spouse and child while intoxicated. The officer resigned in lieu of termination. He voluntarily 
surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-049-Malloy-Daniel
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/C22-059-Nieder-John
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-518-Riley-Joshua


2024 Certification Action Summaries  20 
 

Jahner, Jesse 
Case #: 18-723 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Tacoma Police Department Effective Date: 3/25/2024 
Charges: Official Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/18-723-Jahner-Jesse 
Summary: 
The officer responded to a 911 call for a juvenile experiencing a mental health episode. The 
officer and his partner repeatedly prodded the juvenile’s guardian to beat them with a belt. 
The officer held down the juvenile while the guardian struck them. The officer was charged 
with Assault of a Child in the Third Degree and Official Misconduct and was ultimately 
convicted of Official Misconduct. He was terminated from his agency. After receiving a 
Statement of Charges, the officer requested an adjudicative hearing. However, prior to his 
hearing, the officer voluntarily surrendered his certification. 

 
 
Gandy, Brandon 
Case #: 23-339 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Seattle Police Department Effective Date: 3/19/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-339-Gandy-Brandon 
Summary: 
An internal investigation revealed that the officer associated with drug traffickers and was 
likely involved in the trafficking of illegal narcotics. The officer resigned prior to termination 
from his agency. The officer surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was 
issued. 

 
 
Miner, James 
Case #: 23-388 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Snohomish County Sheriff’s Office Effective Date:  
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(h) - Discrimination 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-388-Miner-James 
Summary: 
The officer self-reported his use of derogatory and homophobic slurs against an arrested 
person that was captured on body-worn video. He retired in lieu of termination from his 
agency. The officer surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/18-723-Jahner-Jesse
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-339-Gandy-Brandon
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-388-Miner-James


2024 Certification Action Summaries  21 
 

Chavez, Gregory 
Case #: 23-095 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Kitsap County Sheriff’s Corrections 

Division 
Effective Date: 3/12/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(f) - Sexual Harassment 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-095-Chavez-Gregory 
Summary: 
The officer resigned while under investigation after it was revealed that he had been sexually 
harassing one of his female coworkers. The officer was previously disciplined for making 
sexually explicit comments. The officer surrendered his certification before a Statement of 
Charges was issued. 

 
 
Kircher, Keith 
Case #: 23-406 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Vancouver Police Department Effective Date: 3/12/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(h) - Discrimination 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-406-Kircher-Keith 
Summary: 
The officer resigned while under investigation for harassing and making derogatory 
statements about a female coworker, with whom the officer had a previous relationship. 
Furthermore, the WSCJTC’s investigation revealed that the officer made false or misleading 
statements regarding his work history and professional qualifications. The officer surrendered 
his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
Rojas, Patricia 
Case #: 23-089 Certification Action: Surrendered  
Agency: Pacific County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 2/27/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(ii) - Violation of Rights 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-089-Rojas-Patricia 
Summary: 
An in-custody death occurred while the officer was on duty. On the night the inmate died, they 
made repeated requests for medical attention that the officer ignored. An investigation 
revealed that the officer also failed to perform security checks on inmates. Forgery charges 
were filed against the officer for falsifying the security check log. The officer surrendered her 
certification as part of a plea deal. 

 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-095-Chavez-Gregory
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-406-Kircher-Keith
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-089-Rojas-Patricia


2024 Certification Action Summaries  22 
 

Huft, Tina 
Case #: 23-668 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Cowlitz County Corrections 

Department 
Effective Date: 2/15/2024 

Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-688-Huft-Tina 
Summary: 
The officer tased an inmate who threw cake at officers during an altercation. In her incident 
report, the officer provided a false statement regarding the incident. The officer was placed on 
Administrative Leave and resigned two days later. The officer surrendered her certification 
before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
Bottemiller, Tracy 
Case #: 22-066 Certification Action: Revoked 
Agency: Cowlitz County Corrections Effective Date: 2/12/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(e) - Excessive Force 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-066-Bottemiller-Tracy 
Summary: 
The hearing panel found the officer used excessive force against a partially handcuffed, 
restrained inmate by punching the inmate in the neck and head five to six times. The punches 
occurred after the officer had gained control of the inmate and the inmate was not physically 
resisting.   

 
 
Malpica, Edwin 
Case #: 19-758 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Western Washington University 

Police Department 
Effective Date: 2/6/2024 

 
Charges: False or Misleading Statements; Failure of Duty 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/19-758-Malpica-Edwin 
Summary: 
The officer was found to have knowingly made false or misleading statements to his superiors 
regarding a report to the Social Security Administration and the Whatcom County Sheriff’s 
Office, and later during an internal affairs investigation. The officer also willfully neglected to 
provide his supervisor with information regarding potential criminal activity. He was terminated 
by his agency. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed request an 
adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-
06-050(2). Consequently, his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-688-Huft-Tina
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-066-Bottemiller-Tracy
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/19-758-Malpica-Edwin


2024 Certification Action Summaries  23 
 

Brenner, Austin 
Case #: 21-003 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Skagit County Sheriff's Office Effective Date: 2/6/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-003-Brenner-Austin 
Summary: 
While off duty, the officer was arrested by Bellingham Police Department for domestic 
violence malicious mischief. During the incident, the officer threatened and physically 
attacked multiple individuals at a neighbor’s party, caused physical damage to his property, 
and acted aggressively towards responding officers. The officer was terminated from his 
agency. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed request an adjudicative 
hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2). 
Consequently, his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Clary, John 
Case #: 23-221 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Toppenish Police Department Effective Date: 2/6/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-221-Clary-John 
Summary: 
While working with the Federal Way Police Department (FWPD), the officer asked his wife, a 
fellow officer of FWPD, to approve his overtime hours. As a result, the pair’s actions raised 
concerns of nepotism. Subsequently, the officer resigned during the department’s internal 
investigation. Furthermore, the officer failed to disclose the incident to the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office when applying for employment. The officer surrendered his certification before 
a Statement of Charges was issued.  

 
 
Clary, Brigit 
Case #: 23-681 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Richland Police Department Effective Date: 2/6/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-681-Clary-Brigit 
Summary: 
While working with the Federal Way Police Department (FWPD), the officer signed overtime 
approval sheets for her husband, who was also working with FWPD at the time. The officer 
resigned while under investigation and in lieu of termination. FWPD eventually concluded that 
the officer had provided false or misleading statements concerning her unauthorized conduct. 
Furthermore, the officer did not disclose FWPD’s internal investigation findings to the 
Richland Police Department when applying for employment. While acting as the Chief of 
Richland Police Department, the officer was investigated for violations of law and policy in an 
attempt to keep FWPD’s internal investigation from being publicly released. The officer 
surrendered her certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-003-Brenner-Austin
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-221-Clary-John
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-681-Clary-Brigit


2024 Certification Action Summaries  24 
 

Campos, Michael 
Case #: 20-790 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Wapato Police Department Effective Date: 1/31/2024 
Charges: Perjury in the First Degree; Intimidating a Witness 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-790-Campos-Michael 
Summary: 
While conducting a criminal interrogation, the officer intimidated a witness to change their 
testimony and implicate an elected official. The officer also knowingly made false statements 
to an Administrative Law Judge during an unemployment compensation hearing. He was 
terminated by his agency. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed request 
an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 
139-06-050(2). Consequently, his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Beck, Justin 
Case #: 21-051 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Walla Walla County Corrections 

Department 
Effective Date: 1/3-0/2024 

Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-051-Beck-Justin 
Summary: 
The officer knowingly made false statements to fellow officers and to an investigator during an 
internal affairs investigation. In addition, the officer took a belt from an inmate trial suit without 
permission and made false statements to staff regarding a COVID-19 test. The officer 
resigned in lieu of termination. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed to 
request an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and 
WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Rodriguez, Thomas 
Case #: 20-784 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Steilacoom Department of Public 

Safety 
Effective Date: 1/23/2024 

 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(f) - Sexual Harassment 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-784-Rodriguez-Thomas 
Summary: 
The officer was terminated by his agency. There was an indication within the file received by 
the WSCJTC that misconduct may have been involved; however, there was a settlement 
agreement that prevented the WSCJTC from speaking with an impacted party. After being 
notified that he was under WSCJTC investigation, the officer agreed to surrender his 
certification.  

 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-790-Campos-Michael
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-051-Beck-Justin
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-784-Rodriguez-Thomas


2024 Certification Action Summaries  25 
 

Brazas, Robert 
Case #: 23-217 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Washington State Patrol Effective Date: 1/23/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-217-Brazas-Robert 
Summary: 
The officer retired in lieu of termination after it was alleged that there were periods of time 
where the officer was unaccounted for while on duty and that he was untruthful with his 
supervisor. The WSP found that the officer had a sexual relationship with one of his female 
coworkers and would visit her house while on duty. When confronted, the officer denied the 
allegations. The officer surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was 
issued.   

 
 
Do, Loc 
Case #: 20-791 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Washington State Department of 

Fish and Wildlife Police 
Effective Date: 1/17/2024 

 
Charges: False or Misleading Statements 
Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-791-Do-Loc 
Summary: 
The officer knowingly entered false or misleading information into his daily activity records. 
Additionally, the officer knowingly provided false or misleading material statements to 
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife investigators during an internal investigation 
concerning the officer's daily activity records and job performance. The officer requested a 
hearing but notified the WSCJTC of his intent to withdraw the hearing request prior to the 
hearing. Consequently, his certification was revoked by default. 

 
 
Nguyen, Quan 
Case #: 21-050 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Renton Police Department Effective Date: 1/17/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-050-Nguyen-Quan 
Summary: 
The officer stole luggage from Sea-Tac airport while off duty, then made false or misleading 
statements to Port of Seattle Police Department officers when questioned about his 
involvement in the theft. Lastly, the officer provided false or misleading statements in a 
Renton Police Department internal affairs investigation. The officer resigned in lieu of 
termination. The officer did not request an administrative hearing with the WSCJTC, and his 
peace officer certification was revoked by default.  

 
 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-217-Brazas-Robert
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-791-Do-Loc
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-050-Nguyen-Quan


2024 Certification Action Summaries  26 
 

Robinson, Cleades 
Case #: 23-117 Certification Action: Surrendered 
Agency: Seattle Police Department Effective Date: 1/17/2024 
Allegations: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-117-Robinson-Cleades 
Summary: 
The officer resigned during an internal investigation into his communication with King County 
Sheriff’s Office undercover officers posing as sex workers. The officer was not charged with a 
crime. He surrendered his certification before a Statement of Charges was issued. 

 
 
Reynolds, Phillip 
Case #: 21-069 Certification Action: Revoked 
Agency: Centralia Police Department Effective Date: 1/16/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 

RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-069-Reynolds-Phillip 
Summary: 
The officer failed to respond to a 911 call for a domestic violence assault involving a suspect 
with outstanding arrest warrants because he was cooking pizza for his colleagues. In a 
separate incident, the officer failed to investigate and act on a domestic violence vehicle-
versus-pedestrian hit and run collision that resulted in serious bodily injury. The agency found 
that officer was dishonest in the internal affairs investigation. The officer was terminated from 
employment. The hearing panel dismissed the charge for dishonesty but sustained the other 
charges. 

 
 
Beckman, Michael 
Case #: 21-041 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Kalispel Tribal Public Safety 

Department 
Effective Date: 1/10/2024 

Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(e) - Excessive Force 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-041-Beckman-Michael 
Summary: 
While conducting an arrest, the officer reported that he was assaulted by the suspect. 
However, surveillance footage revealed that the assault did not occur. Rather, the officer 
tased the suspect during a foot pursuit. As a result, the officer violated Kalispel policies for 
making false or misleading statements on a police report and arresting a subject on a falsified 
charge. The officer resigned in lieu of termination. After receiving the Statement of Charges, 
the officer failed to request an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 
43.101.155(1) and WAC 139-06-050(2). Consequently, his certification was revoked by 
default. 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-117-Robinson-Cleades
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-069-Reynolds-Phillip
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-041-Beckman-Michael


2024 Certification Action Summaries  27 
 

 

 

Berg, John  
Case #: 21-032 Certification Action: Revoked - Default 
Agency: Puyallup Police Department Effective Date: 1/2/2024 
Charges: RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements 

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional Conduct 
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct 

Link: https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-032-Berg-John 
Summary: 
The officer retired in lieu of termination after an administrative investigation found that he 
gave false statements to his superiors regarding multiple criminal investigations. Furthermore, 
the officer failed to properly investigate multiple cases assigned to him, which led to delays 
and put victims at risk. After receiving the Statement of Charges, the officer failed to request 
an adjudicative hearing within the 60-day period required by RCW 43.101.155(1) and WAC 
139-06-050(2). Consequently, his certification was revoked by default. 

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-032-Berg-John


Certification Report
Disciplinary Outcomes November 21, 2024 - February 24, 2025

Case # Officer Name Last Employing Agency Charge(s) and/or Allegation(s) Certification Action Effective Date Origin

21-038 Negrete, Mark Selah Police Department

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iii) - Unsafe Practices Involving 
Firearms, Weapons, or Vehicles
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misonduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification Surrendered Certification 2/19/2025 NOS Misconduct

23-070 Sheppard, Aaron Richland Police Department

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misonduct Revoked - Default 2/11/2025 NOS Misconduct

2025-0000020 King, Curtis Pasco Police Department RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification Surrendered Certification 1/29/2025 NOS Misconduct

21-042 Everett, Alexander Seattle Police Department

RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misonduct Revoked - Default 1/15/2025 NOS Misconduct

21-043 Everett, Caitlin Seattle Police Department

RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misonduct Revoked - Default 1/15/2025 NOS Misconduct

23-390 Palaita, Emmanuel King County Department of Adult 

RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misonduct Revoked - Default 1/14/2025 CJ Form 1915 Reporting

22-002 Lynch, Nathan Port Orchard Police Department

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misonduct Revoked - Default 1/14/2025 NOS Misconduct

2024-0012946 Wheeler, Scott Pierce County Sheriff's Office

RCW 43.101.105(3)(l) - Voluntary Surrender of Certification
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct Surrendered Certification 1/14/2025 NOS Misconduct

22-036 Phipps, Michael Pierce County Sheriff's Office RCW 43.101.105(2)(a)(i)(A) - Convicted of a Felony Offense Revoked - Default 12/10/2024 NOS Misconduct

20-795 Goss, Robert Tieton Police Department

RCW 43.101.105(2)(d) - False or Misleading Statements
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct Revoked - Default 12/3/2024 NOS Misconduct

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-038-Negrete-Mark
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-070-Sheppard-Aaron
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2025-0000020-King
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-042-Everett-Alexander
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/21-043-Everett-Caitlin
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-390-Palaita
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-002-Lynch-Nathan
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/2024-0012946-Wheeler
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/22-036-Phipps
https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/20-795-Goss-Robert


Certification Report
Disciplinary Outcomes November 21, 2024 - February 24, 2025

23-083 Amichia, Niamkey Puyallup Police Department

RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(i) - Committed a Felony
RCW 43.101.105(3)(c) - Falsified Information on Application
RCW 43.101.105(3)(j)(iv) - Unethical or Unprofessional 
Conduct
RCW 43.101.105(3)(k) - Separated for Misconduct Revoked - Default 11/26/2024 Division Initiated

https://cjtc.app.box.com/v/23-083-Amichia-Niamkey


 

CERTIFICATION: 2024 Year End 
 

 

 



CERTIFICATION: 2024 Year End (continued) 
 

 

 



CERTIFICATION: 2024 Year End (continued) 
 

 

Monthly Tracking 2024 
 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

Intake (Total) 88 82 164 111 65 51 72 55 71 82 75 66 982 
     Complaint 19 17 122 57 48 27 35 32 43 43 38 38 520 
     CJ 1915 Reporting 51 46 28 39 11 13 29 17 19 27 20 23 302 
     NOS Misconduct 16 13 13 15 6 10 7 3 6 4 17 4 114 
     Division Initiated 2 6 1 - - 1 1 3 3 8 - 1 26 
Assigned for Investigation 6 16 34 10 - 10 13 6 3 9 3 - 111 
Administrative Review 4 10 9 10 10 23 11 31 18 18 3 13 160 
Sent to AAG 1 4 1 - - - 1 - - 2 1 1 11 
Sent to Hearing Coordinator 3 8 9 2 5 3 4 5 5 10 6 - 60 
Closed (Total) 47 59 100 69 9 47 38 38 73 59 27 18 584 
     Denied Certification - - - - - - 1 - - - - - 1 
     Revocation         67 
           • Default 6 2 - 3 1 1 4 1 - 3 2 2 25 
           • Summary Judgment - - - - - - - - 1 - - - 1 
           • Hearing 1 1 - - - - 1 - - 1 - - 4 
           • Surrendered 3 4 6 - 1 - 6 2 3 8 4 - 37 
     Expired Certification 1 - - - - - - - - - - - 1 
     Settlement - - - - 1 - 1 - - - 2 - 4 
     Decline - 8 3 - 2 3 1 1 1 5 3 4 31 
     Administrative Closure  480 
           • Insufficient Information - 1 - 1 3 3 1 1 4 3 - - 17 
           • Implausible - - - 1 - 1 2 2 1 - 1 1 9 
           • Lack of Jurisdiction 17 27 28 15 - 31 17 21 31 14 12 7 220 
           • Not Certified or Deceased  - - - 2 - 4 3 4 4 4 3 4 28 
           • Revoked 2 1 1 1 - - - - - - - - 5 
           • Duplicate Case  17 15 62 46 1 4 1 6 28 21 - - 201 

 

Additional Closed Cases 2024 
BTD Cases 20 HR Cases  9 

Forms Processing YTD 2024 
Notice of Hire (NOH) 1664 
Notice of Separation (NOS) 1315 
% of NOS Reporting Misconduct 8.6% 

 



 

Certification: November 2024 – January 2025 

  

  
 

Tracking November 2024 – January 2025 
Intake (Total) 214 Closed (Total) 100 
     CJ Form 1915 Reporting 79      Denied Certification  0 
     Complaints 103      Revocation - Default 8 
     NOS Misconduct 29      Revocation Summary Judgment 0 
     Division Initiated 3      Revocation - Hearing 0 
Assigned for Investigation 3      Revocation – Surrendered Certification  6 
Administrative Review 16      Settlement 2 
Sent to AAG 2      Expired Certification 0 
Sent to Hearing Coordinator 14      Decline 8 
Assistant Director Review 8      Administrative Closure 76 
Executive Director Review 1 ED/AD Review Complete 6 

 

Additional Closed Cases November 2024 – January 2025 
BTD Cases  3 HR Cases  4 

 

Forms Processing November 2024 – January 2025 
Notice of Hire (NOH) 387 
Notice of Separation (NOS) 245 
% of NOS Reporting Misconduct 11% 

 



 Cer�fica�on Report Glossary 

 

Revised 1/2025 
 

YTD Intake Chart - Chart represen�ng all cases complaints, CJ Form 1915 Repor�ng, Division Ini�ated, and No�ces of Separa�on 
where misconduct is reported for each month of the current year.  

Status Chart – Chart represen�ng the status of all cases currently open.  

• Intake – Cases in Intake status. The Cer�fica�on Division receives a complaint or agency report, logs the incident, and 
assigns a case number. For complaints, the complainant is no�fied their complaint has been received and provided a case 
number. 

• Intake Review – Cases that are being reviewed by the Chief Inves�gator or Opera�ons Manager to determine if the 
complaint or agency report alleges misconduct which, if true, would invoke the WSCJTC’s authority under RCW 43.101.105.  

• Inves�ga�on – Cases under ac�ve inves�ga�on. A WSCJTC inves�gator conducts a fair, independent, objec�ve, thorough, 
and �mely inves�ga�on and completes an inves�ga�on report. 

• Administra�ve Review – Cases in Administra�ve Review status. The Chief Inves�gator, Opera�ons Manager, Division 
Manager, and Assistant Director review the inves�ga�on. At each level of administra�ve review, the inves�ga�on report is 
either approved or returned to the inves�gator for addi�onal inves�ga�on.   

• AAG – Cases currently under review with the Assistant Atorney General for poten�al issuance of a Statement of Charges. 
• Hearing Coordinator – Cases undergoing the hearing process. 
• Pending Setlement - Charges against the officer were resolved pursuant to a setlement agreement and final order and the 

officer is s�ll fulfilling the terms of the setlement. 
• Execu�ve Director Review - Cases under review with the Execu�ve Director. 
• Assistant Director Review – Cases under review with the Assistant Director. 
• Open Pending Expira�on – Cases that are open but cannot be ac�vely inves�gated due to circumstances beyond the 

Commission’s control.  These cases remain open un�l the officer’s cer�fica�on expires and a flag is placed on the officer’s 
profile indica�ng that a misconduct inves�ga�on was pending at the �me of expira�on. 

Case Origin Chart – Chart showing the origin of cases received in the current year.  

• CJ Form 1915 Repor�ng – Cases ini�ated based on a CJTC Form 1915: Agency Report from an employing agency. 
• Complaint – Cases ini�ated a�er a complaint was submited alleging peace or correc�ons officer misconduct. 
• NOS Misconduct – Cases where a Notice of Separation (NOS) form indicated that the officer resigned/re�red in lieu of 

termina�on or that they were under inves�ga�on for any wrongdoing or misconduct upon separa�on.  
• Division Ini�ated – Cases the WSCJTC ini�ated on its own without the submission of an agency report, complaint, or NOS 

marked for misconduct.  

Closed Case Outcomes – Chart represen�ng the outcomes of cases closed in the current year.  

• Denied cer�fica�on – The WSCJTC determined not to grant cer�fica�on to a prospec�ve peace or correc�ons officer.   
• Revoca�on Default – The officer did not request a hearing and their cer�fica�on was automa�cally revoked. 
• Revoked - Summary Judgment – The officer's cer�fica�on was revoked a�er the assigned Administra�ve Law Judge 

determined that there were no disputed material facts for a hearing panel to determine, and that revoca�on was required 
by law under RCW 43.101.105(2). 

• Revoca�on Hearing – The officer’s cer�fica�on was revoked by the decision of the hearing panel. 
• Revoca�on Surrendered Cer�fica�on – The officer surrendered their cer�fica�on voluntarily. 
• Expired cer�fica�on – The officer’s cer�fica�on expired. 
• Decline - A�er an inves�ga�on, the WSCJTC determined that misconduct did not occur or that it would be unable to prove 

qualifying misconduct under the preponderance of the evidence standard. 
• Eligibility reinstated – The WSCJTC granted a pe��on to reinstate cer�fica�on or permit eligibility for reinstatement of 

cer�fica�on. 
• Administra�ve Closure – Insufficient Informa�on: The complaint lacks specific or sufficient informa�on to proceed with 

further inves�ga�on, and the WSCJTC has atempted alternate avenues to obtain addi�onal informa�on. 
• Administra�ve Closure – Implausible: It is beyond reasonable dispute that the facts of the complaint are inherently 

implausible or incredible. 



 Cer�fica�on Report Glossary 

 

Revised 1/2025 
 

• Administra�ve Closure – Lack of Jurisdic�on: The complaint or agency report does not allege conduct which, if true, would 
invoke the WSCJTC’s authority to deny, suspend, or revoke an officer’s cer�fica�on under RCW 43.101.105. 

• Administra�ve Closure – Not Cer�fied Officer: The subject of the complaint is not a cer�fied officer in Washington State or is 
deceased. 

• Administra�ve Closure – Revoked: The officer’s cer�fica�on has already been revoked through final order of a hearing panel, 
order of default, or surrender of cer�fica�on. 

• Administra�ve Closure – Duplicate Case: The WSCJTC has an ac�ve case concerning the same allega�on(s), incident, or fact 
patern, or the complaint or agency report has already been closed a�er review or inves�ga�on. 
 

Monthly/Quarterly Tracking – Sec�on represen�ng totals for the �me period indicated.  Same defini�ons as above. 

Addi�onal Closed Cases -Sec�on represen�ng addi�onal inves�ga�ons outside of cases origina�ng from agency repor�ng, 
complaints and division-ini�ated inves�ga�ons.  

Forms Processing – Sec�on represen�ng the agency reports cer�fica�on receives by month and year. 

• No�ce of Hire (NOH) – The employing agency submits a CJTC Form 1903 to WSCJTC repor�ng a newly hired officer.  
• No�ce of Separa�on (NOS) – The employing agency submits a CJTC Form 1902 repor�ng the officer’s separa�on. 



CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 
POLICY MANUAL 

Standard: Chapter 7 Policy 09 
Administrative Closure 

Revised: 10/23/2023, 
07/02/2024 

Authorizing Source:  RCW 43.101.105 Applies to: 
Certification Staff 

I. PURPOSE:

The Washington State Criminal Justice Training Commission (WSCJTC)
developed this policy to expedite the intake review process and triage complaints
and agency reports that fall outside of the WSCJTC’s jurisdiction or do not
otherwise meet the standards required for further investigation. The WSCJTC
takes seriously all matters which may invoke its authority to take action against an
officer’s certification. For complaints and agency reports that fall outside of the
established criteria, the WSCJTC will seek administrative closure of the matter.

II. DEFINITIONS:

Duplicate case – When the WSCJTC receives and logs information from multiple
sources concerning the same allegation(s), incident, and/or fact pattern, or a
complainant refiles a previously closed complaint without providing substantial new
evidence.

Primary case – The case number used for an investigation where duplicate cases
existed and were administratively closed. Information from duplicate cases is
moved into the primary case.

III. POLICY:

A. Complaints and agency reports designated for administrative closure:

1. The complaint or agency report does not allege conduct which, if true, would
invoke the WSCJTC’s authority to deny, suspend, or revoke an officer’s
certification under RCW 43.101.105.

2. It is beyond reasonable dispute that the facts of the complaint are inherently
implausible or incredible (e.g., frivolous, physically impossible, etc.).

3. The complaint or agency report has already been closed after review or
investigation, and the complainant has failed to provide substantial new evidence
that was unknown to the WSCJTC (a “duplicate case”).

4. The WSCJTC is unable to identify the subject officer after a reasonable inquiry.

5. The complaint lacks specific or sufficient information to proceed with further
investigation, and the WSCJTC has attempted alternate avenues to obtain
additional information.

6. The subject of the complaint is not a certified officer in Washington State or is
deceased.



 
7. The officer’s certification has already been revoked through final order of a 

hearing panel, order of default, or surrender of certification. 
 

8. The WSCJTC has an active case concerning the same allegation(s), incident, or 
fact pattern (a “duplicate case”).  

 
B. Complainants, subject officer(s), and employing agencies are notified of 

administrative closures in writing. 
 

C. To preserve the integrity of the WSCJTC investigation processes, cases that are 
administratively closed must be screened by two supervisors prior to closure, generally 
the Case Review Manager and the Investigations Division Manager.   

 
1. Cases closed under subsections 6, 7 and 8 can be closed by the Case Review 

Manager without a second supervisor’s concurrence. 
 

D. In cases that are administratively closed pursuant to subsections A (1) – (3), 
complainants will be provided an opportunity to appeal the decision to the Assistant 
Director of Certification. Notice of the outcome of the appeal will be provided to the 
complainant, subject officer(s), and employing agencies in writing. 

 
E. In any case that is administratively closed for lack of jurisdiction, the WSCJTC will 

forward the complaint to an appropriate oversight agency, if known. 
 

F. Administrative Closures shall be listed in the Certification database and will include 
the category authorizing closure pursuant to this policy. 

 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 1 of 9 

W A S H I N G T O N  S T A T E   
CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 

1 9 0 1 0  1 S T  A V E N U E  S O U T H ,  B U R I E N ,  W A 9 8 1 4 8  
 
 

 
COMMISSION MEETING 

Wednesday, December 11, 2024 
10 A.M. 

 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT 
Penelope Sapp (Chair), Chief, Kitsap County Jail 
De’Sean Quinn, Councilmember, City of Tukwila 
Rosemary Kaholokula, Prosecuting Attorney or Municipal Attorney (Virtual) 
Ryan Dreveskracht, Attorney Presiding over Law Enforcement Practices and Accountability 
(Virtual) 
Kurtis Robinson, Community Member – East of Cascades (Virtual) 
Jeffrey Anaya, Officer or First Line Supervisor, Vancouver Police Department 
Annalesa Thomas, Community Member (Virtual) 
Trishandra Pickup, Community Member (Virtual) 
Katrina Johnson, Community Member (Virtual) 
Bart Logue, Member with Civilian Oversight Over Law Enforcement 
Anita Khandelwal, Public Defender (Virtual) 
Velma Lockrem, Tribal Police Officer (Virtual) 
 
Present after Roll Call: 
Tim Reynon (Vice Chair), Tribal Representative, Puyallup Tribe 
Ken Roske, Chief, Pasco Police Department (virtual) 
Sonia Joseph, Community Member 
Walter Kendricks, Community Member – East of Cascades (Virtual) 
Rob Snaza, Sheriff, Lewis County Sheriff’s Office 
Darryl Barnes, Officer or First Line Supervisor, Adams County Sheriff’s Office 
Erik Scairpon, Chief, Marysville Police Department 
 
WSCJTC STAFF PRESENT 
Monica Alexander, Executive Director 
Stephanie Huffman, Executive Assistant 
Jerrell Wills, Deputy Director  
Kimberly Bliss, Assistant Director, Certification 
Lacey Ledford, Legislative Liaison 
Valerie Jenkins-Weaver, Certification Operations Division Manager 
Mike Devine, Certification Investigations Division Manager 
Lauren Caputo Allen, Community Liaison Manager 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 2 of 9 

David Quinlan, Communications Manager  
Gunner Miller, Communications Intern 
 
AG’s STAFF PRESENT 
Justin Kato, Assistant Attorney General, WA State Attorney General 
 
Welcome 
Penelope Sapp, Commission Chair 

Chair Sapp called the meeting to order at 10:03 A.M. Stephanie Huffman conducted a roll call. 
A quorum was present. 
 
CHAIR’S REPORT 
Penelope Sapp, Commission Chair 

Chair Sapp applauded Executive Director Alexander for her tremendous work. Just this year, she 
has overseen three regional academies. She shows up for the first day of class and for 
graduation, which is so important for the candidates. This year, the Washington State Criminal 
Justice Training Commission (WSCJTC) hosted 29 Basic Law Enforcement Academy (BLEA) 
classes with over 840 students. There were nine Corrections Officer Academy (COA) classes with 
324 students. Chair Sapp urged the commissioners to stay positive.  
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Monica Alexander, Executive Director 

Director Alexander said that all future meetings will begin with a land acknowledgement. There 
was a Corrections graduation on Monday in Vancouver, a BLEA graduation in Pasco on Tuesday, 
and a third graduation will happen tomorrow in Burien. We hold graduations quite often. There 
are currently eight BLEA classes at headquarters and one class in Spokane. BLEA classes just 
graduated in Vancouver and Pasco. New BLEA and COA classes start next week in Vancouver. 
There are 266 basic training recruits being trained in Burien. We have 132 recruits currently 
registered. We have seats if people want to get in.  
 
WSCJTC was going to do a use of force presentation today. That is going to be moved to the 
March 2025 Commission Meeting.  
 
On August 28, 2025, the WSCJTC is doing Chief for a Day. This is a program where different 
agencies select a sick child and celebrate those children and their families for a day. 
 
Commissioner Logue asked for a legislative update. He met with a state legislator who 
discussed upcoming budget cuts. Executive Director Alexander said the Office of Financial 
Management has been open with WSCJTC about sharing budget cuts that would impact 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 3 of 9 

WSCJTC. Public safety is a priority for the governor elect. The WSCJTC completed the pre-design 
and submitted a report to the Office of Financial Management. Executive Direct Alexander said 
she is not against co-locating with other organizations. We cannot implement our curriculum 
with our current space limitations. We have a wait list for our gym, range, and facility due to the 
volume of recruits at the Burien campus. Commissioner Logue asked if there is anything the 
commissioners can do to help WSCJTC get the new space – that we’re ahead of the nation, but 
we don’t have enough to get it done right. Executive Director Alexander said a big part of the 
budget ask is to get more bodies in the Certification Bureau. Assistant Director Bliss has done a 
great job of being engaged with community partners and helping people understand what her 
team does. Commissioner Logue stated he cares a lot about doing the things in the middle 
(training past the academy), so we don’t have to get to the decertification process. He said he 
would like to hear more about that in the future. What are we doing in “the middle” to raise the 
bar as officers advance in rank? Commissioner Quinn said there needs to be a broader 
understanding of “the middle,” referring to Commissioner Logue’s comment. He asked if there is 
a willingness of law enforcement to speak about “the middle.” Every part of the process needs 
to be respected and protected. Executive Director Alexander spoke about WSCJTC’s goal to get 
accredited by the International Association of Directors of Law Enforcement Standards and 
Training (IADLEST). Chair Sapp said she thinks it’s important that corrections officers get 
continuous training beyond the academy. There was some valuable training that peace officers 
get that would be important for corrections officers too. She said that supervisory training is 
important too. The training curriculum should have more of a focus on liability. Executive 
Director Alexander said she couldn’t agree more. We are going to start a Job Task Analysis (JTA) 
for Corrections. Commissioner Robinson thanked Chair Sapp for her comments. Commissioner 
Barnes said we set the foundation for peace officers with BLEA. We are falling flat when it 
comes to middle-management, corporals, or sergeants. There’s no book on how to be a good 
sergeant. Every agency does it a little differently. How do we establish standards for that level of 
management? Executive Director Alexander said that WSCJTC does offer career level 
certification. We haven’t forgotten about it. Commissioner Logue said he really appreciates 
Commissioner Barnes’ comments. His organization is having conversations about how to change 
the culture, and it really starts with those levels of management. Commissioner Scairpon 
commented that right now we’re at a critical time in policing. We have an opportunity to shape 
the next 20 years of policing. Cops get a lot of training. The feedback on management training is 
tremendous.  
 
SIG SAUER UPDATE 
Jerell Wills, Deputy Director 
 
Deputy Director Wills presented on a premature discharge that occurred during BLEA training 
in early October at the Northeast Regional Academy. This is very uncommon. More commonly, 
we would see an accidental, or negligent discharge. In this incident, there were two lines of 
students. A lead instructor gave a command to fire. When that command was given, one of the 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 4 of 9 

students pulled his firearm from his holster, and his weapon bumped into his outer carrier or 
ballistic vest and discharged. The instructor immediately recognized that the student was 
“indexing,” meaning his finger was well above the trigger guard. As a result, the round went into 
the ground behind the student. Bullet fragments struck the instructor and another student. 
There were some minor injuries to the student who was behind the student in question, as well 
as very minor injuries to the instructor. That specific weapon was taken off the range. We 
discovered in the subsequent hours and days that there is a lot of information online about this 
weapon, the Sig Sauer P320. With a little bit more research from staff, there is an abundance of 
information about this specific weapon around the country. There was also another 
unconfirmed incident in Washington State involving this weapon. Ultimately, with consultation 
and guidance from subject matter experts, we decided to conduct a temporary prohibition on 
the Sig Sauer P320. There are impacted officers and recruit students around the state. The 
WSCJTC communicated with those agencies that either the agency or WSCJTC would provide 
replacements. This prohibition also includes staff. As this was happening, we assembled a work 
group to study this issue. Sig Sauer makes another model M17 & M18 which is essentially the 
same as the Sig Sauer P320. We have prohibited those models as well. To date, we have had 
four work group meetings. The goal is to assemble a report by early January of 2025. We want 
the commissioners to be fully aware of the process and the ultimate decision. Vice Chair 
Reynon asked if the temporary prohibition is applicable across the state or just at the WSCJTC. 
Deputy Director Wills said it only applies to our students and instructors that are training on 
our facilities. It doesn’t apply to the agencies themselves. Our authority does not extend to the 
agencies that are using this weapon across the state. Commissioner Quinn asked if visitors to 
the WSCJTC range can use this weapon. Deputy Director Wills clarified that this weapon is 
prohibited at all WSCJTC’s facilities. Commissioner Logue asked if there has been any official 
correspondence statewide. Deputy Director Wills said the WSCJTC sent out a communication to 
stakeholders in October that this prohibition was going to be enacted. Commissioner Logue 
asked if the WSCJTC anticipates that a recommendation will be made for agencies across the 
state to stop the use of this weapon. Deputy Director Wills said that is not really the role of the 
WSCJTC. Commissioner Robinson clarified whether someone could visit the WSCJTC with this 
weapon in their holster as long as they are not using the weapon at the range. Deputy Director 
Wills replied in the affirmative. Commissioner Scairpon stated that his agency does use this 
firearm. All the agencies that use this firearm are watching very closely to see what the WSCJTC 
recommends. He stated that it could cost about half a million dollars to change firearms 
platforms. Commissioner Anaya said his agency has divorced from this weapon after seeing the 
liability after an accidental discharge for which they believe the weapon was at fault. Vice Chair 
Reynon asked if the manufacturer is taking action given these safety concerns. Deputy Director 
Wills said the manufacturer presented for two hours to the WSCJTC workgroup. Executive 
Director Alexander recognized that this is a financial burden to agencies that use this firearm, 
but we have to look at safety. Chair Sapp appreciates that the WSCJTC made a decision based 
on the safety of the students. Commissioner Scairpon noted that all firearms training is 
inherently dangerous but noted that the range in Spokane was following safety protocols.  



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 5 of 9 

 
CERTIFICATION REPORT 
Kimberly Bliss, Assistant Director, Certification Bureau 
 
Assistant Director Bliss provided a follow-up to Commissioner Logue’s earlier point about the 
Certification Bureau’s need for additional budget. The Certification Bureau has asked for 12 
additional full-time employees; nine on the investigation side and three on the operations side. 
We also need a records and data manager. Assistant Director Bliss also provided an update to 
Commissioner Scairpon about the compliance audits. Marysville and Redmond Police 
Departments volunteered to participate in the pilot audits. Because they were pilot audits, we 
agreed with the agencies and State Auditor’s Office that those reports are not published. The 
Chiefs of those agencies are more than willing to share their experiences. We have now selected 
the next two agencies to be audited. We took every agency in the state and compared the 
number of certified officers to the number of agencies report they had sent to the WSCJTC. We 
took the bottom third of reporting agencies and used a random generator to select two 
agencies. The two agencies selected for the next audit are Des Moines Police Department and 
Renton Police Department. Chair Sapp asked what the audit process looked like. Commissioner 
Scairpon described the process for his agency, as they participated in the pilot audit. 
Commissioner Quinn asked if there is a cost for the audit. Assistant Director Bliss said it doesn’t 
come out of the Certification budget, so it must come out of the State Auditor’s Office (SAO) 
budget. Commissioner Quinn said he would like to have a conversation about cost recovery of 
the process. Assistant Director Bliss said she would look into how the audits are funded. She 
also said that both the agencies were in substantial compliance. The only problem was that 
there is a 15-day requirement to report to the WSCJTC. If there is a single staff person who is 
responsible for those notices and they go on vacation, the SAO recommended cross training 
another staff person. With the Redmond PD audit, there was one missed notice to the WSCJTC. 
The SAO recommended that the WSCJTC provide guidance on what constitutes RCW 
43.101.105(j)(iv). Certification will begin to publish a list of every case we have charged under 
43.101.105(j)(iv).  
 
Assistant Director Bliss presented the data in the Certification Report. At the beginning of 2024, 
the Certification Bureau was intaking more cases than later in 2024. This is attributed to two 
changes. First, in April, WSCJTC clarified with agencies their interpretation of “initial disciplinary 
decision” in the statute. The initial disciplinary decision comes at the end of an internal affairs 
case with the agency, not at the beginning. That has brought the number of notices we receive 
down. Secondly, as Certification adopted the new case management system, we no longer open 
a separate case for a complaint for which we already have an open case. Duplicate complaints 
are combined into one case. Assistant Director Bliss also presented on the breakdown of closed 
cases by type of administrative closure, as previously requested by Commissioner Robinson. The 
closure type “Administrative Closure – Lack of Jurisdiction,” is noticeably large. We believe the 
reason is partly because the WSCJTC used to get notice of more cases that weren’t required to 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 6 of 9 

be reported to WSCJTC. Commissioner Robinson said he looks forward to more information on 
that delineation of closure types in the future. Assistant Director Bliss also pointed out the new 
section “Additional Closed Cases,” which represents all the recruit investigations and internal 
affairs investigations for WSCJTC staff and contractors. Those investigations take up a large 
portion of our investigators’ time.  
 
Commissioner Thomas asked about the 229 cases that WSCJTC has closed for Administrative 
Closure – Lack of Jurisdiction this year and clarified that WSCJTC has not done a full 
investigation on those cases. She asked what standards the WSCJTC uses to decide if there is no 
jurisdiction in those 229 cases, and how much weight is put on an employer’s opinion of 
whether there was misconduct. Assistant Director Bliss said she would love to bring our 
Administrative Closure policy to the March 2025 commission meeting. However, she stated that 
the team has benefitted from the addition of the new Case Review Manager. She suggested that 
she brings one of those case reviews conducted by the Case Review Manager to the next 
commission meeting to use as an example of how cases can be closed as Administrative Closure 
– Lack of Jurisdiction. Commissioner Thomas also asked if the Certification Bureau is making 
progress on the backlog, and how the Certification Bureau is planning to reduce the backlog. 
Assistant Director Bliss said that without more staff, she cannot reduce the backlog unless she 
were to reduce the standards for closing a case. She also stated as the team grows, processes 
for closing cases will have to change. The decision-making authority on some cases will need to 
be pushed down to other managers, because there are too many cases awaiting final approval 
by the Division Manager and Assistant Director.  
 
Assistant Director Bliss also noted there is a backlog in hearings. There are 11 hearings 
scheduled between now and June of 2025. The statute states that hearings should be scheduled 
within 90 days, but the Administrative Law Judges have a backlog in availability to schedule new 
hearings. We have 16 cases waiting for a Statement of Charges to be served. Commissioner 
Logue stated he was surprised to learn how costly the hearings are. Assistant Director Bliss said 
that the WSCJTC pays the AG’s Office and the Administrative Law Judge for their hourly time on 
hearings. Commissioner Scairpon asked if a case is pending a decertification hearing and it is 
also playing out on the labor side, does the WSCJTC wait for the arbitration to complete? 
Assistant Director Bliss said we do not have a policy, procedure, or practice of waiting until 
arbitration is complete, but those decisions are made on a case-by-case basis.  
 
Assistant Director Bliss said she will be drafting a new policy regarding settlement of cases in 
our next policy review period that starts in January of 2025. Commissioner Logue asked about 
the process for officers who retire with an open certification complaint. Assistant Director Bliss 
stated that the WSCJTC would still investigate because the retired officer is still certified. If the 
officer is not looking for work and the misconduct doesn’t fall under the mandatory 
decertification criteria, that case might be lower in priority. Commissioner Logue pointed to a 
recent case in which the Chief of Police was the only person in an officer’s chain of command 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 7 of 9 

who thought the excessive force warranted termination. The officer was ultimately decertified 
by WSCJTC. He said there is a disconnect in the type of conduct that is being accepted at 
different levels of the chain of command. Assistant Director Bliss pointed to the Certification 
Action Summaries report that was included in the commission packet. The WSCJTC publishes 
summaries of all cases that result in an officer decertification.  
 
Commissioner Logue said that if we collected all the insights from the certification cases, we 
could put together a great leadership class. Commissioner Barnes stated that these lessons 
learned might need to come back to training instructors. Assistant Director Bliss said 
Certification relies on WSCJTC trainers as our subject matter experts in decertification hearings. 
Trainers at individual agencies might not always come to the same conclusions as our trainers at 
WSCJTC. We don’t have control over the training requirements of agencies. Vice Chair Reynon 
asked if the standards for training are adopted statewide. Assistant Director Bliss responded in 
the affirmative, but many agencies have their own training units that are not overseen by the 
WSCJTC. Vice Chair Reynon said that it is something that we should look into. It would require a 
new division of WSCJTC and a new law to fill some of those gaps that were identified. 
Commissioner Quinn said that this topic has come up in the past, and we are moving in that 
direction. He agreed that middle management is where the change happens. Commissioner 
Scairpon said there is a clear need in first level and middle management to train on use of force 
review. So many laws have changed over the course of 20 years. It would be beneficial for the 
WSCJTC to provide a half-day training on use of force review. Chair Sapp said that she liked the 
idea of a use of force review training. Additionally, she sees the benefit of training for middle 
management. Commissioner Logue stated he would be happy to join a subcommittee on this 
topic.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Meeting Minutes 
Commissioner Anaya moved to approve the September 2024 commission meeting minutes. 
Commissioner Quinn seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
WAC 139-07-040 Polygraph Examination or Other Truth Verification 
Mike Devine, Certification Investigations Division Manager and Lacey Ledford, Legislative Liaison 
 
Mike Devine presented on the recommendation from industry experts to eliminate the 
requirement for the WSCJTC to develop model questions for polygraphers. Commissioner 
Quinn asked if this is a best practice. Mike Devine responded in the affirmative.  
 
Commissioner Logue motioned to approve the revision. Commissioner Scairpon seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 8 of 9 

Variance Request 
Valerie Jenkins-Weaver, Certification Operations Division Manager 
 
Valerie Jenkins-Weaver presented the variance request from Jefferson County.  
 
Commissioner Anaya motioned to approve the variance request. Commissioner Barnes 
seconded the motion. Commissioner Scairpon stated his support for having this officer attend 
the corrections equivalency academy to get caught up on the training. Commissioner Logue 
asked Chair Sapp for her opinion. Chair Sapp stated that this officer has been out of corrections 
for quite some time. Commissioner Thomas asked why this officer wants to make the switch 
back to corrections. She stated her support for this officer to receive more training. 
Undersheriff Pernsteiner spoke on behalf of Sheriff Noll. He told the commissioners that the 
officer did not pass his probationary period in law enforcement, so they offered him a job in 
corrections. Corrections Chief Fortino said that this officer is qualified and competent for the 
corrections job. Commissioner Robinson asked why this officer was released from probation. 
Undersheriff Pernsteiner stated that this officer tended to pursue vehicles while there was the 
statewide restriction on pursuits. Valerie Jenkins-Weaver stated that this officer is registered for 
corrections equivalency academy. Chair Sapp stated the commissioners have granted variance 
requests similar to this before. Vice Chair Reynon stated that eight years have elapsed since this 
officer was last employed in corrections. He believes the 10-week corrections officer academy 
would benefit this officer as opposed to the two-week equivalency academy. Commissioner 
Logue stated he would be inclined to agree with the variance request. Valerie Jenkins-Weaver 
also pointed out that this officer has been in the world of corrections. It is common for officers 
in smaller agencies to receive cross training between law enforcement and corrections. 
Commissioner Scairpon asked if there are any certification issues for this officer. Valerie 
Jenkins-Weaver responded that there are not. Commissioner Quinn stated he tends to side 
with what Commissioner Logue said. He also pointed out the honesty and transparency that the 
undersheriff provided when answering questions about this variance request. Commissioner 
Thomas said she has serious concerns that this officer could not follow basic rules of not 
pursuing vehicles. She believes this officer may not follow rules in a corrections setting in his 
treatment of inmates. Commissioner Pickup agreed with Commissioner Thomas’ concerns. 
Undersheriff Pernsteiner stated that this officer was a model corrections officer for more than a 
decade with Clallam County Sheriff’s Office. There are a lot more dynamic situations that are in 
place in law enforcement than in a corrections setting. Commissioner Pickup stated she finds 
this officer’s inability to not pursue vehicles to be very serious. Commissioner Logue pointed 
out that the officer was successful in Clallam County, and he was certified to be a field training 
officer by the WSCJTC. Commissioner Kaholokula noted that during the time the pursuit 
restrictions were in place, it was very difficult to keep track of the rules. She does not believe 
those situations would arise in the jail context. Commissioner Scairpon asked for clarification 
that this officer would be under supervision and probation during his first year as a corrections 



   
 

 
Commission Meeting – December 11, 2024  Page 9 of 9 

officer. Undersheriff Pernsteiner said typically the probation is one year, but it may be 
extended out an additional six months.  
 
Eight commissioners voted in favor of the variance request. Commissioners Reynon, 
Dreveskracht, Thomas, Joseph, and Pickup voted against the variance request. The variance 
request passed. 
 
CLOSING 
 
Executive Director Alexander presented a plaque for Commissioner Webb who will no longer 
be serving on the commission.  
 
Chair Sapp adjourned the meeting at 12:31 P.M. 
 
 

Next Meeting: March 12, 2025, 10 A.M., WSCJTC 
 
 
Written by:  __________________________________________  __________ 
   Lauren Caputo Allen, Community Liaison Manager  Date 
 
Reviewed by:  __________________________________________  __________ 
   Monica Alexander, Executive Director   Date 
 
Approved by:  __________________________________________  __________ 
   Penelope Sapp, Commission Chair    Date 
  



INTEROFFICE COMMUNICATION 
 

 

TO: WSCJTC Commissioners 

FROM: Kimberly Bliss, Assistant Director/Certification 
Kayla Wold, Hearings Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Proposed Updates to Chapter 7 Policy 03:  Conflict of Interest 

DATE: February 27, 2025 

The Criminal Justice Training Commission Policy Manual, Chapter 7 Policy 3 governs conflicts of 
interest.  It was last approved by the Commission in June 2022. 

Commission staff recommend three areas of substantive change: 

I. Hearing Panel Members

The old policy provided that hearing panel members with disclosed conflicts would themselves 
determine any petition to disqualify themselves.  This is neither necessary nor advisable, 
particularly since RCW 43.101.380 requires the appointment of an Administrative Law Judge 
(ALJ) to preside over hearings and decide prehearing motions.   

Accordingly, staff recommends updating the policy as follows: 

• Hearing panel members with identified conflicts should immediately and voluntarily
recuse themselves

• If a hearing panel member does not recuse themselves, either party may file a petition for
disqualification

• The ALJ will hear and decide the petition

II. The Administrative Law Judge

The current policy does not include provisions for how to seek the disqualification of an ALJ.  
RCW 43.101.380 mandates that certification hearings are conducted consistent with the 
Administrative Procedures Act, Title 34 RCW (the “APA”).  Accordingly, the updated policy 
would provide that ALJs can be disqualified consistent with the sections of the APA that govern 
petitions for disqualification. 

III. Commissioners

The current policy (as well as the Commission’s bylaws) has broad language precluding 
Commissioners from potentially interfering with, or commenting publicly on, certification 
investigations and hearings.  Staff strongly support bylaws and policies that preclude 
Commissioners from attempting to improperly influence certification matters.  The current 

 WASHINGTON STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 



WSCJTC Commissioners 
February 27, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 

 

language is so broad, however, that it could:  1) hamper certification investigations; and 2) restrict 
Commissioners from speaking about incidents under certification review in their personal or 
employment capacities, which could undermine public transparency and accountability at the 
agency level.   

On its face, the current policy precludes Commissioners from any and all discussion with staff 
regarding certification matters.  Several Commissioners, however, have first-hand knowledge of 
incidents that are being investigated in their capacity as agency heads, supervisors, impacted 
family members, or complainants.  The current policy could be read to preclude these 
Commissioners from cooperating with the Certification Bureau or even testifying in a certification 
hearing.  This is problematic given that many certification investigations and hearings rely on 
testimony from agency supervisors, including agency heads, regarding the underlying incident, 
agency investigation, and discipline imposed (such as termination). 

As currently written, the policy would also preclude Commissioners from speaking publicly about 
certification matters in several situations that staff do not see as problematic, including, e.g.: 

• A commissioner who serves as an agency head answering questions about the officer, 
underlying incident, or certification process generally, when asked by local councils, 
commissions, or the community.  The conflicts policy should not hamper public 
transparency and accountability at the agency level.    

 
• A commissioner who has filed a complaint as an impacted family member or victim of 

police misconduct would be precluded from speaking with anyone, including the 
employing agency, other oversight entities, and community groups, about their complaint 
or experience.  

Accordingly, staff propose changes to the policy for Commissioners that will: 

• Allow Commissioners with first-hand knowledge of matters being investigated to 
cooperate with Certification staff inquiries, including requests for interviews and testifying 
in decertification hearings. 

• Allow Commissioners who are complainants or agency heads for a current or former 
officer under review from inquiring about the procedural status of a certification 
investigation.   

• Clarify that Commissioners with first-hand knowledge of incidents that are under 
certification investigation may speak publicly about those matters if they comply with 
Commission bylaws that require them to do so in their personal capacity and not on behalf 
of the Commission. 

Attached for your review and consideration are: 1) a redline showing proposed changes to the 
policy; and 2) a “clean” copy of the proposed revised policy. 

KB: kb 
Attachments (2)  



CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 
POLICY MANUAL 

Standard:   Chapter 7 Policy 03 

Conflict of Interest 

Revised: 06/22/2022 

Authorizing Source:  RCW 34.05 Applies to:  All Staff  

 

 

I. PURPOSE:  

The objectivity and credibility of decisions of the Washington State Criminal Justice 

Training Commission (WSCJTC) depend on having strong systems in place to avoid 

conflicts of interest whether actual, potential, or perceived.  Possible conflicts may arise 

where staff, Commissioners, attorneys, or hearings panel members may be involved in 

the processing, investigations, review, or consideration of a certification proceeding or 

be tasked with taking other action in a manner that involves individuals whom they may 

personally know or with whom they may have previously worked.  Similarly, an 

individual’s relationship to an employing agency may pose conflicts.  The purpose of this 

policy is to ensure that any potential conflict is properly identified, disclosed, and 

addressed. 

II. DEFINITIONS:  

Conflict of interestInterest – A circumstance when an individual’s personal interests 

could compromise their judgment, decisions, or actions or create bias or prejudice, in 

official or professional settings. A conflictConflict of interestInterest may be based upon 

family, friendship, financial, social, employment, or other interests).. 

Hearings coordinatorCoordinator - The CommissionWSCJTC staff member who serves 
as liaison between the Office of the Administrative Hearings (OAH), the Respondent, the 
Petitioner, and the hearings panel members. 

III. POLICY:  

A.  Assessing and Addressing Conflicts of Interest  

1.  Potential conflictsConflicts of interestInterest should be identified as early as 
possible. 

2.  In weighing the potential for conflicts and the appearance of a lack of impartiality, 
individuals should take into account the level of discretion they exercise. 

3.  With regard to individual certification matters, employees with decision-making 
authority impacting the outcome of cases, and hearings panelists, must utilize the 
individual case Conflicts Assessment Form to identify potential conflicts.  

4.  For certification matters, the supervisor will: 

a. Assess whether there is a conflictConflict of interestInterest that prevents 
an employee from involvement with a certification review;  

b. Recuse any employee who has a conflictConflict of interestInterest in the 
case or complaint; 



 
 

 

c. Screen the conflicted employee from all matters related to the case; and 

d. Assess whether the complaint should be referred for outside review. 

e. This assessment should be made as soon as possible after the agency’s 
receipt of the complaint.  Or, for individuals involved in later review and 
consideration of agency action, at the time that involvement is requested. 

5.B. Retention of Outside Investigators Due To Conflicts 

  For hearings panel members, the Hearings Coordinator coordinates and manages 
conflicts checks. 

a. If a conflict exists with a hearings panel member, it shall be brought to the 
attention of both Respondent and Petitioner.  RCW 34.05.425(4) provides 
either party with the right to petition for the disqualification of a hearings 
panel member. 

b. If a party petitions for disqualification, the hearings panel member whose 
disqualification is requested shall determine whether to grant the petition, 
stating facts and reasons for the determination pr RCW 34.05.425(5). 

B.  Additional Procedures for Conflicts  

1.  The CommissionWSCJTC will refer to a qualified and experienced outside party 
for review of any complaints that invoke conflictsConflicts of interestInterest that 
cannot be resolved utilizing internal personnel. 

2.  The CommissionWSCJTC is responsible for monitoring that the investigation is 
referred and completed in a timely manner and for establishing a conflict-free 
mechanism for next steps if the investigation determines that a preponderance of 
evidence standard has been met.  

3.  Qualifications for outside reviewers of complaints include: 

a. Expertise and experience reviewing police tactics and uses of force or other 
types of alleged misconduct at issue;  

b. Familiarity with Washington State certification standards; and 

c. Familiarity with best practices and community standards for police conduct. 

d. Qualified individuals must not have conflict of interest regarding the parties 
and must not, except in extraordinary cases, be current law enforcement 
members. 

C.  Communications Hearing Panel Members 

1.   For hearings panel members, the Hearings Coordinator coordinates and 
manages conflicts checks. 

 
2.  Hearing panel members with Conflicts of Interest should immediately and 

voluntarily recuse themselves.  

3. If a hearings panel member does not recuse themselves despite a potential 
conflict, it shall be brought to the attention of both Respondent and Petitioner, 

Formatted: List Paragraph

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0", Space

Before:  6 pt, After:  6 pt, Tab stops:  0.5", Left

Formatted: List Paragraph



 
 

 

and either party may file a petition for the disqualification of a hearings panel 
member. 

4. If a party petitions for disqualification, the Administrative Law Judge shall 
determine whether to grant the petition, stating facts and reasons for the 
determination. 

D.  Administrative Law Judges 

1. Parties may seek the disqualification of an Administrative Law Judge consistent 
with the applicable provisions of Title 34 RCW, including RCW 34.05.425 and 
RCW 34.12.050. 

 
 
 
E.  Commissioners 

1.  Per Communication Bylaws, Commissioners must not make inquiries about or 
otherwise discuss with CommissionWSCJTC staff, or discuss with others, 
certification matters under review, investigation, or consideration for agency 
action by a hearings panel, nor opine publicly about certification matters.  
However, Commissioners with first-hand knowledge of incidents or officers under 
certification review are not precluded from discussing those incidents or officers 
in their personal or professional capacity, provided that they clearly establish that 
they are not speaking as a Commissioner or on behalf of the Commission. 

2.  When serving as hearing panel members, Commissioners are subject to the 
same conflicts procedures as other hearing panel members. 

3. Commissioners are not precluded from: 

a. Complying with the requirements of RCW 43.101.135, including providing 
“documentation and information as the commission deems necessary to 
determine whether the separation or event provides grounds for 
suspension or revocation.” 

b.  Testifying in a revocation hearing at the request of either party, provided 
that the Commissioner specifically states that the testimony is offered in 
their personal capacity or based on their employment, and not in their 
capacity as a Commissioner. 

c.   Inquiring about the procedural status of a case, if the Commissioner is a 
complainant or the officer’s former, current, or prospective employing 
agency head. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Font: Arial, 11.5 pt, Font color: Black



CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 
POLICY MANUAL 

Standard:   Chapter 7 Policy 03 
Conflict of Interest 

Revised: 06/22/2022 

Authorizing Source:  RCW 34.05 Applies to:  All Staff  

 
I. PURPOSE:  

The objectivity and credibility of decisions of the Washington State Criminal Justice 
Training Commission (WSCJTC) depend on having strong systems in place to avoid 
conflicts of interest whether actual, potential, or perceived. Possible conflicts may arise 
where staff, Commissioners, attorneys, or hearings panel members may be involved in 
the processing, investigations, review, or consideration of a certification proceeding or 
be tasked with taking other action in a manner that involves individuals whom they may 
personally know or with whom they may have previously worked. Similarly, an 
individual’s relationship to an employing agency may pose conflicts. The purpose of this 
policy is to ensure that any potential conflict is properly identified, disclosed, and 
addressed. 

II. DEFINITIONS:  

Conflict of Interest – A circumstance when an individual’s personal interests could 
compromise their judgment, decisions, or actions or create bias or prejudice, in official or 
professional settings. A Conflict of Interest may be based upon family, friendship, 
financial, social, employment, or other interests. 

Hearings Coordinator - The WSCJTC staff member who serves as liaison between the 
Office of the Administrative Hearings (OAH), the Respondent, the Petitioner, and the 
hearings panel members. 

III. POLICY:  

A.  Assessing and Addressing Conflicts of Interest  
1.  Potential Conflicts of Interest should be identified as early as possible. 
2.  In weighing the potential for conflicts and the appearance of a lack of impartiality, 

individuals should take into account the level of discretion they exercise. 
3.  With regard to individual certification matters, employees with decision-making 

authority impacting the outcome of cases, and hearings panelists, must utilize the 
individual case Conflicts Assessment Form to identify potential conflicts.  

4.  For certification matters, the supervisor will: 
a. Assess whether there is a Conflict of Interest that prevents an employee 

from involvement with a certification review;  
b. Recuse any employee who has a Conflict of Interest in the case or 

complaint; 
c. Screen the conflicted employee from all matters related to the case; and 



 
 

d. Assess whether the complaint should be referred for outside review. 
e. This assessment should be made as soon as possible after the agency’s 

receipt of the complaint. Or, for individuals involved in later review and 
consideration of agency action, at the time that involvement is requested. 

B. Retention of Outside Investigators Due To Conflicts 
1.  The WSCJTC will refer to a qualified and experienced outside party for review of 

any complaints that invoke Conflicts of Interest that cannot be resolved utilizing 
internal personnel. 

2.  The WSCJTC is responsible for monitoring that the investigation is referred and 
completed in a timely manner and for establishing a conflict-free mechanism for 
next steps if the investigation determines that a preponderance of evidence 
standard has been met.  

3.  Qualifications for outside reviewers of complaints include: 
a. Expertise and experience reviewing police tactics and uses of force or other 

types of alleged misconduct at issue;  
b. Familiarity with Washington State certification standards; and 
c. Familiarity with best practices and community standards for police conduct. 
d. Qualified individuals must not have conflict of interest regarding the parties 

and must not, except in extraordinary cases, be current law enforcement 
members. 

C.  Hearing Panel Members 
1.   For hearings panel members, the Hearings Coordinator coordinates and 

manages conflicts checks. 
 
2.  Hearing panel members with Conflicts of Interest should immediately and 

voluntarily recuse themselves.  
3. If a hearings panel member does not recuse themselves despite a potential 

conflict, it shall be brought to the attention of both Respondent and Petitioner, 
and either party may file a petition for the disqualification of a hearings panel 
member. 

4. If a party petitions for disqualification, the Administrative Law Judge shall 
determine whether to grant the petition, stating facts and reasons for the 
determination. 

D.  Administrative Law Judges 

1. Parties may seek the disqualification of an Administrative Law Judge consistent 
with the applicable provisions of Title 34 RCW, including RCW 34.05.425 and 
RCW 34.12.050. 

 
 
 



 
 

E.  Commissioners 
1.  Per Communication Bylaws, Commissioners must not make inquiries about or 

otherwise discuss with WSCJTC staff, or discuss with others, certification matters 
under review, investigation, or consideration for agency action by a hearings 
panel, nor opine publicly about certification matters.  However, Commissioners 
with first-hand knowledge of incidents or officers under certification review are 
not precluded from discussing those incidents or officers in their personal or 
professional capacity, provided that they clearly establish that they are not 
speaking as a Commissioner or on behalf of the Commission. 

2.  When serving as hearing panel members, Commissioners are subject to the 
same conflicts procedures as other hearing panel members. 

3. Commissioners are not precluded from: 

a. Complying with the requirements of RCW 43.101.135, including providing 
“documentation and information as the commission deems necessary to 
determine whether the separation or event provides grounds for 
suspension or revocation.” 

b.  Testifying in a revocation hearing at the request of either party, provided 
that the Commissioner specifically states that the testimony is offered in 
their personal capacity or based on their employment, and not in their 
capacity as a Commissioner. 

c.   Inquiring about the procedural status of a case, if the Commissioner is a 
complainant or the officer’s former, current, or prospective employing 
agency head. 



BOBFERCUSON l:fffJ JOHN R. BATISTE
Governor ^>IF3BI^ ' Chief

^£.~im^

STATE OF WASHINGTON

WASHINGTON STATE PATROL
Washington State Patrol Headquarters • PO Box 42600 • Olympia, WA 98504-2600 • www.wsp.wa.gov

February 11,2025

Ms. Monica Alexander, Executive Director

Criminal Justice Training Commission

190101 st Avenue South
BurienWA98148

Dear Ms. Alexander:

The intent of this letter is to request an extension of the 2024 annual online crisis

intervention course as defined in RCW 43.101.095, WAC 139-03-030, and WAC 139-05-300

for the following individual.

• Andy Padrick

I sincerely apologize for the oversight and appreciate your consideration of this request. The

Washington State Patrol has a longstanding histoiy of compliance with the training requirements

outlined by your agency. Due to recent administrative personnel changes, this individual was

inadvertently overlooked in our annual tracking process. To avoid similar issues in the future, a

corrective action plan has been developed.

If approved, we would appreciate the opportunity to have our mitigating factors heard at the next

commission meeting. The Training Division commander. Captain Robert W. Sharpe, is prepared

to personally appear in support of this request. If you have any questions or concerns, please
contact Captain Sharpe at (360) 432-7501 or through email at robert.sharpe(a>wsp.wa.gov.

I believe the contents of this letter are true to the best of my knowledge.

Sincerely,

ft^k
CHIEF JOHN R. BATISTE

JRB:aeg
ec: Ms. Kayla Wold, Criminal Justice Training Commission

Assistant Chief Christina R. Martin, Technical Services Bureau

Assistant Chief James R. Mjor II, Field Operations Bureau

Captain Robert W. Sharpe, Training Division

^







INTEROFFICE COMMUNICATION 

WASHINGTON STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 

TO: WSCJTC Commissioners 

FROM: Valerie Jenkins-Weaver, Operations Division Manager 

SUBJECT: Variance Request – San Juan County Sheriff’s Office/Lukas Peter 

DATE: February 25, 2025 

San Juan County Sheriff Eric Peter has submitted a request for a training variance for Deputy Lukas Peter 

on January 23, 2025. Pursuant to WAC 139-03-030(3), variance requests must be presented to the 

Commission for full consideration at its next meeting.   

The Certification Bureau recommended that Sheriff Peter submit this request to correct an error 

discovered during an audit of the WSCJTC learning management program, Acadis.  During this audit, it 

was discovered that Deputy Lukas Peter was inadvertently listed as a certified peace officer. This error 

happened during the data migration from the previous learning management program, LMS.    

Deputy Lukas Peter began his law enforcement career as a non-certified, limited authority, Park Ranger 

with Washington State Parks in July 2009.  Due to low enrollment, WSCJTC accepted Ranger Peter to 

attend the Basic Law Enforcement Academy, which he completed on February 9, 2010.  This completion 

did not confer certification status. 

Deputy Peter separated from WA Parks on May 14, 2013, and began his career with the San Juan County 

Sheriff’s Office on May 15, 2013.  At that time, the equivalency academy would have been required to 

obtain certification, but due to the error on his profile, it appeared he had received certification.  

Deputy Peter has been an active peace officer since 2013, with no disciplinary issues, no sustained 

complaints before 2022, or recorded complaints with the WSCJTC.  He has completed all required 

training and has been promoted to Detective.  If Detective Peter had remained employed with the WA 

Parks, he would have been granted certification under statute HB 1132, which mandated limited authority 

officers to be certified if they met the definition in RCW 43.101.010(10).  

Sheriff Peter respectfully requests a variance for Detective Peter to be retroactively certified due to the 

abovementioned circumstances.  Under the circumstances, WSCJTC is recommending certification be 

granted with no further action. 

VJW:vjw 

Attachments (4)







Training History Report
WA State Criminal Justice Training Commission

Reported by Acadis® Readiness Suite 03/05/2025

For: Peter, Lukas B.

Student ID 1000-8048

Total Hours  (8h 0m)

Current Period to Date  (01/01/2025 - 03/05/2025)

Course/Title (Course No.) Training Dates Grade Status
Training
Category Hours

Support Services - Animal Cruelty Investigations 02/13/2025 02/13/2025
Completed -
Passed

Online
Training

2h 0m

Sexual Assault Investigations - Patrol Officer
Response to Sexual Assault

01/28/2025 02/03/2025
Completed -
Passed

Sexual
Assault
Investigations

2h 0m

Total Hours  (4h 0m)

Previous Period  (01/01/2024 - 12/31/2024)

Course/Title (Course No.) Training Dates Grade Status
Training
Category Hours

Violence De-escalation (PTIS) - 2192-221 Patrol
Tactics In-Service (San Juan, CO)

10/16/2024 10/18/2024
Graduated -
10/18/2024

24h 0m

Crisis Intervention - Annual CIT Online Course
(2024)

10/06/2024 10/06/2024
Completed -
Passed

CIT Online
Refresher

2h 0m

Total Hours  (26h 0m)

Other Periods  (through 12/31/2023)

Course/Title (Course No.) Training Dates Grade Status
Training
Category Hours

Duty to Intervene - 8898 - Duty to Intervene 12/11/2023 12/13/2023
Completed -
Passed

Advanced
Training (Post
Academy)

3h 0m

Crisis Intervention - Annual CIT 2hr Online
Course (2023)

09/14/2023 10/03/2023 0.00%
Completed -
Passed

CIT Crisis
Intervention
Team

1h 55m

Crisis Intervention - Annual CIT 2hr Online
Course (2022)

10/27/2022 10/27/2022
Completed -
Passed

CIT Crisis
Intervention
Team

2h 0m

Crisis Intervention - Annual CIT 2hr Online
Course (2021)

11/15/2021 11/15/2021
Completed -
Passed

CIT Crisis
Intervention
Team

2h 0m

Violence De-escalation (PTIS) - 2192-57 Patrol
Tactics In-Service Training (24 hrs) (1)

06/02/2021 06/04/2021
Graduated -
06/04/2021

24h 0m

Special Investigations - 5359-1 Child Interviewing
Refresher (8 hrs) (5)

04/29/2021 04/30/2021
Graduated -
04/30/2021

8h 0m

Crisis Intervention - 5509-21 CIT-Crisis
Intervention Team 8hr - In-Service - Statewide (8
hrs) (3)

04/21/2021 04/21/2021
Graduated -
04/21/2021

8h 0m

Firearms - 2030-2 Firearms Lethal / Less Lethal
Shotgun Instructor (40 hrs) (1)

04/05/2021 04/09/2021
Graduated -
04/09/2021

40h 0m

Special Investigations - 0245-1 Homicide
Investigations - Virtual (40 hrs) (1)

10/20/2020 11/05/2020
Graduated -
11/05/2020

40h 0m

Support Services - Annual DV Update: Extreme
Risk Protection Orders

09/23/2020 09/23/2020 Completed
In-Service
Training

2h 0m

For Official Use Only Page 2 of 3



Training History Report
WA State Criminal Justice Training Commission

Reported by Acadis® Readiness Suite 03/05/2025

For: Peter, Lukas B.

Student ID 1000-8048

Crisis Intervention - Annual CIT 2hr Online
Course (2020)

09/10/2020 09/23/2020
Completed -
Passed

CIT Online
Refresher

2h 0m

Sexual Assault Investigations - 7100-1 SAI-
VCERT: Victim-Centered Engagement and
Resiliency Tactics, Virtual

09/15/2020 09/18/2020
Graduated -
09/18/2020

Sexual
Assault
Investigations

24h 0m

Sexual Assault Investigations - 7100-1 SAI-
VCERT: Victim-Centered Engagement and
Resiliency Tactics, Virtual (32 hrs)

09/15/2020 09/18/2020
Graduated -
09/18/2020

32h 0m

Crisis Intervention - Annual CIT 2hr Online
Course (2019)

12/03/2019 12/03/2019
Completed -
Passed

CIT Online
Refresher

2h 0m

Firearms - 2018-1 Firearms Handgun Instructor
Level 2 (40 hrs) (1)

12/08/2018 12/12/2018
Graduated -
12/12/2018

40h 0m

Crisis Intervention - Annual CIT 2hr Online
Course (2018)

11/05/2018 11/05/2018
Completed -
Passed

CIT Online
Refresher

2h 0m

Special Investigations - 5357-9 Child Abuse
Interviewing and Assessment (40 hrs) (1)

05/15/2017 05/19/2017
Graduated -
05/19/2017

40h 0m

Field Training Officer - 0681-12 Field Training
Officer Academy (40 hrs) (10)

01/23/2017 01/27/2017
Graduated -
01/27/2017

40h 0m

Traffic - 0202-2 Collision Investigation, Advanced
(80 hrs) (2)

02/22/2016 03/04/2016
Graduated -
03/04/2016

80h 0m

Firearms - 2011-4 Firearms Handgun Instructor
Level 1 (80 hrs) (9)

12/09/2015 12/20/2015
Graduated -
12/20/2015

80h 0m

Special Investigations - 0222-2 Interviewing
Techniques (24 hrs) (3)

04/14/2015 04/16/2015
Graduated -
04/16/2015

24h 0m

Traffic - 0201-2 Collision Investigation, Basic (40
hrs) (14)

10/07/2013 10/11/2013
Graduated -
10/11/2013

40h 0m

Basic Law Enforcement Academy - BLEA 655
(Unknown)

09/29/2009 02/09/2010
Graduated -
02/09/2010

720h 0m

Total Hours  (1256h 55m)

A grade of ## indicates that the weights for this class are not valid and grades cannot be calculated.

Education

Degree Year Level / Degree Institution Major Minor

College/Undergraduate /
Bachelor's Degree

Did Not Collect

Miscellaneous

Allen LMS SID 126157

Profile Comments (Must
Initial & Date)

Deputy Sheriff

For Official Use Only Page 3 of 3



From: Michael Hairston
To: Weaver, Valerie (CJTC)
Subject: Training Spreadsheet
Date: Tuesday, January 28, 2025 9:04:46 AM

External Email

Valerie,
Here is the training for Lukas
Peter for the last 5 years
 
 
 Peter, Lukas
Classes Credits/Hours Training Manager /Unit

Course Dates Provider Location Class
# Class Title Hours Fee Date Sent to

Training Manager Date Recorded Comments

9-May-20 SJCSO FH Firearms 4.00 09/09/20

9/18/2020 CJTC online Sexual assault inv 24.00 ` 09/23/20

9/23/2020 CJTC online Annual CIT 2.00 09/24/20

TRAINING RECORD Peter, Lukas  

Classes Credits/Hours Training Manager /Unit  

Course Dates Provider Location Class
# Class Title Hours Fee Date Sent to

Training Manager Date Recorded  

1-6-21 to 1-7-21 NDCAC online Social Networking criminal inv 16.00 02/03/21  

3/31/2021 SJCSO online Bloodborne Path 1.00 04/01/21  

4/5-4/9/21 CTJC Burien Lethal/Less lethal Shotgun Instructor 40.00 05/05/21  

4/30/2021 CJTC online Child Interview Refresher 8.00 05/05/21  

7/18/2021 AST Pasco Shotgun Breaching 8.00 07/26/21  

7/23/2021 AST Pasco Single Officer Response 48.00 07/26/21  

7/28/2021 SJCSO online OUF/DF 2.00 08/02/21  

6/4/2021 CJTC Classroom Patrol Tactics 24.00 09/21/21  

9/20/2021 SJCSO online Bias Based Profiling 1.00 09/21/21  

9/16/2021 Homelenad
Security Anacortes Digital Evidence (BIRDE) 24.00 09/22/21  

TRAINING RECORD Peter, Lukas  

Classes Credits/Hours Training Manager /Unit  

Course Dates Provider Location Class
# Class Title Hours Fee Date Sent to

Training Manager Date Recorded  

8-Mar-22 Police One Online BBP 1.00 03/14/22  

3/17/2022 Parks Tacoma Vessel EVOC 24.00 3/221/22  

3/22/2022 FEMA Online IS-100 2.00 04/05/22  

4/4/2022 SJCSO Online Civil Process 1.00 04/05/22  

4/5/2022 FEMA Online IS-700 4.00 04/06/22  

6/9/2022 Police One Online Duty to Intercede 1.00 06/10/22  

TRAINING RECORD Peter, Lukas  

Classes Credits/Hours Training Manager /Unit  

Course Dates Provider Location Class
# Class Title Hours Fee Date Sent to

Training Manager Date Recorded  

28-Feb-23 SJCSO Online BBP 1.00 04/04/23  

3/6/2023 SJCSO Online UOF 2.00 04/04/23  

4/13/2023 Dolan Online 8 Qualities of a Good Detective 3.00 04/27/23  

6/23/2023 Pro LE
Training Online Dark Web 14.00 09/13/23  

10/23/2023 NW3C Online DF091 Encryption 1.00 10/25/23  

10/20/2023 NW3C Online White Collar Crimes 2.00 10/25/23  

10/11/2023 NW3C Online Undercover 1.00 10/25/23  

12/13/2023 CJTC Online Duty to intervene 3.00 12/13/23  

TRAINING RECORD Peter, Lukas  

Classes Credits/Hours Training Manager /Unit  

Course Dates Provider Location Class
# Class Title Hours Fee Date Sent to

Training Manager Date Recorded  

29-Feb-24 SJCSO Online Bias Based Profiling 1.00 03/05/24  

3/18/2024 SJCSO Online UOF 2.00 03/20/24  

5/10/2024 WHIA Conference 20.00 05/13/24  

5/30/2024 SJCSO Online Bloodborne Pathogens 1.00 06/04/24  

8/1/2024 SJCSO Online Civil Process 1.00 08/01/24  

8/27/2024 TASER TASER instructor 16.00 09/17/24  

9/15/2024 IALEFI W. Palm Beach IALEFI Conference 40.00 10/02/24  

10/18/2024 CJTC SJI Patrol Tactics 24.00 11/04/24  

mailto:mikeh@sanjuancountywa.gov
mailto:valerie.weaver@cjtc.wa.gov


Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance

Decision 
Date

Requesting 
Agency Name Consideration Factors

Employment Status at 
time of request

Employment Status 
(today) Decision - Comments

3/11/2025 San Juan CO Lukas Peter

The packet was submitted to the commissioners for 
review. The agency is requesting retroactive 

certification based on an error in certification during 
the LMS data migration. employed full time employed full time

12/11/2024
Jefferson CO 

SO Eric Morris

Packet was submitted to the commissioners for 
review. Agency is requesting the attendance in COEA 

due to prior completion of BLEA and COA.  Peace 
Officer Certification is still vaild. Corrections Officers 

Certification was not issued due to separation occured 
prior to CO Certification mandate. employed full time employed full time

Approved 8-5 for completion of the 
COEA.  An extension of the agency 
probation was required.  After the 
completion of the academy a 6-month 
probabtion is requried and 
Commissioners will be updated. 

3/13/2024
Skamania 

CO SO Paul Uminski

Packet was submitted to the commissioners for 
review. Agency is requesting the attendance in BLEEA 

due to prior completion of BLEA and COA.  
Certification expired on 6/7/2023 after separation 

from Woodland PD on 6/7/2018. employed full time employed full time Denied 

3/8/2023
Tulalip Tribal 

PD Jasper Bruner

Packet was submitted to the commissioners for 
review. Agency is requesting the attendance in BLEEA 

due to prior completion of  BLEEA with a certified 
Tribal agency.  Certification expired when employed 
with a non-certified Tribal PD as the Chief of police, 

with no break in service. employed full time employed full time
Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

6/8/2022 Lynnwood PD Aggie Barnwell

Packet was submitted to the commissioners for 
review.  Agency is requesting the previous BLEA 

training, employment, paid part time employment 
status, no real break in service and continous training 

be reviewed for BLEEA. employed part-time employed part-time
Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

2/23/2022 Newport PD Jason Roberts

Packet was submitted to the commissioners, due to 
not being given a conditional offer, or employed, the 

commissioners did not consider the request. n/a Denied

3/10/2021
Port Townsend 

PD Trevor Hansen

Packet was presented to the Commissioners: Hansen 
attened COA and Reserve academy, but has not 
attend a basic LE academy.  Agency is requesting 

employment, training and prior academy training to 
be considered. Reserve Denied: agency did not attend meeting

12/9/2020 Reardan PD Christopher Stein

Packet was presented to the Commissioners: the 
agency is requesting BLEEA based on experience in 

the field and reserve status. Reserve
No Vote - The Chair determined the 
variance was denied. 

9/9/2020 Pe Ell PD Dean Rivers

Packet was presented to the Commissioners: Reserve 
officer without attending BLEA.  Agency is requesting 
employment and reserve academy to be considered Reserve - Town Marshal

No Vote - The Chair determined the 
variance was denied.



Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance

His break in service is 7 years; he has been working in 
a criminal justice in a global capacity the entire time.
He has completed the hiring process and will begin 
employment next month. The agency is asking that 
you recognize the combination of all of his trainings 
and experience as that of the full BLEA and allow him 
to attend the Equivalency.
Attended 5 LE type academies; none of these 
academies are recognized on their own; agency asked 
to recognize combination of all of his trainings and 
experience as that of the full BLEA and allow him to 
attend the Equivalency.
He worked 4 years in military LE capacity – 6 year 
break – then 6 years as a civilian DOD LE officer – then 
Skokomish Tribe for the past year.
He has been working for this certified tribe for over a 
year and as tribal certification is voluntary, the former 
chief chose not to address this and the new chief is 
attempting to bring all of their officers to state 
standards.

9/12/2019 Des Moines PD Mark Couey

35 years with the WSP, retired and break in service is 
7 years – during those 7 years worked as a limited 

commission officer for OIC. Employed Employed/Certified
Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

6/6/2019
Sauk Suiattle 

Tribal PD Patrick Rogers
14 years LE experience, all with a non-certified tribe; 

no break in service. Employed Employed/Certified
Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

3/13/2019
Cowlitz Tribal 

PD Brandon Molett

BLEA 720 in 2008; 3 years with PD/CSO; 7.5 years with 
Dept. of VA/Us Marshal’s Office; Working 1 year with 

Tribe, completed FTO.  Employed

Not Employed / 
Agency terminated 

prior to academy for 
disqualifying 
misconduct.

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/14/2018 Swinomish PD Brian Geer
12 year break in service; completed reserve academy 

in 1994 & 2017; BLEA 720 in 2001. CSO – Pending Hire Denied 

12/14/2018 Tonasket PD Anthony Domish
7 year break in service; 14 years WA LE experience & 

2 years in Oregon; served as chief in WA. Conditional Offer

Not 
employed/Agency 

planning to contract 
with Sheriff’s Office

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/14/2018
Cowlitz Tribal 

PD Duane G. Lawrence

Completed 440 BLEA in 1993; tribal certified in 2008. 
11 break in service due to federal service as criminal 

investigator. Working 1 year with Tribe – they 
recently became certified.  Employed Employed/Certified

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/14/2018
Cowlitz Tribal 

PD William Elliott

21 years LE experience: US Border Patrol, CJTC 
Equivalency 1989, Oregon State Police and Federal 
Officer. Working 1 year with Tribe – they recently 

became certified.  Employed Employed/Certified
Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/14/2018 Raymond PD Kyle Pettit
Certified in 2008 – break in service 6.5 years. Handgun 

and DT Instructor
Employed – now with 

Pacific County SO Employed/Certified
Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.12/5/2019 Vancouver PD Nathan Sanger

Conditional Offer – 
starting 01/2010 Employed 

12/5/2019
Skokomish 

Tribal Police Michael Bradshaw Employed Employed
Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.



Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance

9/12/2018
Federal Way 

PD Richard Klein

22 LE veteran with Las Vegas Metro PD; retired in 
2012; however was serving in a teaching capacity at 
the Nevada POST (like CJTC). He holds a Cat III 
commission in Nevada and if he went back to work in 
Nevada, he would not be required training. Employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/12/2018
Sauk-Suiattle 

TPD Vanessa Watlamett

Completed recognized Federal Academy; 5 years LE 
experience working for Yakama Nation. As that Tribe 
is not a certified Tribe, this request went before the 
Commission for review. Employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/12/2018 Newport PD Todd Aannerud

13 years LE in North Dakota; small break while 
working for Homeland Security; past 10 years 
workings as a Federal Police Officer with general 
authority. Conditional Offer

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

3/14/2018
Port Angeles 

PD Sean Ryan

2 years WA; 2 years AZ; Returned WA as reserve – 
completed FULL Equivalency, served as a just shy of 
full-time (reserve) officer for PAPD for 9 years while 
also serving as a CJTC TAC/Firearms instructor for 
BLEA for 4 years. Requested a waiver of additional 
training. Employed Granted – Was Issued Certification

12/13/2017 Univ. of WA PD Sean O’Laughlin

PO 2002-2011 – went active duty, break in service 
required BLEA, completed 6 weeks of BLEA, called 
active duty again, review of training and experience 
and input from BLEA staff. Employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

Reserve
Due to his extensive training history, the request was 
to be allowed to complete the reserve equiv instead 
of the full reserve academy

12/14/2016 Lake Stevens PD John Dyer

Requested consideration if his  20+ yrs experience 
most in WA to exempt him from going to Equivalency 
(left the state for 3+ years) Employed

Denied – Required to Attend 
Equivalency

12/14/2016 DuPont PD Edward Barnes IV

Completed BLEA in 2004; shortly after went to work 
as a civilian PO at JBLM, no break in service – 
requested to recognized training and experience as 
equivalent and allow Equivalency instead of BLEA Employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/14/2016 King Co So Jana Wilson
1. 16+ year LE experience; 2. Current job duties closely 
relate to LE Conditional Officer

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

6/15/2016 Wahkiakum Co So Josh Scholten
1. Parks Law Enforcement Academy (720 hours), 
2007; 2. AA – Criminal Justice Conditional Officer Denied – completed BLEA in 01/2017

6/15/2016 Kettle Falls PD Crystal Lofts

1. Reserve academy; 2. Certified FTO; 3. Over 15 
year’s exp working a combination of reserve and full-
time.

Reserve Officer with 
Conditional offer for FT Denied

3/9/2016 Walla Walla Co So Benjamin Olson

Attended BLEA (720) had a break in service of 6.8 
years; worked in Walla Walla County Jail and had 
duties similar to a road deputy.

Applied for position / not 
employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

Granted – Must complete the reserve 
equivalency process.6/14/2017 Cheney PD Nicholas Horn Reserve



Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance

12/9/2015 Redmond PD Daniel McNamara

Over 12 years of criminal justice service. Attended full 
BLEA in IA and worked as full commissioned there in 
late 90's for over 6 years. In 2003, worked with and 
for numerous inter-local police taskforces while 
working with ICE. Conditional Offer

Granted with Stipulations - Must 
attend Equivalency & be hired by 
Redmond PD

12/9/2015 Squaxin Island PD Brett Fish

Attended BLEA (440) and worked as LEO for Tacoma 
PD; Took 6 year break then went to work for Squaxin 
Island; While applying for Tribal Police Certification, it 
was found that although he had worked for SIPD for 
10 years, he had attained a 6 year break before which 
would have required a full BLEA. Employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

3/11/2015 Brier PD Steven J Fox 14yr expr as a reserve officer. Attended BLEA in 1992 Conditional Offer Denied

12/10/2014 Bellevue PD James Montgomery 45 +years of LE training, experience, and education. Employed
Granted Peace Officer Certification - 
with no requirements of training.

12/10/2014 Swinomish PD James Heenan

14+ years of LE experience before leave LE. Returned 
to LE in 2011, attended reserve academy to work for 
Upper Skagit PD full-time as well as part-time for Sauk-
Suiattle for past 3 years.  Employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/10/2014 Mattawa PD Robert Doty

29+ years with federal law enforcement service. 
Specialties included advanced deputy training, fugitive 
investigations and so on Conditional Offer

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/10/2014 Lincoln CSO Lucas Mallon

Extensive training hours (more than 1000). Worked as 
a law enforcement officer for Yellowstone Nat'l Park 
(close comparison to WA General Authority and 
attended SVCC Parks Academy. Conditional Offer

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/10/2014 Seattle PD Kathleen O'Toole
Newly appointed Chief of Seattle PD with extensive 
background. Employed

Granted with Stipulations - Chief 
O'Toole will complete the newly 
developed Chief Executive Officers 
Equivalency Academy.

6/11/2014 WSP Erick Thomas

1.  Sergeant Thomas incurred a 3 year, 7 month, 23 
day break in service due to military duty; was certified 
in 2002 when Certification was enacted and lapsed in 
2013. WSP developed a refresher program similar to 
the program utilized when Troopers return from light 
duty. However, in Sergeant Thomas' case, they added 
elements relating to First Level Supervision.

Granted with Stipulations (1) Sergeant 
Thomas must submit a POCA within 7 
days; (2) The Washington State Patrol 
must provide the WSCJTC with a final 
status report of Sergeant Thomas' 
refresher training program no later than 
01/30/2015; (3) Upon successful 
completion of the refresher training 
program, the WSCJTC will approve the 
application for Peace Officer 
Certification.



Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance

3/19/2014 Spokane PD Selby Smith

1. 26 yrs. with DOJ/DEA; 2. MA - Public Admin; BA – 
CJ; 3. Numerous years of criminal investigations 
training which included traffic stops, detentions and 
more; 4. Has been a member of various tasks forces 
within the Spokane area and participated in executing 
search and arrest warrants; 5. Certified instructor of 
law enforcement methods and techniques. Employed

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/11/2013 Ocean Shores PD Kyle Frank

1.  Cumulatively met training requirements with WSP 
Arming Class, WSP CVEO Academy, and 164.5 hours 
of training during law enforcement employment for 
Quinault Indian Nation; 2.  Bachelor's Degree in 
Criminal Justice Not Currently Employed Denied

9/11/2013 WSP Barbara Werner

1. Trooper Werner incurred a 4 year, 5 month break 
in service due to military duty; 2. Trooper Werner had 
11 years as a Certified Peace Officer; 3. WSP 
developed and is in the process of formalizing a 
refresher program similar to the program utilized 
when Troopers return from light duty.

Granted with Stipulations: 
(1) Trooper Werner must submit a 
Peace Officer Certification Application 
within 7 days;(2) WSP must provide the 
WSCJTC with a  final status report of 
Trooper Werner's refresher training 
program no later than 12/6/2013;(3) 
Upon successful completion of the 
refresher training program, the WSCJTC 
will approve the application for Peace 
Officer Certification

9/11/2013 West Richland PD Cruz Garcia Jr.

1. Ten years of service as a Certified Law Enforcement 
Officer in Washington State; 2. Seven years of 
experience as an independent military contractor; 3.  
Mr. Garcia completed over 40 hours of skills based 
training with West Richland PD.

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/11/2013 Westport PD Bradly Staab

1. Parks Law Enforcement Academy (720 hours), 
2007; 2. Bachelor's Degree in History from Central 
Washington University Denied

3/13/2013 Prosser PD David Giles

1. Newly hired Chief with combination of training over 
his 35 years in law enforcement including graduation 
from the Illinois Police Training Institute (240 hours) 
and the Florida Dept. of Law Enforcement Lateral 
Officer Certification Academy (80 hours)

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/12/2012 Clark County SO Richard Torres

1. Six year break in service from employment with 
Vancouver PD, where he was a certified FTO, SWAT 
Operator and Train the Trainer; 2. Reserve for Clark 
County SO as a full capacity equivalent of a full-time 
officer contributing over 380 hours in 2012; 3. MBA

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.



Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance

9/12/2012 Spokane PD Frank Straub Jr

1. Newly hired Chief with 28 years law enforcement 
experience; 2. Directly related Bachelor's, Master’s, & 
Doctoral Degrees; 3. Equivalent federal Law 
enforcement training obtained; 4. Ran the training 
unit for one of the police agencies he previously 
belonged to: 5. Taught Criminal Justice at John Jay 
University

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/12/2012 Quincy PD Brent Ashton
Mr. Ashton attended WSP Academy, but did not 
complete his Field Training (683 hours). Denied

6/13/2012 NSF Railway Polic Anastasia Czebotar (Allison)

1.  Parks Law Enforcement Academy (720 hours), 
2005; 2. Seven years as a LE Park Ranger with WA 
State Parks and Recreation Commission with full 
police power and authority.

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

6/13/2012 WA State DFW Mark Hillman

1. Parks Law Enforcement Academy (720 hours), 
2010; 2. Bachelor's Degree from University of Puget 
Sound

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

6/13/2012 WA State DFW Jason Stapert

1. Parks Law Enforcement Academy (720 hours), 
2006; 2. Bachelor's Degree in Park & Recreation 
Management

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

6/13/2012 WA State DFW Nicholas Parkert

1. Parks Law Enforcement Academy (720 hours), 
2007; 2. Bachelor's Degree from Western Washington 
University

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

6/13/2012 WA State DFW Douglas King

1. Parks Law Enforcement Academy (720 hours), 
2006; 2. Employed part-time as District Security Office 
for the US Marshal's Service; 3.  Degree in Biology 
from University of Wisconsin.

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

12/14/2011 Clark County SO Thomas Maxfield
1. Seventy-two month break in service from WA State 
Law Enforcement.

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/14/2011 Kalispel Tribal PD Fredrick Warren
1. Sixteen year break in service from WA State Law 
Enforcement.

Denied - Must attend ful1 720 hour  
BLEA

6/8/2011 Tenino PD Devon Taylor

1. Eleven years of experience as a reserve police 
officer, nine of which as level III Reserve with 
Suquamish Tribal Police and Yelm PD; 2.  Has been 
working for Tenino PD for six months and has gone 
through the agency's field training officer process.  Denied – Attended BLEA 11/2011

3/16/2011 Benton County SO Jerry Hatcher

1. Over sixty month break in service; 2. Fifteen years 
of law enforcement experience; 3. Approximately 
2,132 hours of training; 4. Bachelor's degree, 
executive level certification, & attendance at 
Command College and FBI National Academy.

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

1/25/2011 Forks PD Doug Price
1. Over sixty month break in service; 2. WSP Training 
History:  3,177.95 hours

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.



Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance

9/8/2012 *  Port Angeles PD Norman Simmons

1. Twenty-six year career in Federal law enforcement; 
2. FLETC Land Management Police Training (365 
hours), 1984; 3. FLETC Police Investigator Training 
(220 hours), 1989; 4. FLETC Land Management 
Investigator Training Program (220 hours), 1989; 5. 
FLETC Marine Law Enforcement Training Program 
(164 hours), 2003; 6. FLETC NOAA Special Agent 
Training (160 hours), 2004

No Vote - *No conditional offer of 
employment was given by PAPD

3/10/2010 Marysville PD Derrick Millet

1. Bachelor of Arts Degree from Seattle University, 
1995; 2. Juris Doctorate from Gonzaga University, 
1998; 3. US Department of the Treasury, 2000-
present Denied

9/9/2009 Twisp PD Ryan Marshall

1. 5 yrs. as a Park Ranger for WA State Parks & 
Recreation; 2. Bachelors from Western Washington 
University, 1997; 3. WSCJTC Corrections Officer 
Academy, 1998; 4. Coast Guard Boarding Officer 
School (200 hours), 2002

Granted – Must complete equivalency 
academy.

9/10/2008 Colville Tribal PD Ryan Cox
WSP Academy Graduate, but did not complete FTO 
program (683 hours), 2008 Granted – Administrative Exemption

6/8/2005 Renton PD Jeffrey Thurlow From US Capitol Police Granted – Must complete equivalency academy.



INTEROFFICE COMMUNICATION 
 
WASHINGTON STATE CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 

 

TO: WSCJTC Commissioners 

 

FROM: Jennifer Pendray, Coroner/Medical Examiner Program Manager 

SUBJECT: New Attendance Policy  

DATE: March 4, 2025 
  

 
 

Dear Commissioners, 
 
The Coroner/Medical Examiner Attendance Policy was developed to address attendance and credit for 
Advanced Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training Courses. These courses provide continuing 
education for coroners, medical examiners, and medicolegal investigative personnel, as mandated by the 
Washington State Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Certification (WAC 139-27-040). Continuing 
education hours are also required for certification through the American Board of Medicolegal Death 
Investigators (ABMDI), which many of our stakeholders hold. 
 
The ABMDI is a national, not-for-profit, independent professional certification board accredited by the 
Forensic Specialties Accreditation Board (FSAB), ensuring the highest standards of practice for 
medicolegal death investigators. 
 
Advanced Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training Courses offered by WSCJTC are accredited by 
ABMDI, allowing our courses to satisfy certification requirements for both ABMDI and Washington 
State. Therefore, it is crucial that these courses provide maximum benefit to our stakeholders. This 
attendance policy ensures that participants receive continuing education credit even if they cannot attend 
the entire course which is allowed under ABMDI accreditation.  
 
Please note that this policy does not apply to the Core Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training 
Course required for certification under RCW 43.101.480. 
 
Key aspects addressed in this attendance policy include: 
 
• Permitted absences 
• Full credit criteria 
• Partial credit criteria 
• Required notification for absences  
 
JP:jp 



CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION 
POLICY MANUAL

Chapter 1 Policy 07 
Coroner/Medical Examiner Advanced Medicolegal 

Forensic Investigation Training Attendance  

Effective: 

XX/XX/XXXX 

Authorizing Source: RCW 43.101.480 Applies to: Relevant 
staff 

I. PURPOSE:

The Washington State Criminal Justice Training Commission (WSCJTC) in conjunction
with the Washington Association of Coroners and Medical Examiners (WACME) deliver
Advanced Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training during the WACME conference
which occurs 1-2 times per year. This policy outlines criteria under which participants
may miss a portion of these advanced Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training
sessions and still be eligible to receive full or partial continuing education credit. The
goal is to ensure that participants achieve the required learning outcomes while
accommodating reasonable circumstances that may prevent full attendance.

II. DEFINITIONS:

Acadis – Online training and registration platform.

Coroner – The elected or appointed official tasked with overseeing the medicolegal
system of a county whose principal duty is to investigate death.

Medical Examiner – A physician who is responsible for examining bodies
postmortem to determine the cause and manner of death.

Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training – Training designated to provide tools,
resources, and standards to individuals who perform medicolegal death
investigations.

Medicolegal Investigative Personnel – Personnel whose role is to investigate any
death that falls under the jurisdiction of a Coroner or Medical Examiner’s office
including all unnatural, suspicious, or violent deaths.

III. POLICY:

Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 43.101.480 and House Bill 1326 (21-22) require all
elected Coroners, appointed Coroners, persons serving as Coroners, Medical
Examiners (C/ME), and all other Medicolegal Investigative Personnel employed by a
county Coroner’s or Medical Examiner’s office must successfully complete Medicolegal
Forensic Investigation Training. Certification is a condition of continued employment in a
Coroner’s or Medical Examiner’s office as specified in RCW 43.101.480 (5). A county in

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.101.480
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.101.480
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2021-22/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1326-S.SL.pdf?q=20230727170231
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.101.480


   
 

   
 

which mandated personnel have not been certified may have their agency’s 
reimbursement from the death investigations account reduced per RCW 43.101.480(6).  
 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 139-27 requires Medical Examiners, Coroners, 
and Medicolegal Investigation Personnel to maintain certification which, in part, is 
maintained by attending 30 hours of continuing education relevant to medicolegal death 
investigation over a 3-year period. Advanced Medicolegal Forensic Investigation training 
developed and delivered by WSCJTC, often in conjunction with WACME, provides 
continuing education credit towards this goal. This policy applies only to the advanced 
Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training course at the WACME conference(s) and to 
no other WSCJTC Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training sessions.  

 
A. Attendance Requirements  

1. Absences 

Absences are permitted under the following conditions, which are all subject to 
approval by WACME and WSCJTC:  

a. Medical Reasons: Illness or medical appointments that cannot be 
rescheduled. 

b. Family Emergencies: Situations such as a death in the family or urgent care 
for a dependent. 

c. Work-Related Obligations: Unavoidable professional duties or emergencies 
that require immediate attention. 

d. Other Extenuating Circumstances: Situations that are unforeseen and 
beyond the participant's control. 

2. Full Credit 

Participants must attend a minimum of 90% of the total course to be eligible for 
full continuing education credit. This ensures that the majority of course content is 
covered and learning objectives are met. 

3. Partial Credit 

Participants may receive partial credit but will only receive credit for the blocks 
they attended in their entirety. Leaving partway through a block will result in no 
credit for that block.  

 
B. Notification and Documentation 

Participants must notify WSCJTC C/ME Program Manager or Administrative 
Assistant as soon as possible if they anticipate or experience an absence. Failure to 
notify WSCJTC program staff of any absence will result in the forfeiture of any credit 
for the course, regardless of attendance.  

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.101.480
https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=139-27&full=true


   
 

   
 

Documentation may be required to support the reason for the absence as 
determined by WSCJTC program staff.  

Upon approval of an absence, a diploma (certificate of completion) will be generated 
in Acadis for each block the participant attended. Participants may use these 
diplomas toward their continuing education credits required for recertification of 
Washington State Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Certification.  



 
 

       Washington Association of Coroners and Medical Examiners  
 
 
 
March 3, 2025 
 
 
Criminal Justice Training Commission, 
 
On behalf of the Washington Association of Coroners and Medical Examiners (WACME), this 
letter is to express acknowledgement and support of the Coroner/Medical Examiner Advanced 
Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training Attendance Policy located in the Criminal Justice 
Training Commission Policy Manual.  
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Hayley Thompson 
 
Hayley Thompson, D-ABMDI 
President 
Washington Association of Coroners and Medical Examiners 
 
 



Public Works/Community Development 
407 Birch Ave SW, PO Box 810 Napavine, WA 98565 

Phone: (360) 262-9344 
www.cityofnapavine.com 

 

The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 
Incorporated November 21, 1913 

 

 

 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Bryan Morris, PW/CD Director 

RE:  Staff Report for Council Meeting, March 25 t h , 2025 

 

• Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
o Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – February 18, 2025  

 

• Project Updates 
o Scots Industries –   Stabilizing soils for winter and containing stormwater runoff.  Waiting for final 

submittal on water system upgrade for the Birch Avenue Booster Station. 
 

o Cell tower on city property – Applicant provided contract back to city for additional review, waiting for 
city attorney to provide feedback.  
 

o Rush Road STIP –   The Public Works Director reviewed the 30% plans and requested some changes. 
 

o Woodard Road –   City is producing a staff report.  
 

o Walsh Trucking Binding Site Plan – The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on March 17th.  
 

o Jefferson Station – Construction is currently out to bid.  
 

o Water – Consultant provided a scope of work for phase 1 evaluation. 
 

o Breen Acres LLC – Received petition to annex, applicant needs to pay the annexation fee before the city 
starts the process.  

http://www.cityofnapavine.com/


NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

                     February 18, 2025 6:00 P.M. 

 Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

INVOCATION: Invocation was led by Director Morris.  

CALL TO ORDER: 
Commissioner Graham opened the regular Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:00 PM 

 
ROLL CALL:   
Planning Commission present: Deborah Graham, Amy Morris, and Amy Hollinger 
Commissioner Morris motioned to excuse Arnold Haberstroh and Kacey Torgerson, seconded by Commissioner 
Hollinger. Vote on motion 2 ayes 0 nay. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – As presented:   
Commissioner Hollinger motioned to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Commissioner Morris. Vote 
on motion 2 ayes, 0 nay. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

Commissioner Hollinger motioned to approve the February 3, 2025 regular meeting minutes, seconded by 
Commissioner Morris.  Vote on motion 2 ayes and 0 nay. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENT:  

Paula Sandirk – Went through the comp plan goals and policies on buildings and has issues on the items below. 
CR 1.5  Solar Panels 
CR 3.2 Renewable Energy – please change to efficient energy sources 
CR 3.4 Don’t want windmills  

OLD BUSINESS:  

1. Comp Plan Update – Climate Goals and Policies Review 
Director Morris recommended the following changes  
Policy CR 1.5  Change “require” to encourage. 
Policy CR 3.2 Change “renewable” to efficient. 
Policy CR 3.4 Change “Encourage” to support. 
Policy CR 9.2  Change “require” to encourage. 
No motions were made.  

GOOD OF THE ORDER:  

Commissioner Hollinger will need to be excused for the March 3rd Planning Commission meeting. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 6:15 pm 

Commissioner Morris motioned to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. Vote 2 ayes, 0 nay.                                     

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online at 

https://fccdl.in/WRootRYpWK . 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Bryan Morris, Community Development/Public Works Director            Planning Commission Chairperson 

https://fccdl.in/WRootRYpWK


The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 
Incorporated November 21, 1913 

 
 
 
 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Michelle Whitten, City Treasurer 
 
RE: Treasurer’s Report     Council Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Treasurer Report: 
 

→ I will be attending the WA Public Treasurers Association Conference in Chelan April 8-
11th.  One of the hot topics will be AI in Municipal Government. 

→ The 2024 Annual Report has been started – Due at the end of May 
→ One of the short-term bonds will be completed April 30th in the amount of $98,160 which 

had a 3.875% interest rate.  I will be looking at reinvesting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Shawn O’Neill, Mayor 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk 

Michelle Whitten, City Treasurer 
John Brockmueller, Chief of Police 

Bryan Morris, PW – CD Director 

407 Birch Ave SW, P. O. Box 810 
Napavine, WA 98565 

Phone: (360) 262-3547 
www.cityofnapavine.com 

 


	2025-03-25 Reg Agenda
	2025-03-11 Regular Meeting Minutes
	03 25 2025 Voucher Report
	AM 25-04 Liquor License Renew Chris Mini Mart - Copy
	AM 25-04 Documentation State Liquor Renew-Chris Mini-Mart
	Resolution 25-03-160  Napavine Flood Authority
	PUBLIC COMMENT-Kyle Wheeler emails
	PUBLIC COMMENT-Kyle Wheeler-FINAL Packet -- March 12 2025 Commission Meeting
	Agenda - March 12 Commission Meeting
	Public Comment
	IOC - Quarterly Certification Report
	2024 Certification Actions
	Certification Report - Disciplinary Outcomes - November 21, 2024 - February 24, 2025
	Certification 2024 Year End
	Certification Report Glossary
	Chapter 7.09 - Administrative Closure
	December 2024 Commission Meeting Minutes
	IOC - Proposed Updates to Chapter 7 Policy 03: Conflict of Interest
	WAC 139-03-030 Washington State Patrol Extension Request
	WAC 139-03-030 Colfax Police Department Extension Request
	IOC - Variance Request - San Juan County Sheriff's Office/Lukas Peter
	Variance Requests for Basic Law Enforcement Equivalency Academy Attendance
	IOC - New Attendance Policy
	Chapter 1 Policy 07 - Coroner/Medical Examiner Advanced Medicolegal Forensic Investigation Training 

	Staff Report CD-PW 3.25.25
	Bryan Staff Report 3.25.25
	2.18.25 PC Minutes

	Staff Report Treasurer 2025-03-25



